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China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. FE& 4B ERI%E
PR A F] (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
were established in 1999.

The shares (the “Shares”) of the Company have been listed on the main
board (the “Main Board”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 12 October 2004 (Stock code: 1194).

The Group is a non state-owned Chinese gold mining company in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with a particular focus on the
central and western regions of the PRC. The Group currently owns five
operating gold mines located in the central, western and northern regions
of the PRC, namely Jinxing Mine and Luanling Mine in Henan Province,
Mojiang Mine and Hengyi Mine in Yunnan Province, and Yongfeng Mine
in Inner Mongolia, with total gold resources of approximately 7.3 million
ounces. The Group produced 146 Koz and 121 Koz of gold for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014, respectively.

JINXING GOLD MINE IN HENAN

Jinxing Mine is currently our largest mine in terms of total gold resources
and in terms of 2014 production. Jinxing Mine is located in Luanchuan
County, Henan Province. It is approximately 6 km from the regional town
of Baitu and approximately 110 km southwest of Luoyang City, Henan
Province. It is an underground mine and consists of two areas, namely
Jinxing area and Xiepojing area. It has Australasian Code for Reporting
of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves (“JORC
code”) and its equivalent gold resources of 78.7 tonnes (2,529 Koz) with
average grade of 4.6g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in 1956 and production commenced
in 1982.

hEESEERERERAT((RAT))
REMWBAT (515 [ AEE )R- AN
R -

ARG (RG] BZZEZTMNE+A
T_BREBEBERXIMERAR] ([
RADERMERD LT BRO&ERER
1194

AEER—HIEEESRAR  FTESE
BEMATEFPAIWE - AEBBATE
SEEEFHNESE  DRINFEFE -
FaEp b Eftth[R - Bl A NS Bl E R
RETE EHANRISENERS
B URASRHAKESTE  RE2ER
BEXN73EERA BHEZTE—=FK=
T—OUF+ZA=1T—HLEFE  F&H
DHEEES 146 THA K121 T&HA ©

M ETE

CEHSBERAECERER T —NFE
EMsALEEEIEANSE -©He
BRI mE S5 BREa TEO6R
BRAMEREGMABMANIIORE - %
CRAMTRIL - AMEREAER @ Be
FE RREHE - EREERAFEHAE
AHEZEEIZE([JORCIZ®E ) R H1E
LLiZEMNESERE78.7H (2,520 F &
A FHRA465, T o

ZEBEBR—NARNFERARGEEH R
R—NANZFEERE -



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD 3

Jinxing Mine is located at the junction between the southern margin
of the Qinling complex structural zone and the Xinhuaxia Taihang
uplift zone. Jinxing Mine is a polymetallic mine. The majority of the
mineralisation is contained within fresh rock due to the limited weathering
profile in the region. Two styles of mineralisation are identified, namely
pyrite bearing that contains silver, lead and copper in addition to the
gold mineralisation, and lead/gold bearing that is composed of lead and
gold mineralisation with minor silver. Mineralisation occurs within quartz
veins which are located within fracture zones to form stock work style
deposits. Ten vein groups have been identified within the mining area.

LUANLING GOLD MINE IN HENAN

Luanling Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province. It is
approximately 40 km from Jinxing Mine. It is composed of Northern
underground mining site and Southern open-pit and underground mining
site and is contained within a single mining license with an area of 9 km®.
Luanling Mine has JORC code gold resources of 62.5 tonnes (2,011
Koz) with average grade of 3.2g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in the 1950s and production started
in 1989.

Luanling Mine consists of two mining areas with different characteristics
of mineralisation, namely the Northern mining area and the Southern
mining area. Aggregate mining area under the mining license is
approximately 9 km?®.

Luanling Mine is located at the junction between the southern margin
of the Qinling complex structural zone and the Xinhuaxia Taihang uplift
zone. Mineralised zones in two mining areas are defined. The major
gold zones include nine veins. The mineralised material is dominated by
pyrite, secondarily marcasite, with small amount of galena and altaite (lead
minerals). The major gangue minerals include quartz, albite, sericite and
chlorite. The gold minerals include electrum, with a little calaverite and
petzite.
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MOJIANG GOLD MINE IN YUNNAN

Mojiang Mine is located in Mojiang County, Pu’er City, Yunnan Province,
approximately 300 km southwest of the provincial capital-Kunming.
Mojiang Mine is located in the famous Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San
Jiang Metamorphic Fold System implying favourable geology attributes.
It has JORC code gold resources of 18.2 tonnes (586 Koz) with average
grade of 1.4g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in 1945 and production commenced
in 1976.

Mojiang Mine holds one mining license covering an area of approximately
7.2 km?.

Apart from gold deposit in Mojiang Mine, there is also rich nickel metal.
The nickel ore bodies occur parallel to the gold ore bodies and belong to
a typical hydrothermal type that are mainly sulfides.

HENGYI MINE IN YUNNAN

Hengyi Mine is located in Zhenyuan County, Yunnan Province. It is
approximately 380 km southwest from Kunming. Hengyi Mine is located
between the Mojiang-Jinping Fold Belt and the Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the
San Jiang Metamorphic Fold System. It has JORC code gold resources
of 51.8 tonnes (1,666 Koz) with average grade of 2.7g/t.

Exploration activities first took place in the 1950s and production
commenced in 2003.

Hengyi Mine consists of two mining areas, namely Bianfushan mining
area and Shangzhai mining area. Total area under the mining licences is
approximately 9.1 km?. It also holds four exploration licences in adjacent
areas with aggregate area of approximately 36.7 km?.
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YONGFENG GOLD MINE IN INNER MONGOLIA

The Yongfeng Mine is located in Honghuagou, Inner Mongolia. It
currently holds seven mining licenses covering a total mining area of
0.92 km®. The mine is an underground mine located in Honghuagou
mineralisation belt of Inner Mongolia that has relatively high gold grade.
It has gold resources of 16.2 tonnes (524 Koz) with average grade of
9.50/t.

Seven mineralized veins were identified. The mineralised veins have
similar characteristics with an average width between 1 and 1.5 metre
and occur as gold bearing quartz veins.
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Locations of Qur Mines
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Overall gold production decreased = & Z & E = 5 2 17% £ 3.8
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Chairman’s Statement
FERTE

Dear Shareholders,

First and foremost, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders for your continuous support and trust in us amid a
challenging commodity price environment. Our deepest appreciation also
goes to all of our employees and management, especially our directors
as our Company continues to navigate through a difficult operating
environment, and would not be where we are today without your hard
work dedicated to the Group.

As a result of a number of factors such as the Federal Reserve’s decision
to end its quantitative easing program and oversupply built up from
the commaodities boom, the commodities sectors at large continue to
operate through the down cycle. 2014 has seen severe volatility of gold
price, and we believe it will still be primarily influenced by the Federal
Reserve’s decisions on the pace and timing of interest rate increase.
Having said that, we believe gold shall outperform other commodities
sectors since gold is a “safe haven” asset class. Increased volatility seen
in the global capital markets and monetary easing policies seen in major
economies such as China, Japan, and the European Union, coupled
by Central Banks seeking to diversify away from US dollar exposure by
procuring gold may bring support to gold price.

During 2014, the Group continued with its efforts on exploration, organic
expansion and as well as cost control in an environmentally friendly
manner. We remain dedicated to the local communities, as “Operating
in a Safe and Environmentally Friendly Manner” is our philosophy. In
2014, the Group has once again for the 6th consecutive year received
numerous recognitions and rewards by the local government for being
an industry leader in harmonious mines development.

Looking forward we remain positive on the prospects of the Company.
With our jurisdictionally diverse portfolio of high-quality gold mines, a
dedicated management team and highly skilled employees, the Group is
very well positioned to deliver continued sustainable development in the
future.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREGSE

| would like to express my deepest appreciation for the continued
commitment and excellence that radiates from our employees amid
a difficult time. In addition, | want to thank our Board of Directors for
their continuous and valuable guidance and support. | would like to
assure you that our Board of Directors, management and employees will
continue to strengthen and build our company in 2015 and beyond to
ensure continued development and success of our Company.

Sincerely,

Lam Cham
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Key Financial Highlight FEUBREBERE
FY 2014 FY 2013
Financial Data Summary —Z=— —Z&—= Movement %
HRHERE MIFE HEREE 1 %
Gold production output (thousand ounces) &4 EE (T#a]) 121 146 -17%
Revenue (HK$’000) Wz (F8T) 1,286,873 1,562,409 -18%
Gross profit (HK$’000) ER(FERT) 659,500 857,160 -23%
EBITDA (HK$’000) BRI R
FE (FET) 766,152 1,004,645 —-24%
Net (loss)/profit (HK$’000) F (&) JwR (FET) (184,025) 181,383 —201%
Total assets (HK$'000) wEE(THEL) 12,768,249 11,716,331 9%
Total debts* (HK$’000) wEE (FET) 5,700,776 4,623,597 23%
Cash and bank balances* e RIRITEERR
(HK$’'000) (F%&7T) 825,959 980,625 -16%
Net debts* (HK$’000) FEIE (FHT) 4,874,817 3,642,972 34%
Total equity (HK$’000) wrEm (TET) 5,882,541 5,022,847 -1%
*Notes: “BEEE
—  Total debts are bank and other borrowings, financial liabilities at fair value —— BEEBEABRITEEMER FREBERE
through profit or loss and convertible bonds. NEESEZ 2B ERATRRES -
—  Cash and bank balances include pledged deposits. — BReRBITEHKBERECERTER -

—  Net debts are total debts less cash and bank balances. —  FEBERMEERRS RRITER
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GOLD MARKET OUTLOOK

In 2014, the gold market saw an across the board reduction in demand
from consumers and the electronics and industrial sectors, recording
a 9% reduction in aggregate, or 251 tonnes of gold. However, Central
Bank purchases and a slowdown in Exchange Traded Funds (“ETF”)
outflows has partially counterbalanced the overall demand reduction,
recording a net increase of 6.7%, or 87 tonnes in gold demand. The net
result was that global gold demand in 2014 was 4% lower than that in
2013, with a full year total of 3,924 tonnes.

Gold price was negatively impacted by the Federal Reserve’s decision
to end the Quantitative Easing program as the US economy continued
its recovery throughout 2014. Furthermore, the strengthening of
the US dollar has also reduced the attractiveness of investments in
commodities. However, gold remains attractive as a “safe haven” asset
and gold price could potentially be supported by factors such as looser
Chinese monetary policy amid a period of decelerating economic growth,
uncertainty regarding the geopolitical and economic outlook of Europe
and other emerging markets, and the increasing volatility as seen in
global capital markets recently.

The Group is one of the largest non state-owned

gold mining enterprises in the PRC and one of
the few consolidators in the gold mining industry
recognised by the local governments. The gold mines
of which the Group currently has mining rights are
located in Henan, Yunnan and Inner Mongolia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEwmE T

Following a record year of consumer purchases in 2013 driven primarily
by Chinese demand, China has recorded a 33% reduction in gold
jewelry demand. Indonesian and Japanese demand also decreased
due to weak economic conditions. However, India and the USA were
regions noticeably immune to the downward trend. Despite uncertainty
surrounding the Indian government’s policies regarding gold imports and
import duties, India still recorded an 8.1% increase in jewelry demand.
The United States has recorded an 8.5% increase in jewelry demand
against a backdrop of a strengthening economy and growing consumer
confidence, the highest since 2009, and exceeding its 5 year average for
the first time since 2003.

Central banks seeking to diversify themselves from US dollar exposure
played a key role in absorbing 477 tonnes of gold in 2014 close to a
50-year high. The most noticeable buyers being the countries of the
Commonwealth of Independent States (“CIS”), with Russia as the most
prominent purchaser buying 173 tonnes. In addition, Kazakhstan and
Irag both purchased 48 tonnes apiece during 2014. For Iraq, this has
equated to a threefold increase in gold reserves.

As for gold supply, total supply was little changed in 2014 according to
the World Gold Council. Continued efforts to reduce costs and capital
spending by global producers may help limit production going forward.
The World Gold Council estimates that mine production will plateau over
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the next few years, as organic production growth from current projects
cap out and miners unable to invest in new development projects given
lowered gold prices and cost pressure. These factors will bring medium
to long term stability to gold price and rebalance the market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year, gold production of Hengyi Mine has increased
significantly as the planned production ramp-up continues, while
production of Jinxing Mine, Luanling Mine, Mojiang Mine, and Yongfeng
Mine decreased as compared to 2013. Total gold production was 3.8
tonnes (121 Koz), a 17% decrease compared to that at 2013.

Henan Jinxing Mine

Henan Jinxing Mine is located approximately 6 km from the regional town
of Baitu and approximately 110 km southwest of Luoyang City, Henan
Province. It is the largest mine in terms of gold resources and in terms of
2014 production of the Group. It is an underground mine and consists
of two areas, namely Jinxing area and Xiepojing area. Gold production
started since 1982, while exploration activities commenced as early as
1956. The Group acquired Jinxing Mine in 2010. Ten vein groups have
been identified within the mining area, with similar orientation, size and
shape. The variation of overall continuity of the thickness and grade of
the vein is also relatively consistent, which suggested good potential for
further resources expansion. Jinxing Mine has received the environmental
approval and safety approval for its new tailings yard and has started the
construction work. It has JORC code and its equivalent gold resources
of 78.7 tonnes (2,529 Koz) with average grade of 4.6g/t. Gold production
in 2014 was 1.2 tonnes (40 Koz), a decrease of 7% compared to that of
2018.

Construction works to enlarge the scope of Jinxing Mine’s surface and
underground exploration within its licensed land area, enlarge mining
capacity by building a grand shaft, and construction of the new tailing
dump site continues to be in progress.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFmR DM

Henan Luanling Mine

Luanling Mine is located in Luanchuan County, Henan Province, 40 km
away from Jinxing Mine. It is composed of Northern underground mining
site and Southern open-pit and underground mining site and is contained
within a single mining licence with an area of 9 km®. Exploration activities
commenced in the 1950s and small-scale production started in 1989.
The Group acquired the mine in 2010 and realised full scale production
in 2012. It has JORC code gold resources of 62.5 tonnes (2,011 Koz)
with average grade of 3.2g/t. Gold production in 2014 was 0.9 tonnes (28
Koz), a decrease of 15% compared to that of 2013. Ongoing exploration
activities and reinforcement projects in the four mining sites continues to
be in progress. Meanwhile, stripping works at the new open pit operation
has been completed. Preparation for mining and heap leaching have
commenced. Environmental approval for the new tailing dump site has
been obtained and construction works have begun to take place. These
ongoing projects shall provide high potential for near-term resource and
production expansion at Luanling Mine.

Yunnan Mojiang Mine

Mojiang Mine, is located in Mojiang County, Pu’er City, Yunnan Province,
approximately 300 km southwest of the provincial capital — Kunming.
It lies on the famous Mojiang-Jinping and Ailaoshan Fold, implying
favourable geology attributions. Exploration activities began in 1945 and
production started in 1976. It has JORC code gold resources of 18.2
tonnes (586 Koz) with average grade of 1.4 g/t. Gold production in 2014
was 1.1 tonnes (35 Koz), a 31% decrease compared to that of 2013.

The underground tunnel development and expansion project in three
sections of the tunnel continues to progress, so as the processing plant
expansion and the tailing dump site construction.
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Yunnan Hengyi Mine

Hengyi Mine is located in Zhenyuan County, Yunnan Province. It is
approximately 380 km southwest from Kunming. It holds two mining
licenses, namely Shangzhai and Bianfushan.

Hengyi Mine is located between the Mojiang-Jinping Fold Belt and the
Ailaoshan Fold Belt of the San Jiang Metamorphic Fold System. The San
Jiang Metamorphic System is situated on the southwest margin of the
Yangzi Platform and the northeast margin of the Simao Block between
the Honghe and Amojiang Faults.

Since the Group’s acquisition of Hengyi Mine in October 2012, the
Group has been working on ramping up its production capacity. Heap
leaching has been practised for several years at the mine. The Group
has significantly increased its recovery rate and operating efficiency by
utilising its gold operation experience and enlarged its heap leaching
scale. It has JORC code gold resources of 51.8 tonnes (1,666 Koz)
with an average grade of 2.7 g/t. The production ramp-up continues to
progress, with gold production reaching 415 kg (13 Koz) in 2014, a 15%
increase from 2013.

Meanwhile, the diamond drilling program with the goal of achieving
reserve expansion by the end of 2015 continues to progress.

With regards to the underground mine development, the Group is in the
process of obtaining the safety license in order to commence mining
operations. Construction work of the tailings dump site and processing
plant continues to progress.

Inner Mongolia Yongfeng Mine

Yongfeng Mine is an underground mine which was acquired by the
Group in 2009. Yongfeng Mine consists of two mining areas, namely
Lianhuashan mining area and Honghuagou mining area, which are
further divided into seven sub-mining areas. Yongfeng Mine is located
in the middle segment of the northern margin of the North China Plate,
adjacent to the Inner Mongolia Fold Belt in the North. Seven mineralised
veins were identified. The mineralised veins have similar characteristics
with an average width between 1 and 1.5 metre and occur as gold-
bearing quartz veins. It has resources of 16.2 tonnes (524 Koz) with
an average grade of 9.5 g/t. The output of Yongfeng Mine in 2014 was
139 kg (5 Koz), a 41% decrease compared to that of 2013.
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GOLD RESOURCES/RESERVES

At the end of year 2014, the Group had total resources of 227.4 tonnes
which is compliant with the JORC code and/or its equivalent. Measured
and indicated resources (inclusive of proved and probable reserves)
were 92.0 tonnes (2013: 95.8 tonnes) and inferred resources were 135.4
tonnes (2013: 135.4 tonnes). The measured and indicated resources
(inclusive of proved and probable reserves) for Jinxing Mine, Luanling
Mine, Mojiang Mine, Hengyi Mine and Yongfeng Mine were 39.2 tonnes,
18.5 tonnes, 14.7 tonnes, 14.5 tonnes and 5.1 tonnes respectively. The
inferred resources for Jinxing Mine, Luanling Mine, Mojiang Mine, Hengyi
Mine and Yongfeng Mine were 39.5 tonnes, 44.0 tonnes, 3.5 tonnes,
37.3 tonnes and 11.1 tonnes respectively. The gold grade ranged from
1.4 g to 9.5 g per ton of resources.

Updated mineral resources table”

ETERE #E

RZT—HFFR  AEBIZIJORCIEE
N,/ SHBLERE B227.41F - FRAFE
THERE (RIEZTEMKHES) 5920
ME(—ZT—=4:058W0) R ERE
135 4MA( —ZF — =4 : 135.4HF) - £ H
R BRECE RISE HEEdE
MoKESENRARZESERE (BIEE
FHEBES) DR A39.218 - 18.5MF
14708 ~ 145ME 5108 - & HEHE - &
BEoE BIoE EntRBREKESHE
R EIRE D R A39.588 - 44.0MF -
3.5 373WER11AME - E& MMAN T
RERGME1.4525E9.55 o

EHEEERK"

Au Metal (1) Au Metal (koz)
S (1) B (T#57)
Measured + Measured +
Indicated® Inferred Total Indicated® Inferred
BREE + R +
24 ast 24
Jinxing Mine S EEE 39.2 39.5 78.7 1,259 1,270 2,529
Luanling Mine HEDRE 18.5 44.0 62.5 596 1,415 2,011
Mojiang Mine BISHE 14.7 3.5 18.2 473 113 586
Hengyi Mine 1B 14.5 37.3 51.8 467 1,199 1,666
Yongfeng Mine  JKEETE 5.1 11.1 16.2 167 357 524
Total &3t 92.0 135.4 227.4 2,962 4,354 7,316

(1) FBELEHERFEYBJORCIZER
BCRIFIZE o

(1) All the mines’ resources and reserves are JORC code compliant and/or its
equivalent.

(0 ORI ERE SRR RS
i

(2)  Measured and indicated resources are inclusive of proved and probable
gold reserves.
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ANNUAL REVIEW - EXPLORATION AND INFRASTRUCTURE FEOE-BRREZRE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group continued its exploration work in all of its 5 mines, and in total %5 [8] 1 5 % &0 5 &5 1L #5 48 1 55 80 58 T
has completed trenching of approximately 66,348m and diamond driling ~ E + IR T2 E 466,348 K - &R

of approximately 27,361m. Ti284927,361K °
Jinxing Mine SHEIE
1) Exploration activities
BEMRES
i)  Exploration area and size Jinxing (5km?) Xiepojing (0.05km?)
BRI & E B E A eHEGBFEFRE) REH(0.05FHFRE)
i) Exploration project Trenches (28,000m) ; Trenches
ENiRTH2 diamond dfrilling (5,800m) (8,000m)
LR (28,000K) LR
#1F (5,800 K) (8,000K)
i) No. of drillholes 2 drilling spots of each of 4 drilling spots of each of
EERRAILEE 41 mine mouths, 100 drillholes 4 mine mouths
H41 @A - FELROA H4@EmA -
FH2 BT {Em - 38 E#EfL BETAFE 4 EIER
iv) Average size of drillholes Trenching of 2.2*2m; Trenching of 2.2*2m
B BRI RN Diameter of drillholes of g 2.272K

75mm and 33mm
g 2.2°2 K -
EFL B 75 =K 33 =K

v) Average depth of drillholes 153m N/A

E#ER R TIRE 153K TiERA
Development/construction activities

BERR BRI

) Area Jinxing Xiepojing

fE [ 4 1 Gl AR FH

i) Infrastructure construction Development of main Development of the

AR IBER tunnel and engineering cut main tunnel and

works of mine mouths No. engineering cut works of

18,28,19,3,Xingshuya,Moshigou, Xiepojing, extension

Houmusi, Qiaogou, of slope mine

Xiaobeigou tunnels, etc. R HEEHHA  FUNITER

1841 - 2841 ~ 19471 ~ 341 RFFIER

B ERE - REE -
BE MBS
NBEEEHRAER

Y T2
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Luanling Mine RESHE
1) Exploration activities
EE&RED
i)  Exploration area and size South Area (2.7km?) North Area (6.3km?)
BRI 15 e S E E A mEE27FEFRE) & (6.3 FHRE)
iy Exploration project Trenches (4,820m) Trenches (8,540m)
BRI YR (4,820 K) 5Lk (8,540 K)
i) No. of drillholes 5 drilling points of each of 4 drilling spots of each of
BEFERILEE 9 mine mouths 12 mine mouths
Ho@EmA H12f@m A
AR AT 5 EIEm BERAFH4EIER
iv) Average size of drillholes Trenching of 2.2*2m Trenching of 2.2*2m
[BE: ¢S RIS EPNIN fLiE 2,272 3K P8 2.2°2 3K
Development/construction activities
BERRE BREH
i) Area South Area North Area
B 2 1A 2 §id
i) Infrastructure construction Development of main tunnel and Development of main tunnel and
B R MEER engineering cut works of tunnel engineering cut works of
No.307,301,309,305,304 and Dongpo No.100 and 13,
slope extension project Huichungou
of tunnel No.301 No.201 and No.200,
30731 ~ 30131 + 30937 » Wangzhuang No.401
30541 ~ 304 L EBFHE KL FRIE1004T 1341 -
Ry)THE - #8201 41 ~ 200471 -
301 RN HFER A 401 TLESVB R R

Ry T2



Mojiang Mine

1) Exploration activities

WEREE
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BIEHE

i)  Exploration area and size

WiREE Kk EEmE

i) Exploration project

BiETE

i) No. of drillholes

EEFRAHE

iv) Average size of drillholes
Xt/ SLER S SP NI

v) Average depth of drillholes
EEERRILFERE

Development/construction activities

Open Cut (0.4km?)
BAKE(04FHRE)

Underground (3km?)
HTRERRE (3F A AE)

Diamond drilling (9,761m) Trenches (13,918m)

1R (9,7612K) HER (13,9182K)
40 drillholes 5 drillings spots of each
40 B FL of 6 mine mouths

HKeEnA -
SEYLO ¥ 5 ETEE

Diameter of 76mm Trenching of 2.2*2m

BHAEE75ZK JLiE 2.0%2 K
121m N/A
121 3K TEm

BERR BRI
i) Area
TEE 2

i) Infrastructure construction
A REER

Open Cut Underground
BRHE TR

no. 2 bulkhead wall for

mining junkyard,

phase two mine mouth mining

and rehabilitation project
2MHELSEAETE -
“HiEA O REETIR

Construction of a four-stage
mining stope to separate the
stripping and mining area, and 10
other heap leaching plants
HZAHES - 9 RIREE

BREE - HEHER 10 1E
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Hengyi Mine

1) Exploration activities

BEEREE

i) Exploration area and size
BRI 5 N S E A

i) Exploration project

ihE 7 S

i) No. of drillholes

EEFAAHE

iv) Average size of drillholes

Bianfushan (2km?)
RIEIL(2FRRE)

Diamond drilling (6,800m)
#% (6,800K)

45 drillholes

45 B fL

Diameter of drillholes of 75mm

Shangzhai (7km?)
FRGTFERRE)

Trenches (450m) ;
diamond drilling (5,000m)
HUER (4502K) - #&¥K (5,000K)

2 drilling spots of each
of 4 mine mouths,

23 drillholes
HA4ETA - FEHR O
FH2 @I ¢Em -

23 A& FL

Diameter of drillholes of

75mm, Trenching of 2.2*2m
EIHLEE75mm -

JUE 2.2*2 K

218m
2183k

BRI R EFLEE75mm
v) Average depth of drillholes 151m
B HERRILTFERE 151K
Development/construction activities
BERRE BREDH
i) Area Bianfushan
= 5 1A YRzl
ii) Infrastructure construction N/A
B R i

Shangzhai
F=®

Development of the

main tunnel and

engineering cut works of
Langnitang’s midpoint of pit
mouths of 1350 and 1400
JEEYE 1350 H BN 1400 HH E]
TERB LRI IRE



Yongfeng Mine

1) Exploration activities

mEREE
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KETHE

i)  Exploration area and size
BRI 15 & S E 1

i) Exploration project

BiETE

i) No. of drillholes

EEFRAAHE

iv) Average size of drillholes

Honghuagou (0.76km?) Lianhuashan (0.17km?)
MIEE (076 F /A RE) B (017 F/ARR)
Trenches (2,620m) N/A
LR (2,620 K) TEA
3 drilling points of each of N/A
5 mine mouths TERA

Hs @O - FEmO

¥ 3 AT fEm
Trenching of 2.2*2m N/A
P8 2.22 K i@

EEFE R FIR )
Development/construction activities
BEZRR EREH
i) Area

e

i) Infrastructure construction

B RMER

Development of Daxian area,

Lianhuashan

Honghuagou
AR e

Development of the

main tunnels and
engineering cut works of
no. 4 and no. 6;
reconstruction of vertical
shaft and extension

mmEg ~ SRR EBRAK
RYITRE - BHBGERITER

vein no.10, vein no.9
KR - 105K -
ORIKIRE R TIE
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EXPLORATION, DEVELOPMENT AND MINING PRODUCTION
EXPENDITURES

During the year, the Group had capital expenditures of HK$1,087 million
for exploration, development and mining production and entered into
certain significant contracts with certain independent contractors for
provision of exploration and infrastructure development of the Group.
Details of the relevant exploration and infrastructure development work
are set in above section headed “ANNUAL REVIEW — EXPLORATION
AND INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT”. Details of the Group’s capital
commitments are set out in note 34 (a) to the financial statements.

During the year, the Group incurred production costs of HK$587
million which included raw materials of HK$62 million, amortisation
and depreciation of HK$272 million, wages and subcontractors’ fees
of HK$164 million, resources compensation fees and taxes of HK$30
million and other miscellaneous mining and processing costs of HK$59
million.

MERGERS AND ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL

On 30 July 2014, the Company entered into a non-binding memorandum
of understanding, pursuant to which the Company expressed its
intention to acquire the entire equity interests in Shenzhen Munsun Asset
Management Company Limited (the “PRC Target Company”), a company
incorporated in the People’s Republic of China and all issued shares
in Munsun Assets Management Ltd. (the “Offshore Target Company”),
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. On 29 January
2015, the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Purchaser”) entered into an agreement with all shareholders
(the "Sellers”) of the PRC Target Company (the “PRC Acquisition
Agreement”). Pursuant to the PRC Acquisition Agreement, the Sellers
have conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser has conditionally
agreed to purchase the entire equity interest in the PRC Target Company
at a consideration of RMB24 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$29.7 million). On the same date, the Company entered into an
agreement with all shareholders (the “Offshore Sellers”) of the Offshore
Target Company, pursuant to which both parties agreed to negotiate in
good faith with a view to entering into definitive agreements in relation
to the possible acquisition of the entire issued shares of the Offshore
Target Company by the Company from the Offshore Sellers. The terms
and conditions of the acquisition of the Offshore Target Company will be
subject to further agreement between the Company and the Offshore
Sellers. Mr. Li Xianghong, being one of the Sellers, was a non-executive
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director of the Company within 12 months from the date of the PRC
Acquisition Agreement and is therefore a connected person of the
Company. The spouse of Mr. Li, being one of the Sellers, is therefore also
a connected person of the Company. Hence the acquisition of the PRC
Target Company constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details are set out in the
Company’s announcements on 29 January 2015 and 30 July 2014.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other merger, acquisition or
disposal by the Group during the reporting period and up to the date of
approval of these financial statements.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue and results

During the year, the revenue of the Group was HK$1,287 million,
representing a decrease of 18% as compared to HK$1,562 million in last
year. The decrease in the Group’s revenue has mainly arisen from drop
in gold price and decrease in sale revenue. The gross profit of the Group
was 51% (2013: 55%), which is caused by drop in gold price.

During the year, the Group’s EBITDA decreased by 24% to HK$766
million (2013: HK$1,005 million) compared with last year. The Group
recorded a net loss of HK$184 million during the year as compared with
a net profit of HK$181 million in last year. The net loss has arisen from a
fair value loss on the derivative financial instruments of the Company’s
convertible bonds of HK$49 million and the one-off transaction relating to
a loss on early redemption of redeemable preferred shares and warrants
of HK$155 million (details of which are set out in note 6(a) in the financial
statements) and drop in gold price and decrease in sale revenue during
the year as compared with last year.

During the year, the loss per share of the Company was HK4.20 cents
(2013: the earnings per share of HK4.17 cents).
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Selling and Distribution Costs

During the year, the Group’s selling and distribution costs was HK$13
million (2013: HK$13 million), which was approximate with last year.

Administrative Expenses

During the year, the Group’s administrative expenses was HK$170 million
(2013: HK$189 million), representing a decrease by 10% as compared
with last year. The decrease in the Group’s administrative expense has
mainly derived from a decrease in the Group’s staff costs of equity-
settled share-based payment expenses.

Finance Costs

During the year, the Group’s total finance costs was HK$576 million (2013:
HK$334 million), including bank and other borrowings interest of HK$359
million (2013: HK$316 million) and other finance costs of HK$217
million (2013: HK$18 million). The increase in other finance costs was
mainly due to a fair value loss on the derivative financial instruments
of the Company’s convertible bonds of HK$49 million and the one-off
transaction relating to a loss on early redemption of redeemable preferred
shares and warrants of HK$155 million. Further details are set out in note
6(a) in the financial statements.

Deferred Tax

As at 31 December 2014, deferred tax amounted to HK$624 million
(2013: HK$657 million), which represented the estimated tax effects of
the temporary differences arising from acquisitions of gold mines by the
Group in previous years and was calculated at PRC income tax rate of
25% on the increase in fair value of mining rights. The deferred tax liability
balance is subsequently reversed and credited to the consolidated
income statement as a result of tax effect of the amortisation of the
mining rights. Such liabilities are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting principle and therefore no repayment is required.

SHEM D ERA

RER » REBMHEE MO HERAE13EH
BET(ZTE—=F13@&8%r) ik
FHE -

THEH

RER - AEENTRERAIT0E B
T(ZE—ZF 180BEBET)  BEF
A 10% - AEBNTRERRSEBH
RAE B R B E R AR T B T
AL ©

BA TS AR

RERN - REEZRBRVEKANAS768
EBETL(ZE—=F:33458%1) &
BRITREMERFEIB9BEAT(=
T—=F:316B88Bm) REMHBK
KAATEEAT(ZE—=F:1888%
TL) o BB AIE MY AR AR Z
MRESF I ITESBT EAFARIE49
BEATERFELELOELRRRR
WFE BB A& BTSNz — IR

X5 o E—HFBENPHIRKM L) ©
IEIERTE

R-ZB—MFE+-A=+—8  ELHEA
Re24BEET(ZE—=F:65TAH
BT DHEASERBEFERBESRE
MELERUEZR 2 GATRBTE - LI
RIERE N FEZIEINE DA 25% 2 P EIFT
BRBEGAEEE - ZFELHBERER
RARE R IR SRR M SH 2 ISR E R LW T
AFEEER - RFRENEEHENA
Bk MBHEER -



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD 25

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s cash and bank balances (including
pledged deposits) were HK$826 million. Net assets were HK$5,883
million and net current liabilities were HK$1,473 million.

The Group has met its needs of working capital and capital expenditure
mainly through cash generated from operations, bank and other
borrowings and share placement. As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s
bank and other borrowings were repayable within one to eight years
and its fixed rate borrowings over total borrowings was 47%. There
is no significant seasonality of the borrowings demand of the Group.
Further details of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are set out in
note 24 to the financial statements. The Company’s directors are of the
opinion that the Group will be able to finance its future working capital
and financial requirements as further detailed in note 2(b) in the financial
statements.

The Group’s cash and bank balances and bank and other borrowings are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi and United States
Dollars.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2014, the total number of issued ordinary shares
of the Company was 4,601,830,763 shares (31 December 2013:
4,350,727,315 shares), each of HK$0.125 (the “Shares”). During the
year, the Company issued and allotted 250,000,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.125 each at an issue price of HK$0.8. Further
details are set out in the section “Share Capital” in the report of the
directors in this annual report. During the year, the convertible bonds with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$2,000,000 were fully converted
into 1,103,448 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.125 each at
the conversion price of HK$1.8125 each. These shares rank pari passu
in all respects with then existing shares in issue. No share options and
warrants of the Company were exercised during the year. Details of the
Company'’s convertible bonds and warrants are set out in notes 25, 26
and 29(c) in the financial statements.
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher returns to the owners
of the Company that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions. There were no changes in the Group’s approach to
capital management during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debts
divided by total equity plus net debts. The Group’s net debts include
bank and other borrowings, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss and convertible bonds, less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. The Group’s total equity comprises total share capital
and reserves of the Group. At 31 December 2014, the Group’s gearing
ratio was 45%.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge of assets of the Group are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 36(j) to the financial statements in relation to
the Group’s environmental contingencies, the Group did not have any
contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

During the year, there was no material change in foreign exchange
risks of the Group from those disclosed in note 33(e) to the financial
statements. The Group did not enter into any forward foreign exchange
contracts to manage its foreign currency risk during the year as the
Board considered that the Group’s exposure to exchange rate risk was
limited.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed approximately 1,010
employees in the PRC and Hong Kong. All employees are remunerated
according to their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practices. Both on-the-job and professional training are provided as
well. The Group provides retirement benefits in the form of Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance to its employees in Hong Kong. The Group
provides defined contribution retirement benefit schemes organised by
the relevant local government authorities in the PRC to its employees in
the PRC.

PRODUCTION SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We operate in a responsible manner to ensure the health and safety
of our employees and the communities in which we operate. We are
committed to meeting applicable legal requirements and where possible
seek to implement leading industry standards in our operations. We have
established a dedicated safety and environment enhancement team that
is responsible for the occupational health and safety of our mines and
operations.

We are subject to various PRC laws and regulations with respect to the
prevention and treatment of occupational diseases, the prevention of
worksite accidents and the handling of industrial injuries. Production
safety permits have been obtained for our mines.

We have adopted a comprehensive set of internal occupational health
and safety policies for our mines. We conduct staff training, review
internal safety procedures, carry out regular on-site safety inspections
and continuously monitor the implementation of safety policies.
Protective equipment and clothing are regularly provided to our mine
personnel, and we regularly check proper usage of such equipment. In
addition, each of our mines has been equipped with a real-time visual
monitoring system to monitor mine operation and safety. We have also
set up an inspection and detection system in the explosive warehouses
in each of our mines to provide comprehensive protection to the usage
and security of daily explosives.

We require our third-party contractors to possess requisite production
safety licences and relevant qualifications for the work they contract from
us and to undertake appropriate safety measures.
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We have been in compliance with all relevant PRC laws and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety in all material respects. We
have not had any material accident involving death or personal injury at
any of the mines operated by us.

RELATIONSHIP WITH GOVERNMENT AND AWARDS

The Group has established and maintained good relationships with the
local government where the mines are located.

In July 2012, the Group signed the cooperation framework agreement
on mineral resources exploration and development with the local
government of Yunnan Province. According to the agreement, with
the local government’s strong support and assistance on exploration
development and consolidation of gold resources, the Group will have
the priority rights to access to the gold mining assets in the region.
Moreover, the local government will provide support on infrastructure,
including power, water and logistics.

In 2011, the Group also signed the similar framework agreement with
local government of Henan Province. According to the agreement,
the local government will provide full support in terms of the Group’s
consolidation of precious metal resource sector in the region. The group
is also subject to the subsidy policy tailored for foreign investment as well
as the favourable policy for land acquisition and other approvals.

Following the various awards granted to Jinxing Mine, Luanling Mine
and Mojiang Mine in 2012 and 2013, the Group was again granted a
number of provincial and local government awards in 2014. The Mojiang
Mine was granted the award of Top 100 Private Enterprise (“Ef K&
%10038") by the Yunnan Business Enterprise Union (“E R & {bEH
2 "). Luanling Mine was awarded as an Advanced Enterprise in Safety”
(‘B HEESLHER) by the Luoyang City gold authority (/&M ES
/"), whereas Jinxing Mine was awarded as an “Advanced Enterprise
in Operational Management” (‘4% & %& 1 St # BE(37 ") by the Luoyang City
gold authority (/& ESE").
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CORPORATE STRATEGY AND CORPORATE PROSPECT

We believe despite the U.S. ending its quantitative easing program and
commodities at large being less appealing due to the strengthening
U.S. dollar, gold shall remain attractive as a “safe haven” asset and gold
price could potentially be supported by factors such as looser Chinese
monetary policy amid a period of decelerating economic growth,
uncertainty regarding the geopolitical and economic outlook of Europe
and other emerging markets, and the increasing volatility as seen in
global capital markets currently.

A pause of momentum in gold demand growth in China and other Asian
markets was seen in 2014 as those nations need time to digest the vast
accumulation during the previous years. However, the importance of
Asia to the global gold market is now firmly established and continues
to be cemented by its ever improving market infrastructure, including
the launch of the International board of the Shanghai Gold Exchange;
the new Hong Kong gold futures contract announced by the CME; the
introduction of the Kilobar Gold on the Singapore Exchange; and the
Stock of Exchange of Thailand announcing its intention to launch a
physical gold exchange. Furthermore, key growth markets such as China
and India still have low per capita holdings of gold and have a burgeoning
middle class with a strong cultural affinity for gold, which bodes well for
demand for both markets. Central banks seeking to diversify its foreign
exchange reserve portfolio by increasing gold reserves are also a reliable
source of gold demand going forward.

As one of the largest privately owned, China-based gold mining
companies, the Group continues to commit our business strategy as
to: (i) continue to expand production capacity at our existing mines, (ii)
speed up construction work of the capacity expansion and improve
the efficiency of exploration, (i) continue to conduct further exploration
projects in order to increase resources and upgrade reserves, and (iv)
seek opportunity of mergers and acquisitions for high-quality gold mining
assets.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance and procedures to ensure integrity, transparency and
quality of disclosure in order to promote the ongoing development of the
best long term interest of the Company and enhance value for all the
shareholders.

The Company complied with all the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors (“Directors”) of
any non-compliance with the Model Code during the financial year ended
31 December 2014, and they have all confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board. The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation
of strategic plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of
investment projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating
and financial performance, assessment and management of risk to which
the Group is exposed. The managements of the Group are responsible
for the execution of the Board’s decisions and day-to-day operation of
the Group.
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COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2014, the Board consists of 8 Directors, with 5
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Cham (Chairman), Mr. Zhang
Shuguang, Mr. Zhang Liwei, Mr. Chang Yim Yang and Mr. Deng Guoli. 3
independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P, Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Professor Xiao Rong Ge.

Save that Mr. Zhang Shuguang is the brother of Mr. Chang Yim Yang,
there are no financial, business, family or other material relationships
among members of the Board.

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer were held
separately. The role of Chairman was held by Mr. Lam Cham, and Chief
Executive Officer was held by Mr. Zhang Shuguang. The segregation
of duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer ensures a
clear distinction in the Chairman’s responsibility to manage and provide
leadership for the Board and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility to
manage the Company’s business.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance
with the requirements of the Listing Rules. They actively bring their
valuable experience to the Board for promoting the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

As permitted under the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), the Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
Insurance for which Members of the Board and officers of the Company
do not have to bear any excess.
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The term of office of the Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) is 3 years. In accordance with the Articles, at each annual
general meeting of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, the number nearest to,
but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Directors shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

In 2014, the Company held 19 Board meetings and 2 general meetings.
The attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings and general
meetings during the year is as follows:

EX(BREBYIFNTES) NERMA=
F o REARZHTE - RARBEFERR
BEXEL ZozHEESR(HESF
W=k =2 F8 - AIRSKEOERIR
=N —ZABOAREBERE MEBLE
EELB=FHERE K-

R-Z—0F  ARBFTTHIURESR
SEBNMABRRE - FAEMNEER
EFEgemMMBRRAgNhFERDT

Meetings attended/held
&ﬁﬁﬁmﬂ/ﬁ ﬁ/)\ﬂ
Board General
meetings meetings
Name of Directors EzZegld BREAE
Mr. Lam Cham, Chairman N 19/19 2/2
Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Chief Executive Officer SRIER AL - TTHAEZ 19/19 2/2
Mr. Zhang Liwei, Chief Financial Officer ROERSE  BEHFE 19/19 2/2
Mr. Chang Yim Yang RERGLE 18/19 0/2
Mr. Deng Guoli BB & 18/19 0/2
Mr. Li Xianghong FRBEE 1/4 0/2
(Appointed on 1 April 2014 and (RZE—NFNA—REZER
resigned on 9 July 2014) BERZZ—NFtANBET)
Mr. Dai Xiaobing, Co-chairman g/NIhE  BELTE 3/5 0/0
(Resigned on 1 April 2014) (BERZZE—WFNA—HET)
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BREEHK
BBS, PhD, J.P. WEFEE - 181 X F#HT 19/19 2/2
Mr. Chan Kin Sang PREZAE LA 18/19 2/2
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EESE 65 18/19 0/2
The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the company secretary EEEEH AL HHAARAIZ AT WER
of the Company. The draft minutes are circulated to all Members of the % @ EEZERENGEREA - &L

Board for their comments and the final version of the minutes is sent to
all Members of the Board for their records within a reasonable time after
the meeting. The minutes are also open for inspection by all Members of
the Board at the Company’s registered office.

BERGBXTEFTEMEMBNAHETE
BR - MRKERE Jﬁéixﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ2
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DIRECTORS" CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT EEREERRRE

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional ARGIEHEEZBESD2HEBFET LR -
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The AR R BEHESHMEB LELE - XA F)
Company has arranged in-house trainings for Directors in the form B #EBBITHN G LRAESREHRIEIIE
of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of training £ - BESZLHRIHLE - RIFZEFRHE
received by Directors during the relevant period according to the records ~ HIiC&% * EE RN ABAIMEE ZHEIIBE
provided by the Directors is as follows: W

Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and

other relevant topics
TEER  BEERRER

Name of Directors H ek XA

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Lam Cham A& v

Mr. Chang Yim Yang REGEE v/

Mr. Deng Guoli BRI A e 4 v

Mr. Zhang Liwei SRAHETE v

Mr. Zhang Shuguang REEK A v

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES

Professor Wong Lung Tak, HERMIE - EHEE v
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P 1#1 - X Pt

Mr. Chan Kin Sang PREEA S v

Professor Xiao Rong Ge EESE € v
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) under the Board. The Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.R, Mr. Chan Kin Sang and Professor Xiao Rong Ge.
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P. is the Chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s duties are mainly to review the Company’s
financial reports, make recommendations on the appointment, removal
and remuneration of independent auditors and approve audit and audit-
related services, and supervise the Company'’s internal financial reporting
procedures and management policies.

At least two meetings of the Audit Committee will be convened annually
to review the accounting policies, internal control and the relevant
financial and accounting issues, so as to ensure fairness and accuracy of
the Company’s financial statements and other relevant information. The
minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are prepared by the secretary
of the meeting. The draft minutes are circulated to the Committee
Members for comments and the final version of the minutes is sent to
the Committee Members for their records within a reasonable time after
the meeting. The minutes are also open for inspection by the Committee
Members at the Company’s registered office.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were two Audit
Committee meetings held to review the interim and annual financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
and internal control matters. All members of the Audit Committee have
attended all meetings during the year.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”). The Remuneration Committee consists of
two independent non-executive Directors, Professor Wong Lung Tak,
Patrick, BBS, phD, J.£ and Mr. Chan Kin Sang, and one executive Director,
Mr. Lam Cham. Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick is the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The Company has formulated written terms
of reference for the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing and evaluating remuneration packages of the Directors.
Its duties include making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management. It takes into consideration factors such as salaries
and compensation packages paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of Directors. It also takes into account
whether the emoluments offered are appropriate to the duties and
performance of the respective individuals concerned and whether such
emoluments are competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such
individuals.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was two Remuneration
Committee meetings held to review the remuneration policies and made
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages regarding
renewal of service contract of executive directors. All members of the
Remuneration Committee attended the meeting.

Competitive remuneration packages are structured to be commensurate
with individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and performance.

The remuneration of a Director is determined with reference to his
duties and responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market
situation. Details of the emoluments of Directors during the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in note 8 to the financial statements of
this annual report. The emoluments paid to senior management during
the year ended 31 December 2014 were within the following bands:
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) under the Board. Members of the Nomination Committee
consists of two independent non-executive Directors, Professor Wong
Lung Tak, Patrick, BB8S, PhD, J.R. and Mr. Chan Kin Sang, and one
executive Director, Mr. Lam Cham. Mr. Lam Cham is the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board to ensure that the Board has
the balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, knowledge and skills. In identifying suitable
candidates, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates with the
objective criteria with due regard of the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was one Nomination
Committee meeting held to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment of non-executive director of the Company and reviewed
the structure and size and diversity of the Board. All members of the
Nomination Committee attended the meeting.
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Corporate Governance Committee

The Group has established a corporate governance committee (the
“Corporate Governance Committee”). The Corporate Governance
Committee consists of three executive Directors, Mr. Lam Cham, Mr.
Zhang Shuguang and Mr. Zhang Liwei. Mr. Lam Cham is the Chairman
of the Corporate Governance Committee.

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for the following:

° developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to the Board;

° reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

° reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

° developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

° reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was one
Corporate Governance Committee meeting held to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance. All members of the Corporate Governance
Committee attended the meeting.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and ensure that they are prepared
in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of such
financial statements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, Crowe Horwath
(HK) CPA Limited, with regard to their reporting responsibilities on the
Company’s financial statements is set out in the Auditor’s Report on
pages 60 and 61.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors
(including any entity under common control, ownership or management
with the external auditors or any entity that a reasonable and informed
third party having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally) during the
year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows:

Audit services BEZR%E

Non-audit services BT LIRS
Interim review B B
Internal control review M EREL 1B B
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities to maintain a sound and effective
internal control system of the Group to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets. The Group has established
guidelines and procedures for the approval and control of expenditure.
Operating expenditures and capital expenditures are subject to the
overall budget control and approval process prior to commitment.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee of the Company,
conducted the annual review of the effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal controls for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
review covered all material controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. There were no
significant control failings, weaknesses or significant areas of concern
identified during the year which might affect shareholders.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms. Tam Pui Ling, appointed on 16 September
2014, is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well as
communications among Board members, with shareholders and
management. Ms. Tam’s biography is set out in the “Biographical Details
of the Directors and the Senior Management” section on page 44. During
the year, Ms. Tam took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training to update her skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meeting provide the principal channels of communication with its
shareholders. They provide opportunities for shareholders to share views
with the Board.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

Under the Company’s Articles, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene an extraordinary general meeting to address
specific issues specified in such requisition of the Company within 21
days from the date of deposit of written notice. The same requirement
and procedure also apply to any proposal to be tabled at shareholders’
meetings for adoption.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s Principal
Place of Business in Hong Kong at Room 3107-9, Shun Tak Centre
West Tower, 200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong (email:
info@cpmgroup.hk).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there is no change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Cham (##2), aged 56, was appointed as chairman of the
Board and executive director of the Company on 3 March 2011 and
27 January 2004, respectively. Mr. Lam is one of the founders of the
Company. He has over 20 years of experience in business management
and development and is primarily responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and business management. Mr. Lam currently is
a member of the Yunnan Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Zhang Shuguang (FREE>), aged 45, was appointed as executive
director and Chief Executive Officer on 6 September 2011 of the
Company. Mr. Zhang holds a master degree in Engineering from Nippon
Institute of Technology and possesses the professions in mining field. Mr.
Zhang has over fifteen years of experience in mergers and acquisition
and business management. He is primary responsibility for the Group’s
acquisition strategies and operation management. Mr. Zhang is the
brother of Mr. Chang Yim Yang.

Mr. Zhang Liwei (5&k 7 #E), aged 36, was appointed as an executive
director and chief financial officer of the Company on 1 January 2012
and 12 June 2012 respectively. Mr. Zhang was most recently Senior
Vice President with Macquarie Capital. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years’
experience in providing investment-banking services to natural resource
companies on mergers and acquisitions, divestments, debt and equity
capital raisings. Throughout his career, Mr. Zhang has worked for various
international companies, such as N M Rothschild & Sons, Citigroup,
HSBC and Macquarie Capital. Mr. Zhang received his Bachelor degree
in Economics with First Class Honors from London School of Economics
and Political Science in United Kingdom.
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Mr. Chang Yim Yang (R &[%), aged 52, was appointed as executive
director of the Company on 19 June 2008. Mr. Chang was awarded
post-graduate diploma by University of Shenzhen in International
Finance. Mr. Chang is experienced in mergers and acquisitions as well
as capital market operations. He is well versed in investment operations
in Mainland China and has more than twenty years of experience in this
industry. Mr. Chang is the brother of Mr. Zhang Shuguang.

Mr. Deng Guoli (58 Fl), aged 49, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on 3 March 2011. Mr. Deng holds a bachelor’s degree
in Geology from East China Geological Institute, a Master degree in
Business Administration from the Management School of Xi An Jiao Tong
University (FEZ 2 BAZEIEET). He is currently a senior geological
engineer. Mr. Deng worked in Geological Team 211 (Northwestern) of
China’s Nuclear Industry Authority (Bl T3 EZrit ———#E K
Fx) and had respectively held the positions of Geological Technician,
Assistant Engineer, Engineer and Senior Engineer, Project Technology
Supervisor and Project Supervisor. He also served as the Assistant to
Mine Manager at Shanxi Pangjiahe Gold Mine (BRPAEES 7 & IEIE =B
#2). Mr. Deng had long been engaging in the investigations for regional
mineral production, surveys, exploration, mine exploitation and gold
heap leaching. He has extensive experience and knowledge in the areas
of geological evaluation of mines, mine construction, mine selection and
production, and operational management. He was appointed as the
vice-president and chief engineer of the Group on 21 January 2010.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick (Z&EZ), B8S, J.2, aged 67, was
appointed independent non-executive Director of the Company on 19
June 2004. Professor Wong is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising)
in Hong Kong and Managing Practicing Director of Patrick Wong CPA
Limited. He is also a Chartered Secretary and a Certified Tax Advisor. He
has over 30 years’ experience in the accountancy profession. Professor
Wong was accorded Doctor of Philosophy in Business, was awarded a
Badge of Honour by the Queen of England, was appointed a Justice of
the Peace and was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) by the Hong
Kong Government of SAR. He was appointed Adjunct Professor, School
of Accounting and Finance, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University from
2002 to 2013. Professor Wong is currently an independent non-executive
director of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, CC Land Holdings
Limited, Sino Oil and Gas Holdings Limited, Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Holdings Company Limited, Water Oasis Group Limited,
Real Nutriceutical Group Limited, National Arts Entertainment and Culture
Group Limited, Winox Holdings Limited, Excel Development (Holdings)
Limited and Basic Motor Corporation Limited all of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Kin Sang (Bf#4), aged 63, was first appointed as
independent non-executive Director on 19 June 2004. Mr. Chan is
currently the sole proprietor of Messrs. Peter K.S. Chan & Co., Solicitors
and Notaries. Mr. Chan has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1982. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1979. Mr. Chan was admitted as
a notary public in 1997 and as a China-appointed attesting officer
in 2000. Mr. Chan is currently a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Chan is currently an independent non-executive director
of Luxking Group Holdings Limited and non-executive director of
Pan Hong Property Group Limited. The shares of both companies
are listed on Singapore Stock Exchange Limited. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of China Taifeng Beddings Holdings
Limited, Tianjin TEDA Biomedical Engineering Company Limited, Tianhe
Chemicals Group Limited and China Fortune Financial Group Limited and
a non-executive director of Combest Holdings Limited. The shares of all
of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Professor Xiao Rong Ge (E#%®), aged 66, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director and member of Audit Committee
of the Company on 21 January 2010. Professor Xiao obtained his
PhD in Professional Geology from the China University of Geosciences
(Beijing). He is currently a professor of Professional Geology and mentor
to doctoral students at the China University of Geosciences (Beijing).
Professor Xiao has long been conducting research work in the fields of
geology, mineral exploration and economic evaluation. He participated in
the fieldwork of geological inspection of metal minerals by an integrated
exploration team of the geological exploration company of the Ministry
of Metallurgical Industry of China, mainly at the regions of Langshan
mountain Bayan Obo, Manzhouli and Daxinganling of Inner Mongolia,
PRC. He also took part in the geological research work of the Three-River
Area of Yunnan and the system research of meso-cenozoic geological
minerals and sylvite and copper minerals in Yunnan. As a post-doctoral
researcher at the Institute of Geochemistry Chinese Academy of
Sciences, he engaged in geological geochemistry research, focusing
in research on the formation of meso-cenozoic sandstone-type copper
minerals. He is currently specialised in gold and silver deposits research,
and has splendid achievement in hydrothermal fluid and hydrothermal
sedimentary rock research. His monograph named “Mineralisation Rule
and Anticipation of Gold Minerals in the Innermost Part of Xiao Qin
Ling” {/NRISRED S REAIE R 2 B IETEA) was published in 2009.
Professor Xiao had engaged in the projects of the National Science
Foundation of China, basic technical research projects of the Department
of Technology, Ministry of Land and Resources, national geological
inspection projects, open laboratory projects on geochemistry of the
Chinese Academy of Sciences and related provincial projects of the
Department of Land and Resources and various mining enterprises
projects, and was awarded a Third Class Award of Technological
Progress by the Ministry of Geology and Mineral Resources, a First
Class Award and a Second Class Award of Technological Achievement
by the Ministry of Land and Resources. Professor Xiao had engaged in
consultant services for mining investment, valuation for financing, mining
rights valuation and technical inspection, and had conducted valuation of
mining resources for various mining enterprises.
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Senior Management

Mr. Zhou Yuliang (B R), aged 45, is vice president of the Group and
has joined the Group since 2008. Mr. Zhou holds a master’s degree in
finance from Hunan University. Prior to joining the Company, he worked
in financing departments for a few leading banks based in Shenzhen.
Prior to this he served for 6 years in a fund company specialised in
mining sector.

Mr. Wang Junxian (£&%), aged 53, is the chief geological engineer
of the Group and has joined the Group since 2010. He graduated from
Chengdu University of Technology (Bk#3E TAZ) (formerly known as
Chengdu College of Geology (B #BihE ) majored in geology and
mining. Mr. Wang has engineer title. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang
worked for the Chinese People’s Armed Police Gold Force (F B Z =S
BBFx%) and Shanxi Tongguan County Weinan City Gold Mine (%% /& B8 &
B M ETE) as chief engineer and deputy general manager respectively.
Mr. Wang has more than 27 years experience in geology, mining, mine
processing, mining technologies and mine management.

Ms. Tam Pui Ling ((E{f¥;), aged 47, was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 16 September 2014 and an authorised
representative of the Company under the Listing Rules. Ms. Tam is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Tam
holds a bachelor’s degree in social science from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong and a postgraduate diploma in corporate administration
from The City University of Hong Kong. She has extensive experience in
the company secretarial sector and has around 20 years of professional
experience in handling corporate secretarial and compliance matters for
listed companies in Hong Kong.
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Report of the Directors

EFEHS

The Directors hereby submitting the annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set forth in note 17 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set
out in the consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 62 and 63.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out in page 186.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of change
in equity on pages 67 and 68 and note 29 to the financial statements
respectively.

FIXED ASSETS

Particulars of the movements in fixed assets of the Group during the
financial year are set forth in note 14 to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2014 are set out in note 24 to the financial
statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Particulars of convertible bonds of the Group and the Company as at
31 December 2014 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
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WARRANTS

All of the Company’s warrants have been expired or redeemed during the
year as further detailed in notes 26 and 29(c) to the financial statements.
There was no outstanding issued warrants of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2014.

SHARE CAPITAL

On 6 November 2014, Aswell Group Limited (“Aswell Group”), a
substantial shareholder of the Company in which Mr. Lam Cham,
a Director and the Chairman of the Company, was interested in
approximately 59.40% of the total issued share capital as at the date of
the Agreement, the Company and an independent placing agent entered
into a placing and subscription agreement (the “Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Agreement, Aswell Group appointed the placing agent to procure
purchasers for up to 250,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company
beneficially owned by Aswell Group at a placing price of HK$0.8 per
share to not less than six independent placees which are professional,
institutional and/or individual investors and are third parties independent
of and not connected with the Company and its connected persons;
and Aswell Group agreed to subscribe and the Company agreed to
allot and issue 250,000,000 new ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.125 each at a price of HK$0.8 (the “Subscription Shares”). The
Subscription Shares were issued under the general mandate granted
to the Directors by the shareholders of the Company at the AGM dated
30 May 2014. The placing price of HK$0.8 represents (i) the closing
price of HK$0.8 per one issued ordinary share of the Company of
HK$0.125 (“Share”) as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of
the Agreement; (i) a discount of approximately 1.48% to the average
closing price of HK$0.812 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
for the last five consecutive trading days immediately prior to the date of
the Agreement; and (jii) a discount of about 9.71% to the average closing
price of HK$0.886 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the
last thirty consecutive trading days prior to the date of the Agreement.
The placing price was determined after arm’s length negotiation between
the Company, Aswell Group and the placing agent with reference to the
recent market prices and the market condition. The net proceeds was
fully applied by the Group as general working capital during the year. The
Directors consider that the above placing and the subscription would
allow the Company to raise additional funds and widen its shareholder
base. Details are disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6
November 2014.
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Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 29(b) to the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year, no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions was entered into by the Company. Details of the related
party transactions are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. Each
of the said related party transactions mentioned in the note 35 does not
constitute connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Cham, Chairman
Mr. Zhang Shuguang, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Zhang Liwei, Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Chang Yim Yang
Mr. Deng Guoali
Mr. Dai Xiaobing, Co-chairman
(Resigned on 1 April 2014)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Li Xianghong
(Appointed on 1 April 2014 and
resigned on 9 July 2014)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, BBS, PhD, J.P
Mr. Chan Kin Sang
Professor Xiao Rong Ge
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The service contract of Mr. Lam Cham was renewed for a fixed term
of three years commencing from 19 June 2013. The service contract
of Mr. Deng Guoli was renewed for a term of three years from 3 March
2014. The service contract of Mr. Chang Yim Yang was renewed for a
fixed term of three years commencing from 19 June 2014. The service
contract of Mr. Zhang Shuguang was renewed on 6 September 2014
for a term of three years. The service contract of Mr. Zhang Liwei was
renewed on 1 January 2015 for a term of three years. The service
contract of each of the independent non-executive Directors Professor
Wong Lung Tak, Patrick, B8S, PhD, J.° and Mr. Chan Kin Sang was
renewed for a term of three years commencing from 19 June 2013.
The service contract of Professor Xiao Rong Ge as independent non-
executive Director was renewed for a term of three years commencing
from 21 January 2013.

There is no specific clause in all the service contracts providing for the
amount of compensation in case of early termination. Each Director
was subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s
annual general meetings in accordance with the Articles. Pursuant to
Article 87(1) of the Articles, Mr. Lam Cham, Mr. Zhang Shuguang and Mr.
Zhang Liwei shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

Other than as disclosed above, no Director has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

During the year, no consideration was provided to or receivable by third
party for making available the service of director or in any other capacity
while director.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of its independent
non-executive Directors independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES® INTEREST IN SHARES EERTEBIRER G 25
m

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and chief RZ-ZT—WF+_A=+—H  EF KT
executives in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the HBAAFHNARRRAREEZE(ERERE
Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part % & HA & (&6 ([ &5 R EAE &6 ]) XV
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)), which were notified ~ #8) 2 &5 ~ B GO HEHF - HHIR
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8  &:EH KB EKHIEXVEE 7 K8 D EZ
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and/or short positions which ¥ EE A& AR A KB MMEz (21
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or B ZEIRIEEH M HEEHIZ F G E1E
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered k18 A#EH MR K SAR) + SiRE
in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the 7 % & B 1§61 3 352 16 2 #3 7E B # A\ 3%
Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are &Pl & it 2 # % SRIBZ%ESFAIZA
as follows: MERRNRI MRz S E T T -

Number of
underlying
shares held
Approximate under equity
Nature of Total percentage derivatives (d)
interest number of of interest Long/ AR AT £
Name of Directors and capacity the Shares B4R short position IEHEZ
BExEps EatERSH VL BOk R/ %R HERGHAE ()
Mr. Lam Cham Corporate (a) 257,196,670 5.59% Long
Nt N7l (a) 5o}
Personal (a) 7,400,000 0.16% Long 20,000,000
fEA () iR
Mr. Chang Yim Yang Corporate (b) 498,432,382 10.72% Long
REREAE ~alb) ey}
Personal (b) 132,370,000 2.88% Long 20,000,000
TELA (o) e
Mr. Zhang Shuguang Personal 13,732,000 0.30% Long 20,000,000
REENR A A 5o}
Mr. Deng Guoli Personal - - - 20,000,000

HEIRIE L fEA
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Number of
underlying
shares held
Approximate under equity
Nature of Total percentage derivatives (d)
interest number of of interest Long/ AR A AT 4
Name of Directors and capacity the Shares B4 %% short position IEEEZ
BExps EEtEREND IR B BOL ¥R/ %R HERGHAE )
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Personal (c) 800,000 0.02% Long 3,000,000
Patrick, B8S, PhD, J.P fELA () 0E
HERHIER - IEHNEE -
1+ - AP~
Mr. Chan Kin Sang Personal (c) 800,000 0.02% Long 3,000,000
PR K4 EA (c) A
Professor Xiao Rong Ge Personal (c) - - - 3,000,000
RSB 6 fEA(c)
(@  Aswell Group Limited (“Aswell Group”) is a company beneficially owned as (@)  Aswell Group Limited ([ Aswell Group ])

to approximately 59.4% by Mr. Lam Cham. Accordingly, Mr. Lam Cham is
taken to be interested in the Shares held by Aswell Group.

Apart from his indirect interests through Aswell Group, 7,400,000 Shares
are directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Lam Cham.

Lead Pride Holdings Limited (“Lead Pride”) is wholly owned by Mr. Chang
Yim Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Chang Yim Yang is taken to be interested in the
Shares held by Lead Pride.

Apart from his indirect interests through Lead Pride, 132,370,000 Shares
are directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chang Yim Yang.

Mr. Chan Kin Sang, Professor Xiao Rong Ge and Professor Wong Lung
Tak, Patrick are independent non-executive Directors.

These represent the interests in underlying shares in respect of the share
options granted by the Company, the details of which are set out in the
sub-section entitled “Share Options Schemes” below.

A—EEMEEEEREAH59.4% K
wZzARle At MELEEHRRAR
Aswell Group FTiF B KRt P HE B HEzs ©

B 3% 8 Aswell Group 15 8 B #2551
Mz EEE R EmEEAR 7,400,000 B A%

{/‘\ °

Lead Pride Holdings Limited ([Lead
Pride]) BREBEELEHE - Ht
RES K EWR AN Lead Pride T A
R R o

B iE i Lead Pride A M E#E =N - R
BGtEEE N EREA 132,370,000 f%
B4 ©

BREAESSE - HREBBRLEERERE
BRBIULIFPITES -

BETS AR R 2 BB R 2 R %
It - ARAFBERN RS [FERE

HE HE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company nor their associates, had
any interest in long position or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provision of the
SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which required, pursuant to
the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEMES

The Company has two share option schemes: the 2004 Share Option
Scheme and the 2014 Share Option Scheme.

The 2004 Share Option Scheme was adopted by a resolution passed
by the Company’s shareholders on 18 September 2004 whereby the
directors of the Company were authorised, at their discretion, to invite
directors and employees of the Group, to take up options to subscribe
for shares of the Company up to a maximum of 160,000,000 shares.
By a resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders on 26 May
2011, the Company refreshed the limit in respect of the granting of
share options under the 2004 Share Option Scheme and all other share
options scheme up to 10% of the total number of ordinary shares of
the Company in issue. The 2004 Share Option Scheme would be valid
and effective for a period of 10 years ended on 17 September 2014.
By a resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders on 30 May
2014, the 2004 Share Option Scheme was terminated and thereafter
no further options would be offered or granted under the 2004 Share
Option Scheme. However, outstanding options granted under the 2004
Share Option Scheme remain valid and exercisable. The exercise price of
options under the 2004 Share Option Scheme is at least the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on which an offer
of an option is made by the Company to the grantee (which date
must be a business day);

THEESBERERERAA

BRAEPTIREESN  R-F—F+ A
=t+—B  ARAEFHITHAZNEE
BARA R RISEARBOAE 2 D - 105
B SfEHF - BEER TAREREE
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(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and

(i)~ the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, no options have been
granted or exercised under the 2004 Share Option Scheme. Details of
the outstanding share options as at 31 December 2014 under the 2004
Share Option Scheme are set out on page 54 of this section.

The 2014 Share Option Scheme was adopted by a resolution passed
by the Company’s shareholders on 30 May 2014. The 2014 Share
Option Scheme provides that the board of the directors of the Company
(the “Board”) may specify the eligible participants to whom the options
shall be granted. The eligible participants include directors, employees,
suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and advisers of the Company
and its subsidiaries and any person who, in the sole discretion of the
Board, has contributed or may contribute to the Group in recognition of
their contribution to the Group. The Board shall determine the exercise
price of option in accordance with the terms of the 2014 Share Option
Scheme, which cannot in any event fall below the price stipulated
in the Listing Rules. The maximum number of the ordinary shares of
the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2014 Share Option Scheme and any other schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% (i.e. 435,127,903
shares) of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue as at the date
when the 2014 Share Option Scheme is approved and adopted. The
2014 Share Option Scheme was effective on 4 June 2014 and will
remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date. No
share option under the 2014 Share Option Scheme of the Company was
granted during the year.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of the Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue.
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Offer of an option (“Offer”) shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the option to which the
Offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and to have taken
effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance of
the Offer duly signed by the Grantee together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the granting
thereof is received by the Company within such period as the Board may
determine and specify in the Offer.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the 2004 Share Option Scheme
and 2014 Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of ordinary
shares of the Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2004
Share Option Scheme and 2014 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

As at the date of issue of this annual report, the aggregate number of
Shares in respect of which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme was 215,600,000,
representing approximately 4.69% of the existing issued share capital of
the Company.
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Details of the share options granted and remained outstanding as at
31 December 2014 under the 2004 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

ATAR-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—HB#E=
TTMFEBREEE TERE RHART
BB 2 715

Number of option shares
BRESR2RGBA
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January 31 December
2014 Granted Lapsed  Exercised 2014
Exercise —E-NF during during during —E-PE
Date of grant Price -R-H theyear  theyear  theyear T=A=1+-H
Rt 18 HATE AR FREAR FRTR HA{TE
HK$
BT
Mr. Lam Cham 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
WS —Z——%tAZTNR
Mr. Zhang Shuguang 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
RELLE —E——5+A-TN\R
Mr. Chang Yim Yang 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
RERH LA ZE——5+AZT/\RB
Mr. Deng Guoli 28 QOctober 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000
HEMELE E——%tAZTNE
Mr. Dai Xiaobing 28 October 2011 1.51 20,000,000 - (20,000,000) (a) - -
g Exk “T—5+A-TN\R
Professor Wong Lung Tak, 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
Patrick, 885, PhD, 4P “2——5+AZT/\RB
BREHR - HEAEE
Bt A FHT
Mr. Chan Kin Sang 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
RREEEEE “T——5+A-TN\R
Professor Xiao Rong Ge 28 October 2011 1.51 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000
EESE 6 —Z——%+tAZTNE
Other senior management 28 October 2011 1.51 161,100,000 - (14,500,000) - 136,600,000
staff and employees “E—F+AZt/\A
At mRERARREE
Total &5t 260,100,000 - (34,500,000) - 225,600,000
Note: BRE

(@  Mr. Dai Xiaobing resigned as Co-chairman and executive Director of the (@) E/NEEXEER T —WFMNA—H#Et
Company on 1 April 2014 and the share option he entitled was lapsed FARARFBMEERRATES - AL
accordingly. A B R AR AR SR A
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The above share options are of an exercise price HK$1.51 per share with
the exercisable period from 28 October 2013 to 27 October 2017.

The share options granted are recognised in the financial statements.
The information on measurement of the fair value of share options is set
out in note 31 to the financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the financial year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the financial year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, as far as known to the Directors, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
who had 5% or more interests in the shares or underlying shares in
respect of equity derivatives of the Company that would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Long position in the shares of the Company

Name of shareholders

BRREHE

1. Munsun Assets Management Ltd.
BREEBEABR AT
2. Lead Pride Holdings Limited

3. Aswell Group Limited

4. The Bank of New York Mellon
Corporation

Nature of
interest

and capacity
EmME
k&4

Corporate (Note 1)
=R (PEET)
Corporate (Note 2)
EE (M 2)
Corporate (Note 3)
EE (151 3)
Corporate (Note 4)
=B (PiEE4)

FERR

R-_ZE—NE+-F=+—08  BEEFHN
M RN BIRIEE F KBS 505 336
BEFENELMATRE  BRAQRES
ITERBRESN + THIALTRARRA R AR
ROTHETEABRAAR G R H 5% = LA L4
o M EERBEREES KRB GRS
XV EBZE 2 }2 373 &b 2 3R TE MARRIHEE -

RARBRG 2R

Number of
ordinary shares Total
of the Company Percentage

PN
EERRGOEE BEDL
672,230,000 14.61%
493,432,382 10.72%
257,196,670 5.59%
232,171,936 5.05%
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Notes:

1. Munsun Assets Management Ltd. in its capacity as an investment
manager held 672,230,000 shares, of which 251,410,000 shares and
260,050,000 shares (representing 5.46% and 5.65% of the issued shares
of the Company) were held by its managed funds, Munsun Umbrella Trust-
Munsun Stable Growth Fund (of which TMF (Cayman) Ltd. acts as Trustee)
and Munsun Global Mining Investment Fund LP respectively.

2. Lead Pride Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chang
Yim Yang.

3. Aswell Group is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability which is legally and beneficially owned as to 59.4% by Mr.
Lam Cham.

4. The Bank of New York Mellon had long position in 232,171,936 shares and
232,027,936 shares in lending pool. Since The Bank of New York Mellon
is wholly owned by The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation, The Bank
of New York Mellon Corporation is also taken to be interested in the shares
held by The Bank of New York Mellon pursuant to the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above in this section, as at 31 December 2014,
the Company has not been notified of any other persons (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors of any non-
compliance with the Model Code during the financial year ended
31 December 2014, and they have all confirmed their full compliance
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please refer to the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 39 for
details.

COMPETING BUSINESS INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors and their respective associates had any interest
in a business which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles although
there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in the
Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

—  the largest supplier 16%

- five largest suppliers totally 57%
Sales

—  the largest customer 25%

—  five largest customers totally 68%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year.
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PEESBERERER DA

COMMITMENTS

Details of commitments of the Group are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 37 to the
financial statements.

AUDITOR

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe Horwath”) who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to
the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint Crowe Horwath as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam Cham
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR - G

N\ Crowe Horwath.

To the Shareholders of China Precious Metal Resources Holdings
Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 185 which
comprise the consolidated and Company statements of financial position
as at 31 December 2014 and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

BEEEE &B FMEBAERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

&8 REE BIEET7R iSER09%E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s result and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2015

Leung Chun Wa

Practising Certificate Number P04963
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Consolidated Income Statement

,%/Tl:l EV%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —NF+_-A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA 51 7R )

2014 2013
—E-NF —F—=%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Revenue g 4(a) 1,286,873 1,562,409
Cost of sales $HE BN (627,373) (705,249)
Gross profit ER 659,500 857,160
Other revenue HAaA 5 19,010 8,755
Other net (loss)/gain Hib (B518) W FHE 5 (364) 1,390
Selling and distribution costs SHE R AR (13,529) (13,380)
Administrative expenses THER (170,391) (189,362)
Profit from operations ARER A 494,226 664,563
Finance costs BAFE R AR 6(a) (576,431) (334,510)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BFLET (B51E) 5 F 6 (82,205) 330,053
Income tax Fris i 7 (101,820) (148,670)
(Loss)/profit for the year EAREE AEIE

attributable to owners of FE(BR) &R

the Company 10 (184,025) 181,383

HK cents HK cents
AL AL

(Loss)/earnings per share R (BBR) 27 12

Basic HAR (4.20) 417

Diluted e (4.20) 417

The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements. FT1EF 185 B B AN BHRE 2 —
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

.-/T = %E”&ﬁﬂ%‘%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HEZZ

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars S 517K )

(Loss)/profit for the year

Other comprehensive
(loss)/income for the year
(net of tax)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on
translation of financial
statements arising
during the year

Reclassification adjustment
relating to a subsidiary
deregistered during the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/
income for the year attributable
to owners of the Company

—MEF-—A=t—HIFE

FE(FHR) B

FEHME2ME
(B#8) W
(HFRBLIR)

HIZ A REEFT 7 HE
ERmIRA

REE
BEMBRE
EEZENZRE

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁq*ﬁﬁf‘ﬁ%
RAZEFHDRHAE

RRBFER B
FERE(ER),
WA EE

2014
—E-NEF

HK$°000
TER

(184,025)

(69,057)

(253,082)

2013
—ZF—=

HK$’000

TET

181,383

103,143

278,896

The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

an (= jﬁ#j(/ﬂ%%

As at 31 December 2014 A —Z—

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars SAEEFII 7R )

mE+—A=+—H

2014 2013
—2-lF =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Intangible assets WA E 13 6,068,671 6,243,418
Fixed assets EE &= 14 2,405,953 2,220,731
Construction in progress TEETRE 15 1,773,589 1,025,844
Deposits paid for gold mining O TR & R
and exploration rights Fiftie s 16 875,796 571,361
Deposits paid for fixed assets BT EEMNIRSE 48,950 57,048
Other deposits Hihize 38,052 38,046
Pledged deposits BEEFR 20 152,552 -
11,363,563 10,156,448
Current assets RBEE
Inventories TE 18 114,072 109,499
Trade and loans and other FEHQEE%’(&E%’(DA&
receivables, deposits HAth pE U ERIR
and prepayments 'ﬂzﬁ SSENNE 19 617,207 469,759
Pledged deposits BTN 20 641,928 458,340
Cash and cash equivalents BEMIBESZEEY 21 31,479 522,285
1,404,686 1,559,883
Current liabilities =R
Trade and other payables JEA BRSNS H b FE A5 IR 22 462,448 322,063
Tax payable e iR 24,465 36,466
Bank and other borrowings IRITRHEAMER 24 1,627,370 1,953,500
Financial liabilities at fair value FERBERIEAFEYER
through profit or loss ZERmBE 23 763,289 -
Derivative financial instruments TEEmIA 26 - 35,668
2,877,572 2,347,697

FT1EFE 185 B2 Wi BAMIEHRE 2 —

#B1n -

The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements.
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R TR A PR A A

2014 2013
—EF-nmE —F—=%
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TFET
Net current liabilities REBEEFEE (1,472,886) (787,814)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERS 9,890,677 9,368,634
Non-current Liabilities FRBEME
Bank and other borrowings RITREME K 24 2,287,259 1,654,258
Convertible bonds IR E S 25 1,022,858 1,015,839
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 26 74,309 118,539
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBEE 28(a) 623,710 657,151
4,008,136 3,445,787
NET ASSETS EEFE 5,882,541 5,922,847
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARF#EE 29
Share capital A& 575,229 543,841
Reserves His 5,307,312 5,379,006
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE AATEEA
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY PR 5,882,541 5,922,847

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEEFER _ZT—AF=A=THZEL

30 March 2015. FFRIEE o
Mr. Lam Cham Mr. Zhang Shuguang
Mz x4k REXEE
Director Director
3 4
The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements. FT1EF1B BB ANBRE 2 —
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Statement of Financial Position

B B AR L 2R

As at 31 December 2014 R=—Z—FE+-_A=+—AH

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars SAEEFII 7R )

Non-current assets FRBEE )

Investments in subsidiaries R B AR ZIRE 17 5,735,201 5,084,898

Deposit paid for fixed assets RETEEEMTIZS 3,162 3,162

Pledged deposits BT 20 2,516 -
"""""""""""""""""""""""" 5,740,879 | 5,088,060
Currentassets  wE&E oot

Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 19 433,055 392,420

Other receivables, deposits and HuEWRIE  Ze Kk

prepayments TARTRIE 19 8,345 550

Pledged deposits [ EEER 20 - 35,911

Cash and cash equivalents BeNIBEZEEY 21 25,147 6,713
"""""""""""""""""""""""""" 466,547 | 435,594
e L - I T

Amounts due to subsidiaries FETB B A BRI 22 79,928 52,745

Other payables Hib e zaa 22 19,547 12,337

Bank and other borrowings RITREME R 24 - 140,400

Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 26 - 35,668
25 - A 241,150
“Netcurrentassets  nwEa&E®sE 0| 367,072 | 194,444
Totalassets less current labilities =~~~ MEERnDEE 00 | ¢ 6,107,951 | 5282,504
" Non-current liabilites ~~ Fames 0| 77T T

Bank and other borrowings BT REMER 24 797,963 =

Convertible bonds AR E 25 1,022,858 1,015,839

Derivative financial instruments PTHESRTE 26 74,309 118,539
"""""""""""""""""""""""" 1,895,130 | 1,134,378
CNETASSETS  aEEm 1T 4,212,821 | 4,148,126

CAPITAL AND RESERVES RA R 29

Share capital PN 575,229 543,841

Reserves H1E 3,637,592 3,604,285
CTOTALEQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE A 4A=®EsA | T

TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY PEfh RS 45 4,212,821 4,148,126
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on KEEFGR T —AF=A=THZEL
30 March 2015. FFA[ B o

Mr. Lam Cham Mr. Zhang Shuguang
Mz EE REER 4
Director Director

The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements.
Bhtn -
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ERERRAA

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
.-/T = Eﬁﬁ ”Eﬁ %—%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE T —MNF+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars ABEESIIR)

Convertible

Warrants  bond equity
Share Share Statutory reserve reserve Capital Exchange Retained Total
capital premium reserves AREE  TERES reserve reserve profits equity
s Rkite®  EERE e RERG  GARK EifE  REER  RE4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr BT AT BT iy ThE ThT T

(note29b))  (note 29(d)i) (note 29(c)(v))  (note29(c)  (notes25&  (note 29(cl(il)  (note 29(cl)i)

(ME20an) (ME2odi)  (H&29e) (255 (o)) (B 29(c)i)

At1 January 2014 R-E-mE-F-A 543,841 4,299,250 116,606 1,260 2,207 123,614 265,91 580,229 5,922,847
Changes in equity for 2014: “E-MEEREE.
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - - (184,029) (184,029)
Other comprehensive TERENRERE

loss for the year - - - - - - (69,067) - 69,067)
Total comprehensive TEELEAEELE

loss for the year - - - - - - (69,067) (184,029) (253,082)
Issue of new shares BAERG 31,250 168,750 - - - - - - 200,000
Shares issued Upon RukEsaE

conversion of convertiole kvt

bonds 138 1,906 - - @ - - - 2,040
Equiy-settled share- PR ER

based payments R - - - - - 16,808 - - 16,808
Lapse of share options BIREsM - - - - - (6,299) - 6,299 -
Expiry of varrants AREESS - - - (1,250) - - - 1,250 -
Transaction cosis aftioutable o B{THTRIAEL

issue of new shares THHA - (6,072) - - - - - - (6,072)
Appropriation of safety BNTRHERES

production fund - - 11183 - - - - (11,183 -
Utlisation of safety gEZREERS

production fund - - (5,601) - - - - 5,601 -
Appropriation of AT RSEE

stafutory surplus reserve - - 8728 - - - - (8,728) -
31 December 2014 —B-ME+ZA=t-R 575,229 4,463,834 130915 - 2,208 134,023 186,8%4 389,443 5,882,541

The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements. FT1EF1B BB ANBRE 2 —
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREREER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 BE =T —NF+=-A=+—HBILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA 51 7R )

Convertible

Warrants  bond equity
Share Share Statutory reserve reserve Capital  Exchange Retained Total
capital  premium reserves ARER  TRRES reserve reserve profits equity
s R EE HERE s EERA A EXGfE REER ERan
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr ‘ BT T BT ThE oL

(note 29b)  (note 29(d)i) (ote 29(d)iv)  (mote29(c))  (notes25&  (note 29(dl(i))  (note 29(c)i)

29(dv)
R (Bskooin) Pz 29(a)i)

(PrzE 0 (BFzE29(d)i)

At1 January 2013 R=%-ZF-5-A 543,841 4,299,250 53,763 1,250 6,877 85,297 168,438 456,352 5,605,068

Changesin equity for 2013 ~ —F-=EzER%EH:

Proft for the year EEER - - - - - - - 8183 181383
Other comprehensive income ERA2ENE
for the year - - - - - - 97,513 - 97,513

Total comprehensive income ERRENEER
for the year - - - - - - 97,513 181,383 278,896

Equity-settled share-based RS RS

payments b - - - - - 3,217 - - 38,217
Issue of convertible bonds BasRES - - - - 2,207 - - - 2,207
Redemption of convertible bonds BRI AT ER - - - - (6877) - - 5,336 (1541)
Appropriation of safety BRR2EERS

production fund - - 15,133 - - - - (15,133 -
Utlisation of safety productionfund 1B Z24EES - - (12,445) - - - - 12,445 -
Appropriation of statutory ENZiTRREE

surplus reserve - - 60,154 - - - - (60,154) -
At 31 December 2013 R-8-z£+-8=1-8 543,841 4,299,250 116,605 1,250 2,207 123,514 265,951 580,229 5,922,847

The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements. FT1EF 185 B B AN BHRE 2 —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

l‘/j- I:I IE ﬁ/]“}i%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE T —NFE+_A=+—HIFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA 7R)

2014 2013
— & —T—=%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FRT FHT
Operating activities RETEE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEET (BB, % (82,205) 330,058
Adjustments for: FHE
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B A EH 6(c) 180,630 253,343
— Depreciation and amortisation of - e EESTE R
fixed assets 6(c) 101,977 89,393
— Finance costs - ISR 6(a) 576,431 334,510
— Equity-settled share-based payments —- DABRELE B B RS 6(b) 16,808 38,217
— Interest income - FBIA 5 (10,681) (2,654)
— Gain on disposal of fixed assets - HEBRTEE W 5 (6) -
— Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary - B ARz M 5 - (5,630)
— Waiver of other payables - ERRE A FER FRIE 5 - (1,519)
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
Increase in inventories FEEM (4,573) (19,304)
Increase in trade and loans and other R LA B R R B SR A e L At LSRRI
receivables, deposits and prepayments %e NFEA FRIEE A0 (282,388) (138,716)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FEATBR R R E P 5RIE
other payables 0 CRd) 157,373 (150,417)
Cash generated from operations RETHEEZRS 653,366 727,276
Tax paid [=EREE]
- PRC income tax paid - BT EATER (134,610) (264,442)
Net cash generated from RETHEE R FHE
operating activities 518,756 462,834
The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements. FT1EF1B BB ANBRE 2 —
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

I‘/j_ ‘:l ﬁﬁ/]’bé%

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HE—F
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars SAEEFII 7R )

—E+ZA=F+—HILFE

2014 2013
—Z2—MmEF —=—=
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT T
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BEETEEMNK (7,551) (20,455)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HERBTEEENSHIE 21 -
Payment for construction in progress EETIRMNR (1,051,427) (1,253,264)
Payment for purchase of intangible assets B A& E N (51,582) (66,8995)
Deposits paid for gold mining S R ERIR MR TR E
and exploration rights Frftiz & (300,197) (98,063)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid REEEEM RS
for fixed assets B (E) 7,183 (2,723)
Increase in other non-current deposits Hh3EmEN RS M (651) (28,265)
Interest received B UFLE 10,681 2,654
Net cash used in investing activities RETEHMAZESTE (1,393,523) (1,467,011)
Financing activities RLEEE
Proceeds from new shares issued REREITHRG 2 FT{S 08 200,000 -
Proceeds from bank and RIT R E A BRI HIE
other borrowings 2,934,284 3,255,347
Repayment of bank and BEEFITREMER (BER
other borrowings (including early iﬁ*@—fﬁ*@fﬁﬁﬂx&
redemption of redeemable preferred RxtEE (MFE24(2)))
share and warrants (note 24(a)) (2,734,858) (1,585,343)
Proceeds from financial liabilities EBREREATE
at fair value through profit or loss HBE Z &R B EFTSRIE 750,380 -
Net proceeds from issuance of REBITARRES
convertible bonds 2 TS RIE R - 989,661
Payment for early redemption of 12 FHE B AT R R E 5 3R
convertible bonds - (125,000
Repayment of non-current payables BIEREEN IR - (421,177)
Payment for warrants Hﬁ%%ﬁ‘i‘ﬁ E4 (35,911) -
Payment for transaction costs E%‘i‘ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
attributable to new share issued LB (6,072) -
Increase in pledged deposits Rl Gl (336,140) (373,880)
Finance costs paid BB SRR (376,806) (320,925)
Net cash generated from METHELE2HSFE
financing activities 394,877 1,418,683
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬂi&*ﬂﬁ%f‘%
cash equivalents W) I InEEE (479,890) 414,506
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BzHER
at 1 January BEEEY 522,285 99,190
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREH &
changes (18,924) 8,589
Cash and cash equivalents Rt+-ZA=+—HzHEEK
at 31 December HeEEY 21 23,471 522,285

The notes on pages 71 to 185 form part of these financial statements.
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FRESBERERERAR

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated JAZS® 3R » B BB FTHEIM)

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Precious Metal Resources Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability. The
address of its registered office and principal place of business are
disclosed in the corporate information section of the annual report.
The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) are
principally engaged in mining and processing of gold ores and sale
of gold products and providing financing services to customers
under finance lease and factoring arrangements in The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) during the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance
with transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and
Audit”, which are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11
to that Ordinance. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”). A summary
of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESHEER @

(a) Statement of compliance (Continued) () BiREH @)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting year of the Group and the Company. Note
3 provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from the initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting years reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014 comprise the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis, except financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments that are carried at fair value. Items included in the
financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries in Hong
Kong is Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) and that of its subsidiaries
in Mainland China is Renminbi (“RMB”). For the purposes of
presenting the consolidated financial statements, the Group has
adopted Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEHER@m

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued) (b) B #EFR 3’ 2 B EZE (@)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have a significant effect on the financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 36.

In preparing the financial statements, the Company’s directors
have considered the future liquidity of the Group. The Group
incurred a consolidated net loss attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$184,025,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014, and, as at that date, the Group had net current liabilities
of HK$1,472,886,000. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty which may cast a doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Nevertheless, the
directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to finance
its future working capital and financial requirements given that:

(i) One of the principal banks of the Group granted revolving
three-year banking facilities with an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB2.3 billion (equivalent to approximately
HK$2.9 billion) to the Group, of which approximately
RMB1.3 billion (equivalent to approximately HK$1.6 billion)
has not been utilised as at 31 December 2014 and up to the
date of approval of these financial statements;

(i) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company
issued bonds with net proceeds of HK$192 million and the
Group has been granted new bank loans of HK$50 million
and renewed bank loans of HK$63 million. Details are set
out in notes 37(b) and (c) in these financial statements;
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

)

(iv)

The Group is currently in discussion with various financial
institutions for new loan facilities;

A substantial shareholder and executive director of the
Company, Mr. Chang Yim Yang, has given an irrevocable
undertaking to the Company that he will provide continuing
financial support as is necessary to enable the Group to
meet its liabilities as and when they fall due; and

Based on a cash flow forecast prepared by the Group’s
management for the twelve months ending 31 December
2015, the Group will be able to generate adequate cash
flows from its continuing operations and to obtain sufficient
fundings to meet the debts of the Group as and when they
fall due in the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014 on a going concern basis. The financial
statements have not reflected any effects of adjustments if the
Group was unable to continue to operate as a going concern.

(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Subsidiaries (Continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

2(h)(ii).

(d) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

() Mining rights

Mining rights with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment
loss (see note 2(h)(ii)). The mining rights are amortised over
the estimated useful lives of the mines, in accordance with
the production plans of the mines concerned, by using the
unit of production method based on the actual production
volume over the estimated total proved and probable
reserves of the gold mines.

(ii) Exploration rights and assets

Exploration rights and assets are stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Exploration rights and assets include
the cost of acquiring exploration rights, topographical
and geological surveys, exploratory drilling, sampling
and trenching and activities in relation to commercial and
technical feasibility studies.

Exploration and evaluation costs include expenditure
incurred to secure further mineralisation in existing ore
bodies as well as in new areas of interest. Expenditure
incurred prior to accruing legal rights to explore an area is
written off as incurred.

2.

FTESTHEHE @
(c) B 2 7] ()

BEGIERR AR  ERBA
AZREGEEAMBHRERTE
HtE  EEBBEEBIERLES
1o REARMZERGEHR RS
EBREREAREBNEER 5
EEZERREREN LR
HRAVBHRRE2EIRE - &
BN ZREL 2 KREREE
Z AR ERE R s ARF
HE AR I S 55 1 H IR E 2 15
SRR

KRB BN KRETERAK B A
R Z BB TR AR ERIEEE
FIER (R BTEE2(n)(i)) °

() BLEE (BRI

(i) PRIEHE

BERERERIRBERET
WA R #E8H RAET R
FTHREE 1B (RHIRE 2(n)ii) A
iR - RIBAEBERESNEER
B RBEDRZEBESE
AR EAERESBE AT
RBENBEREREBEER
EeETRAEEEMAETE
g o
(i) FKEEREE

R N B B SRR AR (T
AR RN - R RA
EREWERERE HER
H I EDRI - BDERFIAR - M
N 4R K B 3 R B = AT
TIERTT A R EE AR o

HRMFERABEE—F
B T ol 2 B K )3
BELZAX - BE— @t
BB EARBEEAMELZH
ST BRI -



76  ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F3R

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated A 5K » B B A FTFESM)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

(i) Exploration rights and assets (Continued)

When it can be reasonably ascertained that an exploration
property is capable of commercial production, exploration
and evaluation costs capitalised are transferred to either
mining structures or mining rights and depreciated/
amortised by the unit of production method based on the
proved and probable mineral reserves. Costs incurred
for exploration which can be directly attributable to the
development of mining structures are transferred to mining
structures when the exploration reaches the stage of
commercial production. All other costs will be transferred to
mining rights. Exploration rights and assets are written off to
profit or loss if the exploration property is abandoned.

(e)Fixed assets

Fixed assets, other than construction in progress, are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses (see note 2(h)(ii)).

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

2.

TESHBE @
) B EE (FFERIN) @)

(i) FRIBREREE (&)

e ABEEHREETR
ABREE B2 BT
B 3 A R A A SR M 25
AR - BB A
BEBELMEEEEET
MATE, 5 - BRRED
2 B 6% 0L 7 3 77 7 2 B IR
B SRR R
3 40 B B G 2 SRR
SEY o B EL A PR B A SR
WA WRYREE R
% BIRBIER RS £
S MBS -

e BEEEE

BEEEE (ERIRBIN BB
BT A R AT A ITE R R
OREEE (I E) (R M 2h)i)
R ISAR R KR TIER ©

EHEEBE L REFEKIND
R A EREEEE S AKX
ER 00 B 5 2 e e B SR B R S 4B K
MOBBREASETICETREE
DRSS SRMEHERKLEH
B fied o 112 17 B B 4t B 1O A

LHE ABERESBEALY
HE -

AfgME @ REHENR(BREE
il —REFERFRIR) I HE R KRR
MEZz T MEFE D 2 HERE
SmEHRFEZDELHIDEE
T RBFED



CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD 77
FRESBERERERAR

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEHER@m

(e) Fixed assets (Continued) e EEEE @)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as interests in leasehold land
held for own use under operating leases and included in fixed
assets in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The cost of self-constructed items of fixed assets includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the cost of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowings costs (see
note 2(w)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of fixed assets are determined as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
fixed assets, other than mining structures, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion.

— leasehold land classified as held for finance lease is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

— Machinery and equipment 5-10years
—  Motor vehicles 4 - 8 years
—  Office equipment, fixtures and fittings 3 - 5years
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESHEER @

(e) Fixed assets (Continued) (e)EEEE (@)

Depreciation of mining structures is provided to write off the cost
of the mining structures. The mining structures are depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the mines, in accordance with
the production plans of the mines concerned, by using the unit
of production method based on the actual production volume
over the estimated total proved and probable reserves of the
gold mines.

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have different useful lives,
the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

(f) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, mining structures
and plant and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss (see
note 2(h)(ii). Cost comprises construction expenditure and other
direct costs attributable to such projects, if the amount of capital
expenditures and the time involved to complete the construction
are significant. Construction in progress is classified to the
appropriate category of fixed assets when completed and ready
for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially complete and ready for its
intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0) Leases
(a) The Group as leasee

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets held by the Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following
exceptions:

— land held for own use under an operating lease, the
fair value of which cannot be measured separately
from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being
held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that
the lease was first entered into by the Group, or
taken over from the previous lessee.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leases (Continued)

(a) The Group as leasee (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments of such assets are included
in fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 2(e). Impairment losses are accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy as set out
in note 2(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each reporting period.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in
the reporting period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(9) Leases (Continued)

(b) The Group as lessor

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an
asset and the leasing back of the same asset. The lease
payment and the sale price are usually interdependent
because they are negotiated as a package. The accounting
treatment of a sale and leaseback transaction depends
upon the type of lease involved. If the leaseback is a finance
lease, the transaction is a means whereby the lessor
provides finance to the lessee, with the asset as security.

When the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables and
initial direct costs is included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as trade and loans receivables. Any
unguaranteed residual value is also recognised at the
inception of the lease. The difference between the sum of
the minimum lease payment receivables, initial direct costs,
the unguaranteed residual value and their present value is
recognised as unearned finance income. Unearned finance
income is recognised over the period of the lease using the
effective interest rate method.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of trade and loans and other receivables

Trade and loans and other receivables that are stated at
cost or amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and loans and other receivables
(Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

— For trade and loans receivables and other current
receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively where
these financial assets carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESHEER @
(hEERE @)
() FEWBEE R B2 R H At fE

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of trade and loans and other receivables

(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss
shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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FRESBERERERAR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— intangible assets;
— fixed assets and construction in progress;

— deposits paid for gold mining and exploration rights and
fixed assets;

— other non-current deposits; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying amount of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), or value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition and
reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year
(see notes 2(h)(i) and (ii)).

(i) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

2.

FEETBERERERAR

FESTEE @
(hEERE @)

(iii) FFEAEI 3R & K {E

BiE EMRA - AEEER
BEBEHERESR[F
HMBRE | R BRFEEE A
BEAGEPBATBRSE - R
REIEAER  AEERAR
MBFETHERERAZE
—REAH  ERREDK
4 (RBFEE2(h) () K (i) °

() 7

78 AR} ] 3R B M &
ZEIEEANE -

XA VA DR SE A R AR FHE
HhBHEMARBRA - INIK
AR A FEEER U MZEBERMN
ZEMARA

AERFEZABFEBBIEZR
fEET EERE BT ERK AR R
RSB AR TSHBER -

PRt ERFE ZREEEMEBEA
BHERZHEA R/ -
FEMRERZERFEZEHR
KNEFE 2B ERSE L RMOR
FEEHMREER R/ - EAF
¢ 0 AERTIEJCIE ¢ s I C)
HEAERSEIMEXENEER
SRR D



88  ANNUAL REPORT 2014 55

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated A 5K » B B A FTFESM)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Trade and loans and other receivables

Trade and loans and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(k) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

() Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m)Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows.

(n) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKAS 39.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the consolidated income statement. The net
fair value gain or loss recognised in the consolidated income
statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities. Financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss are designated
at the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 are satisfied.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESHEER @
(0) TR AR %
() EHEMBHEH > THRE

(o) Convertible bonds

(i) Convertible bonds that contain an equity component

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of consideration that would be received at that time do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is measured as the present value of
the future interest and principal payments, discounted at
the market rate of interest applicable at the time of initial
recognition to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion
option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liabilities component is recognised as
the equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the
issue of a convertible financial instrument are allocated
to the liability and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on
the liability component is calculated using the effective
interest method. The equity component is recognised in the
convertible bond equity reserve until either the convertible
bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bond equity reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability component
at the time of conversion, is transferred to share capital and
share premium as consideration for the share issued. If the
bond is redeemed, the capital reserve is released directly to
retained profits.
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THEESBERERERAA

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(0) Convertible bonds (Continued)
(i) Other convertible bonds

Convertible bonds which do not contain an equity
component are accounted for as follows:

At initial recognition, the derivative component of the
convertible bonds is measured at fair value and presented
as part of derivative financial instruments. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as
the derivative component is recognised as the liability
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and derivative
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
The portion of the transaction costs relating to the liability
component is recognised initially as part of the liability. The
portion relating to the derivative component is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The derivative component is subsequently remeasured
in accordance with note 2(p). The liability component
is subsequently carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss on the liability
component is calculated using the effective interest method.

If the bond is converted, the carrying amounts of the
derivative and liability components are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the bond is redeemed, any difference between the
amount paid and the carrying amounts of both components
is recognised in profit or loss.

(p) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair
value on the date of grant and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to the fair value of derivative financial
instruments is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EESHEER @
() Warrants (q) R PRFER

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by
other than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is a derivative financial
instrument. Warrants classified as derivative financial instruments
are recognised in accordance with the accounting policy in note
2(p) above.

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a fixed
amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments are equity instruments. The net proceeds received
from the issue of warrants are recognised in equity (warrant
reserve). The warrant reserve will be transferred to share capital
and share premium accounts upon the exercise of the warrants.
When the warrants are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in the warrant reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

(r) Employee benefits

() Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

(i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using the Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated
fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits (Continued)
(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years
is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised
in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

(s) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss
or credit can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future or, in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

() inthe case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company
or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

(i) in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities which, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESTEHER@m

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent (t) B HEIEIELR - BEANHA
liabilities =N

(i) 2B FEIER

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value
of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates
of such information can be made. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policies applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with note
2(t)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under the guarantee,
and (i) the amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, i.e., the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

BITS YRR Ty R ETT A (A
FRA)RERZEATHH
A D) B E B AR BERE
B T A 2 G B HI8
RMRZZBELX MAKH
ASZHERBNEH

BAREE R HPER - ZE
R N ERHER SRR
BN A E T BRI Z BT
A BEOIBERATE
T2 EZBURBERFIHH
WELz BB (IR ERZEFE
B ETE - LR AERER
BRTE W2 B =
HAEYWSEREBERTNET G
AFEWEZ MR (IR FER
AIEH AT SEfAE) © A2 E R
REB 2T AMERT  WERTT
AL R IR B YR K AT W ER (B
HZRBRAIRBERRZBEE
ZANEEBR M THER © 78
B A B AR UCENE R TR 2
HE - AR SRR
WNRS - BB 1R 28 M HERR B9
% o

RMERRIETE WA Z R
RERERFHNEZAES
HAMBERZYBHERK
A SN HOHERTE A
BAEREBEERZRAKE
M R AEEHRRLZ
T RBHEBREGIIN B
BRA N E A BN SRIA R 2 42
R B8 (RIS I FER 2 & BB
REt#E) - BIREM 20
(ili) HERR B A



98

ANNUAL REPORT 2014 ¥R

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated A 5K » B B A FTFESM)

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

(t) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
which are present obligations at the date of acquisition
are initially recognised at fair value, provided the fair value
can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at
fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognised at the
higher of the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 2(t)(ii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued or were not present obligations at the
date of acquisition are disclosed in accordance with note

2(4)(i).

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FESHEERm@m

() Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent (t) B HEIEIELR - BEANHA
liabilities (Continued) =LEAE)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued) (i) EtAER XA EE (&)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Provisions for the Group’s obligations for land rehabilitation
are based on estimates of required expenditure at the mines
in accordance with the PRC rules and regulations. The
Group estimates its liabilities for final rehabilitation and mine
closure based upon detailed calculations of the amount and
timing of the future cash expenditure to perform the required
work. Spending estimates are escalated for inflation, then
discounted at a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability such that the amount of provision
reflects the present value of the expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u)Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of gold products

Revenue is recognised when the title to the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership are passed
to customers, the Group will not execute the right of
supervision and control over the goods, either the proceeds
are received or entitlement to proceeds is evidenced, and
the cost of sale of goods can be estimated reliably. Revenue
excludes value added tax and is after deduction of any
trade discounts and returns.

(i) Finance lease income

Finance lease income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the net investment of finance lease
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the net investment of finance lease.

(iii) Factoring income
Handling fee income from factoring service is recognised
when the relevant services have been rendered.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On the disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong (i.e., a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in an operation outside
Hong Kong, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes an operation outside Hong Kong, or
a partial disposal of an interest in an associate that includes
an operation outside Hong Kong of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale.

2.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(w) Borrowing costs (Continued)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset
is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

(x) Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

(i Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(x) Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

() Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified from
the financial information provided regularly to the Company’s
directors, i.e., the chief operating decision-maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.
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3. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the current year, the Group has where applicable applied the
following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA which
are or have become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets

and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosure
for Non-Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting
HK (IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior years.
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REECBERERERAR

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(a) Revenue

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents sales
value of gold products and other by-products to customers (net
of value added tax, returns and discounts) and finance lease
and factoring income. The revenue during the year is analysed
as follows:

W Kk o EpEF
(a) Wz

Wt I ARSE 2 &8 HER
AEFPHEESEMMEMEIE
onZ SHEBE CRIBER - BRER
Irin) R EHE MMREEBK W
7 o FRREAFTAT

Sale of HE
- Gold products - EBEEM
— Other by-products - EMhEIER
Revenue from TRARER =
Gold Mining Operation
Finance lease and BEHE RREBEEB =

factoring income

2014 2013
—E-mF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx THT
1,162,672 1,483,501
56,073 35,304
1,218,745 1,618,805
68,128 43,604
1,286,873 1,662,409
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W Ko EER @
(b) > EBE Rt

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.
(b) Segment Information

The Group is principally engaged in mining and processing
of gold ores and sales of gold products (the “Gold Mining
Operation”) and providing financing services to customers under
finance lease and factoring arrangements (the “Other Operation”)
in the PRC. The revenue, results and assets of the Gold Mining
Operation were more than 90% of the Group’s revenue, results
and assets during the year. Accordingly, no business segment
analysis is presented.

The Group’s revenue and results from operations mainly
derived from activities in the PRC and its principal assets were
located in the PRC during the year. Accordingly, no analysis by
geographical information is provided.

Revenues from customers contributing 10% or more of the total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

Customer A = HH
Customer B 2B/,
Customer C PR

AEBFERTERECER
H - NMIk=EsEREE(S
EREEEDURATFREMH
BREHERREBERS ([ E
tEK] - RFA - AEESE
FRER s W= - ¥EREEN
REBZ WG ¥EREERB
90% ° At - I £ 2 5| E o 5B
DT ©

RER AEBZRREMEEXE
AETBRATREZES  MEE
EEEMMNPTE - Bt - WEEE

iR ER DT -

KEBERAEE BN 10% 3 A

Fr2BEZWEFMT
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
321,455 263,932
298,166 341,751
N/A FER’ 254,669

* The transactions with this customer did not contribute over 10%
of total revenue of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2014.
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OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/GAIN b.

Other revenue

Total interest income on financial assets

Hig A

WIEEBREL D FEIIRZ

HAW A R Bt (B518)

W
2014
—E-QmF

HK$°000
TER

HK$’000
TET

not at fair value through profit or loss EREEZFSRALEE
- Bank interest income - RITREMWA 10,681 2,654
Sundry incomes IS 8,329 4,582
Waiver of other payables BB B fEf 3R IE - 1,519
19,010 8,755
Other net (loss)/gain Hit (B8, WEFE
Exchange loss, net iE 5B ER (370) (4,240)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEETEE R 6 -
Gain on deregistration KB ARz W
of a subsidiary - 5,630
(364) 1,390
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6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(a)

Finance costs:

Interest on bank and other borrowings:
- wholly repayable within five years
- repayable over five years
Interest on convertible bonds
Interest on unsecured payable (note 22(c))

Interest on financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss

Total interest expenses on
financial liabilities

Less: Interest capitalised into
construction in progress and
deposits paid for proposed acquisitions
of gold mining and exploration rights
(notes 15(c) & 16)

Loss on early redemption of
redeemable preferred shares and
warrants (note 24(a))

Loss on early settlement of
a bank loan

Fair value loss on financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (note 23)

Fair value loss/(gain) of derivative
financial instruments (note 26)

Gain on early redemption of
convertible bonds

Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes

Equity-settled share-based payment expenses

(a)

6.

BIRA

ROREMEFZFIS

- IFRERER

- IFREE

AR ERNE
BRMEAFOENE (F5E22()

BERBRMATEIIRZ
TRAEHE

ERAENERXAE

W RERIRRRNESE
FRREBESN RS
NER 278
(Wt5E15(c) ) 16)

RRFEOAEOELR
RAREE 2 1R
(Pif3E 24(a))

REEERITERZER

EBBRERATEIIRL
eRABATERR(FE23)
(TESMIARTE

B8/ (a) (W 26)
RRREERREFONE

BERA (BEESHE)

e TEREMER
BRI BN
IRIEREE 2 BRIV ER S H B

279,251
10,160
83,457

1,565

402,295

(43,319)

358,976

154,751
13,020

49,684

84,558
9,040
16,808

110,406

BREBLAT (B51R )RR
BBLAT (B 1), FIE 0 G
A)TFIEH

HK$'000
THEL

259,677

81,638
10,872

352,087

(35,705)

97,975
8,193
38,217

144,385
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6. BRELAT(ESIE) EF @
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting) BREAT(EER) SEF BN (5T
(Continued): A) THIEIE (&)
2014 2013
—2-pF —F-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TEr TAT
(c] Otheritems () HEfEE
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESH 180,630 253,343
Auditor's remuneration HEMME
- audit service - &% 2,600 2,500
- non-audit service - HEHRE 900 830
Cost of inventories sold under the Gold PREAREBZELE
Mining Operation (note (i) FERA () 587,194 686,785
Cost of borrowings from the Other Operation SAHERA A%
included in cost of sales EFMA 40,179 18,464
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets B EETEREH 101,977 89,393
Operating lease charges in respect of BENTEE BEHEER
- land and buildings - T REEY 11,652 14,609
- machinery and equipment - BERERE 46 39
Note: BIEE
() Cost of inventories sold under the Gold Mining Operation includes ) eERREK 2 ELREFTERAR
HK$311,074,000 (2013: HK$380,503,000) relating to staff costs, $5311,074,0008 t( —=F — = F :
depreciation and amortisation expenses and operating lease charges, 380,503,000 7T ) * Jh B B E B X
which amounts are also included in the respective total amounts $ MERBHATARKEHES
disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses. CRECENERALXHEERA

iﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%leﬁ%@@gﬁm o
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7. INCOME TAX

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

PRC income tax
— Current tax
— Under/(over)-provision
in prior years

Total income tax expense

REIFTEH
- AREIHIR
- EERBETIRS
(EBRRE )

PSR X A58

(@) HFABHERAR

—E-nmF

HK$’000
FEx

122,427

124,293
(22,473)

101,820

ZBER

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
FH&T

191,132

187,794
(39,124)

148,670

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (loss)/profit

at applicable tax rates:

(Loss)/profit before taxation

FtAT (B5i8) /g

(b) BB MEt (B1E) m A%

ERREAEZ

2014
“E-pE

HK$'000
TiEn

(82,205)

Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,

calculated at the rates applicable

to the tax jurisdiction concerned
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of non-taxable income
Tax effect of unrecognised

timing differences
Under/(over)-provision in prior years
Tax effect of utilisation of previously

unrecognised tax losses
Tax effect of unused tax losses

not recognised

RRERBRE A RR  ERRE
ARG (BR) /B2 2EHE

PR RET &
FERBMACHER 2
AERRE B2

EERETR/ (BEER)
FRBETTRARABE
LHEYE
AFRBLAHRHABE
LHEYE

16,137
88,802
(72)

(4,913)
1,866

101,820

iR -

2013
“T-=F
HK$'000
THr

330,053

100,469
67,691
(5,396)

(8,132)
(3,339)

(3,882)

148,670
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THEESBERERERAA

INCOME TAX (continued)

(c) The provision for PRC income tax is calculated on the
assessable profit of the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in
the PRC at 25% during the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013, except for two subsidiaries which were subject to an
income tax rate of 15% and were incorporated in the PRC by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2013.

(d) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong
profits tax during the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013.

(e) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is exempted from
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

1.

T8 @

() PEMGHERDREARER

PR 2B RARIRERE
TENERZE—=F+=A
=t+—HIEFERZERB R
Bo5%ETE  WREE-ZT—=
F+_A=+—BLEFEARAHBEARN
SER P REFMAK L2 WEH B
RNAIZER TS TR K 15% #ARkR
Hh o

d AR AEERBE_T—HNFER

—E=FF+ZA=1t—HL*F
JE A B AR AN E BN EH
ZIERBE A - A ERFE R
SRR -

@ RERNEHERRBELES

(TRBEZES ] 2HRANRR
7] REBBAGREMFESE
ENEBRELBREEH -
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BERTHREARMNS

REBEFESRBHED (F622F )
R FB78IEW 2 ZRIEE R BIED
(3285 )F161IEHEZESE MIT

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 8.

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments disclosed pursuant
to section 78 of Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance (Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the

predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32) is as BB wT
follows:
Salaries, Equity-
allowances Retirement settled
Directors’ and benefits scheme share-based 2014
fees in kind contributions  Sub-total payment Total
R
FeoRE  BAGHE gEZRf —B-DF
EEHe REVAE fits Mt BBEXHE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TER THER TER TER
Executive directors HTESE
Mr. Lam Cham WA - 3,500 17 3,517 2,474 5,991
Mr. Zhang Shuguang (note a) REXEE (Hita) - 3,500 17 3,517 2,474 5,991
Mr. Zhang Liwei Rh#EE - 3,500 17 3,517 - 3,517
Mr. Chang Yim Yang REBLE - 3,500 17 3,517 2,474 5,991
Mr. Deng Guoll HERTE - 3,500 17 3,517 2,474 5,991
Mr. Dai Xiaobing (note b) g/ 254 (F5Eb) - 875 4 879 - 879
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Li Xianghong (note ) FRBEE (Fitc) 66 - - 66 - 66
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick ~ SEEHEK 240 - - 240 238 478
Mr. Chan Kin Sang RigELE 240 - - 240 238 478
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EELE e 240 - - 240 238 478
Total st 786 18,375 89 19,250 10,610 29,860
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (continues) 8. EERITHATME @)

Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Retirement settled
Directors’  and benefits scheme share-based 2013
fees inkind  contributions Sub-total payment Total
PARE
g6 2E RIGHE gEIRE —T-=
ESHE  REWRE 3% N BB a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL FAL TAL
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Lam Cham WERE - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
Mr. Zhang Shuguang RERTE - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7825
Mr. Zhang Liwei ROERE - 3,500 15 3,515 - 3,515
Mr. Chang Yim Yang KERLE - 3,500 15 3,615 4310 7,825
M. Deng Guol BER - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
M. Dai Xiaobing R - 3,500 15 3,515 4,310 7,825
Independent non-executive directors BUFHITES
Professor Wong Lung Tak, Patrick S EEHK 218 - - 218 418 636
Mr. Chan Kin Sang Bl LE 218 - - 218 418 636
Professor Xiao Rong Ge EEE 218 - - 218 418 636
Total fazt 654 21,000 90 21,744 22,804 44,548
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no BE_ZT-NFR_F-—=F1=
emoluments were paid or payable to the Company’s directors A=Z+—BLFE ARELER
or chief executive or any of the five highest paid individuals set EERITRARK T XM FEImEZ
out in note 9 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the ERAU&ESME AL ER
Company or as compensation for loss of office. There was no ERIMEIER/IMARRT S INAKR
arrangement under which any directors or chief executive waived NAERZ MM SKIERBERAEE - ©
or agreed to waive any emoluments during both years. {8 F 5 7 N A {A] SR S 1T AR

BMEXFRBRET NS 2 25 -
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10.

11.

12.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE™S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:
(@) The chief executive officer of the Company.
(b) Resigned on 1 April 2014.

(c) Appointed on 1 April 2014 and resigned on 9 July 2014,

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the five
individuals with the highest emoluments were directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 8.

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a loss of HK$148,081,000 (2013: HK$177,192,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
during the year (note 29(a)).

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on the
loss attributable to owners of the Company of HK$184,025,000
(2013: profit of HK$181,383,000) and on the weighted average
number of 4,382,133,000 (2013: 4,350,727,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

8.

10.

11.

12.

BEERTHEARINE @

B RE -
(@) KRB TIRAAE, ©
(o) R=ZZ—MWFU A —HEHT -

© R-ZT—MFMA—-HEZENR -
Z-MELANEBHME -

e AL

REBEE-ZFT-—HNEER-_FT—Z=F
TZA=1t—-HULEHFE Afumss
MeALTRES BEZHMEFE
BRI L8 HKEE -

RARHEE AEAL
(B8]), &R

RARER AELEE (BB), &
FlEge - —E£$% 4 148,081,000/8
TT(ZZ—=4% :177,192,000/57T)
ZEBERARBFANTB®RE
BRIE (fizE29(@a)) °

g2

EFTRAMBE-T-MER-
TS+ A=t—RALLERER
FHEARS -

B (EB18) BF
@ SREX (B58) /BA

BREANE®BR) BN
BREARREBAERGEEIRE
184,025,000 8 L (=& — =% :
S #181,383,00058 7T ) LA J
FREETERBR ZINETFHIE
4,382,133,000 % ( =& — = F :
4,350,727,000 &) 515 -
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12. 8k (B18) B @
@) BRER (F58) BF &)
LA BT IIE

12. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (Continued)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

2014 2013
Weighted Weighted
average average
number of number of
ordinary ordinary
shares shares
—E-NEF ZE—=F
EERZ =gl
INREF 5% IEEFHE
’000 ‘000
T FAR
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—H2ZBBTLBER 4,350,727 4,350,727
Effect of issue of new shares MEBREBITHRG
by placement (note 29(b)(i)) 2 (M5 29(0)() 30,822 -
Effect of issue of new shares BABAIRRES &
upon conversion of convertible bonds BB c o8
(note 29(b)(ii) (BT 3E29(0)(ii)) 584 -
Weighted average number of RTZA=+—Hz%@kK
ordinary shares at 31 December 2 RS 4,382,133 4,350,727

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Company’s convertible bonds, warrants and share options had
anti-dilutive effect. Their conversion/exercise prices were above
the weighted average market prices of the Company’s shares.
Therefore, the diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as
the basic (loss)/earnings per share.

b) EREE (B58) BT

HE_FT—NEFER=-_FT—=
+ZA=+—RHLFE " AQA
ZABRES - RREE RBR
EHEAERBEYRR - EXR
TEERRARTRG 2 NEF
HME - At - SREE(BE)
SRR EGRERN(EER) /BT
EIES
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 13. BEEE
The Group REE
Exploration
rights and
Mining rights assets Total
RigE RBEEREE a5t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FAET
Cost A<
At 1 January 2013 R_E—=%—H—H 6,756,058 1,706 6,757,764
Additions e 26,498 40,397 66,395
Exchange adjustments ME B 98,970 - 98,970
At 31 December 2013 RZT—=
+=—A=+—H 6,881,526 42,103 6,923,629
At 1 January 2014 R-_ZE—NFE—H—H 6,881,526 42,103 6,923,629
Additions ik 51,207 375 51,582
Exchange adjustments bE 5 2 (55,382) - (55,382)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—mF
+=-—A=+—H 6,877,351 42,478 6,919,829
Accumulated amortisation -G £
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—H—H 413,854 - 413,854
Charge for the year FNETHR 253,343 - 253,343
Exchange adjustments ME 5, A B 13,014 - 13,014
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-—A=+—H 680,211 - 680,211
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mFE—F—H 680,211 - 680,211
Charge for the year FNEHE 180,630 - 180,630
Exchange adjustments PE W R (9,683) - (9,683)
At 31 December 2014 AT —UF
—A=+—H 851,158 - 851,158
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2014 RZZT—MOF
+—-—A=+—H 6,026,193 42,478 6,068,671
At 31 December 2013 IS =

A=+—H 6,201,315 42,103 6,243,418
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13. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
The Group (Continued)

(@) As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s mining rights with
a total carrying amount of HK$3,091,318,000 (2013:
HK$2,704,772,000) were pledged as security for bank and
other borrowings facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

(b) At 31 December 2014, the directors of the Company conducted
assessments of the recoverable amounts of the mining rights
with reference to the valuations conducted by ROMA Appraisals
Limited ("ROMA”), an independent firm of professional valuers
with recognised qualifications and experiences, using the
income approach methodology. Based on the assessments,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the estimated
recoverable amounts of the mining rights were higher than their
respective carrying amounts and therefore, no impairment on
the mining rights was required at 31 December 2014.

The directors of the Company also considered that there was
no impairment on the carrying amounts of the exploration rights
and assets at 31 December 2014.

(c) The amortisation charge during the year is included in cost of
sales in the consolidated income statement.

FEETBERERERAR

13. BEEE @
REB (&)

@R=—ZF—NWF+=ZA=+—
H A5 B 8 K@ MEA
3,091,318,000/ 8L (ZE— =4 :
2,704,772,00078 L) 2 HRIEED
ARERASEERE ZIRITRE
MEFEE (H3E27) -

) R=ZT—mFE+=—A=+—H"
RAREERBEABRUEHRK
KRB EEHERERTH
B ARAR (&K FRK
NEREE 2 B RERE 2 T I
Bl ¢ B ITRTE o BEBEFTE - &
NEEBRBIRERE 2 TR
EEeERRESE2EEE B
It RZE—NF+=—A=+—
H ERIE I A H 3R R (A -

ARBEENRL R-F—@O
Fr-A=1T—"HRBEELEE
Z BREEREE HIRRUE

© FAZEHI LI AKZEER
RZHERANA -
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[—P*
14. FIXED ASSETS 1% BEEE
The Group AEE
Interests in
Leasehold leasehold
land under (0] lands held
finance lease equipment, for own
and building  Buildings  Machinery furniture use under
held for held for and Motor and Mining operating
_ownuse  ownuse equipment  vehicles fixtures  structures  Sub-total leases
MEHET Rigge
gL i
REEEER  BEEER N :
ZEEY  2EE E ) REEXE HREEN It
HK$'000 i I HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
7 TAT TAR
Cost B
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=%-F-H 81,311 14,027 53,983 28,546 6,188 1333526 1,512,581 8433 1,521,014
Exchange adjustments 5% - 439 1,691 685 141 41,737 44,693 264 44,957
Additions #E - - 5943 4,146 2,083 8,283 20,455 - 20,455
Transfer from construction BREERTR(H15)
in progress (note 15) - - - - - 837,529 837,529 - 837,529
At 31 December 2013 R-E-=%+-F=1-H 81,311 14,466 61,617 28,377 8412 2221075 2415258 8,697 2,423,955
At 1 January 2014 KZZ-mE-fA-A 81,311 14,466 61,617 28,377 8412 2221075 2415258 8,697 2,423,955
Exchange adjustments ERBE - (246) (1,046) (454) (107) (87,719 (39,572) (148) (39,720)
Additions g - - 6,226 - 1,325 - 7,551 - 7,551
Disposals e - - - (164) - - (164) - (164)
Transfer from construction BREEETR(FHH15)
in progress (note 15) - - - - - 315,268 315,268 - 315,268
At 31 December 2014 RZF-mE+ZA=1+-A 81,311 14,220 66,797 21,759 9630 2498624 2,698,341 8549 2,706,890
Accumulated amortisation ZBERTE
and depreciation
At 1 January 2013 WZZ-=%-f-A 5271 1,307 9,402 7,098 2,697 82,999 108,774 570 109,344
Exchange adjustments B AT - 54 387 206 (326) 4144 4,465 22 4,487
Charge for the year ERGHE 1,917 859 6,001 3,785 1,563 74,999 89,124 269 89,393
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+-F=1-H 7,188 2,220 15,790 11,089 3,934 162,142 202,363 861 208,224
At 1 January 2014 RZZF-RmE—F-A 7,188 2,220 165,790 11,089 3,934 162,142 202,363 861 208,224
Exchange adjustments BT - (46) (321) (182) (48) (3501) (4,008) (17) (4,115)
Cherge for the year Emii 1917 1,021 6,109 3,074 1,403 87,080 101,706 o 101977
Written back on disposal HERED - - - (149) - - (149) - (149)
At 31 December 2014 RZF-mE+=A=1+-A 9,105 3,195 21,578 14,732 5,289 245,923 299,822 1,115 300,987
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2014 REE-RFF=A=1-H 72,206 11,025 45219 13,027 4341 2.252,701 2,398,519 7434 2,405,953

At 31 December 2013 RZZ-ZF+-fA=1-R 74,123 12,246 45,827 17,288 4478 2058933 221289 7836 2,220,731
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14. FIXED ASSETS (continued) 14 BEEE @
The Group (Continued) REE (&)
(a) An analysis of carrying amounts of leasehold lands and buildings (@ HE i R EEY < REED T
is as follows: N
2014 2013
—E-F =%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT
In Hong Kong NES
- Medium-term leases -HAE 72,206 74,123
In the PRC Rep
- Short leases - EHHE 1,521 1,887
- Medium-term leases - e 16,938 18,195
90,665 94,205
Representing: RERUTBIE
Leasehold land under finance lease MEMEE T HELH
and building held for own use NEBBIEERZEEY 72,206 74,123
Buildings held for own use BEEBRZESEY 11,025 12,246
83,231 86,369
Interests in leasehold lands held REEEHEEREERR
for own use under operating leases ME i 7,434 7,836
90,665 94,205
(o) As at 31 December 2014, certain fixed assets of the Group )R =—E—WEFE+_H=+—
with a total carrying amount of HK$1,624,720,000 (2013: B A5 BERKEEBEREA
HK$728,073,000) were pledged as security for bank and other 1,624,720,0008 ;o ( = & — =
borrowings facilities granted to the Group (note 27). 4 728,073,000 7L) 2 & T
ETEECRARERAEEER

RITREMEREE (HFE27)
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15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. EEIRE
The Group REE
2014 2013
—E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Cost AR
At 1 January ®n—A—H 1,025,844 581,700
Exchange adjustment PE R (17,672) 18,360
Additions s 1,051,427 1,253,264
Interest capitalised (note c) EAREFE (Fistc) 29,258 10,049
Transfer to fixed assets (note 14) EREETEE (3 14) (315,268) (837,529)
At 31 December Wt+-—A=+—H 1,773,589 1,025,844

(@) As at 31 December 2014, construction in progress with a total @R=—FT—MF+=-_A=+—H"
carrying amount of HK$48,756,000 (2013: HK$43,648,000) 8 M (B 42 %8 /& 48,756,000 JT
were pledged as security for bank and other borrowings ZZ— =14 : 43,648,000/ T)
facilities granted to the Group (note 27). ZERIBERARERAEEE

BReRTREMEFREE (ME
27) °

(o) The construction in progress at 31 December 2014 and 2013 P R=ZZE—MFR=_T—=F+=
primarily relates to the additional production premises, mining A=t+—HBzHEREIEFXZHH
structures and facilities of subsidiaries in the PRC. WMEBARZHISEERE - &K

EREEY BB -

(c) During the year, interest on bank and other borrowings OFA REMAERIEANER
capitalised in above construction in progress was EHRITREREMERFE A
HK$29,258,000 (2013: HK$10,049,000). The borrowing costs 29,258,000 (=& — =
have been capitalised at a rate of 9% (2013: 9%) per annum on 10,049,000 7T ) © E XK A TY
the specific borrowings used for financing the construction in HARZNERIENHEBER
progress (note 6(a)). BEMEIN(ZF—=F : 9%)

BARME (MEE6(@)) °
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16. DEPOSITS PAID FOR GOLD MINING AND EXPLORATION

RIGHTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group paid aggregate deposits
of RMB599,250,000 (equivalent to HK$749,242,000) (2013:
RMB359,150,000 (equivalent to HK$456,803,000)) for proposed
acquisitions of certain mining and exploration rights for gold
mines in Henan and Yunnan, the PRC, from nine (2013: eight)
independent third parties. The aggregate amount of the proposed
considerations of these acquisitions is RMB611,900,000 (equivalent
to HK$765,059,000) (2013: RMB421,900,000 (equivalent to
HK$536,615,000)). All of above acquisition transactions have
not been completed as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

During the year, interest on bank and other borrowings capitalised
in above deposits paid for proposed acquisitions of gold mining and
exploration rights was HK$14,061,000 (2013: HK$25,656,000).
The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 11% (2013:
9%) per annum on the specific borrowings used for financing
the deposits paid for proposed acquisitions of gold mining and
exploration rights (note 6(a)).

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost IE TR (FRAAR)

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (a))

16.

17.

FEUS B B 2 IR (P EE (@)

121

s R Ll

¥

R-E—NFE+-_A=+—8" &K
EEFANEG (T —=F: \£K)
BUE=ZADRIEZWEMATREH
MEREMZE TORERRKER
B FEE 46 £ AR 599,250,000
7L (18 & M 749,242,000 ) ( =
T — =% : AR#¥359,150,0007C
( /8 & 7 456,803,000/ 7T )) ° 7%
ZNBrEZREBEAARK
611,900,000 T (#8& 7 765,059,000
BrT)I(ZE—=ZF: AR¥
421,900,000 7t (18 E 7 536,615,000
BIL)) c RZEMBmMERILEZ
B A LR HHRTK

FRN-REAZZRBESBRERK
FREMMIESREREOETR
Hib EFHF B A 14,061,0008 7T (=
T — =4 : 25,656,000 7T) - B
RATIFARZ A HBRIKE 2 2 BH
BRFRELZSOABEETIZER
TA1%( ZFE— =% :9%) EA&(L
(Mt3E6(@)) °

RE AR ZRE
The Company
NN

2014 2013
—¥—F —E—=fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FAET
357,373 357,373
5,377,828 4,727,525
5,735,201 5,084,898
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17. RMB AT ZERE @

@ RNRAREERR  ERHBEAR
RIBRARE R EQFZ B
AHE - ZEFREARBER L
B YETEEREE -

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the amounts due
from subsidiaries are equity contribution by the Company to the
subsidiaries. The amounts are unsecured and interest-free and
will not be demanded for repayment.

b TREIHHAAKEEBE_F
—OFE+-A=t+—HLEFEZ
X BEFRBEENTIEFE
ZHBRBER - KA IH
SN FRF % F 10 BRI A A
32 Ky AR B BRI A E R

(b) The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2014. The class of
shares of those subsidiaries which were incorporated outside
the PRC held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Hﬁ o
Proportion of ownership interest
HHEERRLA

Place of Issued and Group’s Held Held

incorporation/ fully paid-up/ effective by the bya
operations registered capital interest  Company  subsidiary Principal
Name of Company AL/ BRARAR/ A%E  @ALE  H-KE activities
NAER B dfEsx  BRER BE  DAER IERH

% % %
China Precious Metal BVI/Hong Kong Us$2 100 100 - Investment
Resources Co., Limited ARELHE/BE ESH holding
PHESBERERAA RERR
Able Supplement Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100 - 100 Investment
RERUES/BE 50,000% T holding
RERR
Decent Connection Overseas BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 100 - 100 Investment
Limited ABRABE/BA 50,000%7 holding
RERR
Wah Heen Holdings Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$10,000 100 - 100 Investment
FHERARAT ABRAHE/BR 10000%7 holding
RERK
Sinowise Century Limited BVI/Hong Kong US§1 100 - 100 Investment
AREANE/BR 157 holding
RERK
Hongkong Realking Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - 100 Investment
Mining Industry Ltd. B 10,0007 holding
EAREBERRAT REAER
Hongkong T&R Mining Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - 100 Investment
Investment Limited 7 10,0008 holding
EERRRERERRATA RERK
Kong Chun Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 000 100 - 100 Investment
_Limited i 1,000/ holding
BEEBRRAA RERK
Fast Trend Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$_1 100 - 100 Investment
hEREERAA ; 1B holding

REZK
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. RB AT 2RE @)

(b) (Continued)

(o) (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEREELA

Place of Issued and Group’s Held Held

incorporation/ fully paid-up/ effective by the bya
operations registered capital interest Company  subsidiary Principal
Name of Company MR,/ BRTRAR/ rEE NG B8 activities
NEER BE AEA ERES ] Gt TEXK

% % %
Chifeng Yongfeng Kuangye The PRC RMB20,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Co., Ltd. (note (]) i AR%20,000,0007C processing of gold
FEKEREERAMAR ores and sale
(M) of gold products
SERR - T
kESERHE
Luanchuan County The PRC RMB60,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Jinxing Mining Co., Ltd. i AR 60,000,00070 processing of gold
(note (i) ores and sale
8| AREBRRALH of gold products
(B3 () Ed e
RESEMHE
Luanchuan County The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Luanling Gold Mine i AR50,000,00070 processing of gold
Co., Ltd. (note (i) ores and sale
8| Z8EBER AT of gold products
(R ) SBRK - MI
kESERHE
Mojiang County Mining The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
Co., Ltd. (note (i) i AR#50,000,0007C processing of gold
BIEREARRIAT ores and sale
GEL) of gold products
Ed e
RECEMHE
Pu'er Hengyi Mining Co., Ltd The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Mining and
(note () i AR%50,000,00070 processing of gold
LEERBEEBRRALT ores and sale
(M) of gold products
SERR - T
hESERHE
Kai Yuan Financial Leasing The PRC RMB150,000,000 100 - 100 Provision of
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. i AR 150,000,000 financing services
(note (i) to customers
SFRERE (RI)ARLE under finance lease
(P () armangements
mEPRERE
HERHE
Jin He Factoring (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 - 100 Provision of
(note (i) i AR%50,000,0007C financing services
BARE (R BBRAR to customers
(B G) under factoring
arrangements
REPR{ERE

BERH
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. RB AR ZRE @
(b) (Continued) (o) (£8)

Note: Bk -

() Al subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned () RFBEEZZAEHRBARNSA
enterprises. The English names of the PRC subsidiaries are for SNEBEDRE - FEMBARZ
identification purpose only. B HBERBR A -

18. INVENTORIES 18. &
Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position FEMBRARAZTFERSRE
comprise:
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—EF-nmF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET THT
Raw materials AR 12,093 12,681
Work-in-progress T2 97,274 86,156
Finished goods BIRK B 4,705 10,662

Total #E 114,072 109,499
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19. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19. FEURER :1:7& rE a"'\Zk R H
AND PREPAYMENTS ftEKRARE RERHE
1
The Company
KATE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mF “Z-=F —E-mE “T—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
eE TET FET T FET
Trade and loan receivables BUREFRES  @too) 535,450 284,086 - -
Less: Allowance for R REERE
doubtful debts - - - -
535,450 284,086 - -
Amounts due from e
subsidiaries UNGIEV (d) - - 433,055 392,420
Other receivables HidksR 27,720 26,409 - -
Sub-total Nt 563,170 310,495 433,055 392,420
Deposits and prepayments B RBNFE ) 54,037 159,264 8,345 550
617,207 469,759 441,400 392,970
As at 31 December 2014, all of the trade and loans and other RZE—NF+=A=+—8H"F
receivables, deposits and prepayments are expected to be B e R B B RUA K E Ath i U SR
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year. B EReRBENFEBEHEHR—F
NT AW ESER BT ©
As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s trade receivables with a RZE—WmF+ZA=+—H" &K
carrying amount of HK$21,495,000 (2013: nil) were pledged as EERMEA21,4950008 L (=&
security for bank and other borrowings facilities granted to the —=%F : &) ZERERE ARER
Group (note 27). AEEERZBRITREMEREE

(B&x27) -
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19. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 9. EWBRFRRERUREHE
AND PREPAYMENTS (contnued i 8 W KR Fenm
NFRIE =)
(a) Trade and loan receivables (@) EWEER R E X
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—E ===
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Trade receivables CERAKERT (b)
under the Gold 2 FEUARE X
Mining Operation 35,616 20,027
Loan receivables HMEBT ©)]
under the Other 2 EWE R
Operation 499,834 264,059
535,450 284,086
(b) Trade receivables under the Gold Mining Operation (b) SEFALRER T BUBRRX
() The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of () PAMEER - EBUER(EM
allowance for doubtful debts) at end of the reporting period BRRREE) 2RES T
is as follows: T
The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—2-mEF —F—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaET FHIT
Less than two months DRFE A 35,616 20,027
The Group generally requires the customers to make AEB-—RERKEPREMD
payment on the date of delivery of products or within 7 days NERXERTEZREANA
after delivery of products. Credit term within two months is EHRFT R MEAUAZE
granted to the customers with high credibility. ERETAEESEEEZY

B -
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19. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19.
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(b) Trade receivables under the Gold Mining Operation
(Continued)

(i) At the end of the reporting period, all receivables under the
Gold Mining Operation of the Group were neither past due
nor impaired. Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to certain independent customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

(c) Loan receivables under the Other Operation

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s loan receivables
under the Other Operation are as follows:

REECBERERERAR

NECE (g)
b) EEBIRFER T EUWERF
(&)

(i) RBEHR AEEZEE
FIERETS T AT B BUSORER
REHIARBE o REHK
BB Z BYGRIRE&ITRE
BREBZETEILEFAE
7 o

(c) HAbZEH T EURE K
RBERR - AEEREMER

Factoring receivables {RI2 UL F IS (@)
Lease receivables HERWIE (c)(ii)
Less: Unearned B RBELZ B WA

finance income

THEKERWT :
The Group
AEE
2014
—E-nfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THT
499,834 171,707
- 97,285
- (4,933)
- 92,352
499,834 264,059
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19. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19. %

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) E WHE - BZERTE
N FRIE @0
(c) Loan receivables under the Other Operation (Continued) C)HME£KTRKRER (&
() Factoring receivables () REEEWFIE
At the end of the reporting period, all factoring receivables REmEHR - FREREEK
were repayable within one year. The ageing analysis of HIEER—FREE - N
the factoring receivables (net of allowance for doubtful HHR - RIEBEKKIE(EMN
debts) based on the age of the factoring receivables since BRRIREE) 2 RECIRIZE
the effective dates of the relevant contracts at end of the EREMBBREZRERK
reporting period is as follows: RIBEREDITAOT -
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Factoring receivables: RIZFEWRIA
Less than one year —FER 499,834 171,707
The ageing analysis of factoring receivables that are neither I 4% 18 51| 3 £ B 18 1B R E &Y
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as R 3% JiE W SR 3R 2 B e 0 AT 40
follows: N
2014 2013
—E—-NmF —E—=fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 fE58 B skORL (B 488,916 171,707
Less than four months past due B HI DR {E A 10,918 -

499,834 171,707
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19. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

9. ERERZIRERURH
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) |

EWRRIE RERE

=
A FRIE ()
(c) Loan receivables under the Other Operation (Continued) () b TR E R (@)
(i) (Continued) (i) (&)
Factoring receivables of the Group that were neither AEBRARBE M ARREZ
past due nor impaired relate to certain independent RIBFEWRIASRE T &IT8
customers for whom there was no recent history of default. EHREB s BILEFRA

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of approval of these financial statements, the factoring
receivables of HK$400,137,000 have been settled and the
remaining factoring receivables were not past due as at the
date of approval of these financial statements.

Factoring receivable of the Group that was past due but not
impaired relate to an independent customer that has a good
track record with the Group. No impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of this balance as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balance is still
considered fully recoverable.

e RIEBMREREEZ
EUHmERAAER - RIEFE
I $ 400,137,000/ 7t E U
B« {RIEFE UK 2 RN 5%
LRI IR B I ARG -

AEECAMERREZR
I EWGRIAE — (A R
BELBENBIEFPER -
HRNEEERIEEREH
EEINEY DN e
ZAEER - Bt A KA
FHRRERE -
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19. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19.
AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

C)HMEKTEWRER @)
(i) FHEELFIE

RZE—=F+-_A=+—
B FTERERKZKEBEER

(c) Loan receivables under the Other Operation (Continued)
(i) Lease receivables

At 31 December 2013, all lease receivables were repayable
within one year. There was no unguaranteed residual

value in connection with finance lease arrangements or
contingent lease arrangements of the Group that needed
to be recorded as at the end of the reporting period. The
ageing analysis of the lease receivables (net of allowance for
doubtful debts) based on the age of the lease receivables

—FREE - AEENR
THRZBMEBEERBEKEK
RAMERE BEMEER
RABEAAR - RN#REH
R HERWKFIEAE(EHRR

since the effective dates of the relevant contracts at end of BREBE) CRRIBEEEEGH
the reporting period is as follows: E AR HERWKIE
BRE DT -
The Group
2014 2013
—E—F T — =4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHB T FHETT
Lease receivables: SR FIA
Less than 1 year —FR - 97,285
Net lease receivables: THEREWGIEFE -
Less than 1 year —FR - 92,352

RZE—=F+=_A=+—
H XEEZFEHEERK
SRIBBERE AN ARRE © K
460 H o8 R 1B 2 FE W SRR B A
M B REHZETEY
BFHR -

At 31 December 2013, all lease receivables of the Group
were neither past due nor impaired. Receivables that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to certain independent
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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19. TRADE AND LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 19. FE U BR %E;k rE %2 R H

AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) ftEKRARE RERHE

N FRIE (@)
(d) Amounts due from subsidiaries (d) FE UL Bt I8 A BIFK
The Company
¥ NN
2014 2013
—8—lF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
; FHET
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSH B A B RUR 433,113 392,478
Less: Allowance for impairment losses  J& : Ji{E & 1B (58) (58)
433,055 392,420
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company recognised R-E-—NFER_FE-—=F+_
impairment losses on amounts due from subsidiaries RA=+—8 ARG EKKEB
of HK$58,000 as these subsidiaries had net liabilities at ) BR A B 52 R (B /&5 18 58,000
31 December 2014 and 2013. BT REARZEMBRARINZ
E-mOER_ZE-—=F+=A
=t—RERFAGEMRR
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free FEWHBARRIBERAEER £
and have no fixed terms of repayment. BEREETEERE -

(e) As at 31 December 2013, the Group prepaid an amount of eR=_F—=Ft+-_A=1+—8"
US$17.3 million (equivalent to HK$135 million) to CMMA as AEERCMMATER 217388
included in deposits and prepayments. The amount was applied EZT(HERIBBEEBTT)TA
as partial payment of the consideration of the early redemption Re RFBENFE - RFR  ZR
for the RP shares and the 2012 Warrants during the year (note JAE AEX iR FIE O A E E &
24(a)). R R =T - ZFRBREE 2B

B (FHEE24()) °
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20. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 20. 2EFFR

As at 31 December 2014, total deposits of the Group and the RZFE—WOF+=_RAR=+—8"
Company of HK$794,480,000 (2013: HK$458,340,000) and AEBRARAZHERES
HK$2,516,000 (2013: HK$35,911,000) respectively which were 794,480,000 T ( = T — =

held in bank and other financial institutions were pledged as 458,340,0007% 7T ) 2,516,000 %
security for bank and other borrowings facilities granted to the T(=ZF— =4 :35911,000 7T)
Group (note 27). The interest rate of the pledged deposits ranged (RBRTEHEMESREBERE)ED
from 0.1% to 3.3% (2013: 0.1% to 3.3%) per annum during the AARERASEER ZRITRA
year. HWEFEE (ME27) - FREIKME

FRZAENFHF01%E3.3%
(ZZE—=%F :01%E3.3%) °

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. RERBREEEY
The Group The Company
ES 3L NG
2014 2014 2013
—E-mE —E-mE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET TAT FAT
Cash at banks RITER 31,152 519,759 25,127 6,691
Cash in hand Bé 327 2,526 20 22
Cash and cash A RAAT]
equivalents in the FBMAEKZ
consolidated Re kB EEY
and the Company’s
statement
of financial position 31,479 522,285 25,147 6,713
Secured bank overdrafts BIRIRRITEY
(note 24) (BzE24) (8,008) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RERERERLZ
in the consolidated RekFeSED
statement of cash flows 23,471 522,285 25,147 6,713
The interest rates on cash at banks ranged from 0.1% to 0.4% FRRITERZMNENFEF01%
(2013: 0.1% to 0.4%) per annum during the year. F04%( Z T — =Z F:01% &

0.4%) °
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22. BEERRREMESFIE

The Group The Company
LN
2014 2014
“E-mF —E-IF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHR i TR
Trade creditors AN (a) 18,317 8,192 - -
Amounts due to FERMBARNE
subsidiaries (b) - - 79,928 52,745
Accrued charges and BREAR
other payables H it A (©) 373,278 248,596 19,547 12,337
Financial liabilties RBHIRET B
measured at LemAE
amortised cost 391,595 256,788 99,475 65,082
Receipts in advance TEEER 70,853 65,275 - -
462,448 322,063 99,475 65,082

(a) The ageing analysis of trade creditors at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

Within three months

More than three months but
within one year

After one year

=& A NEH]

={E A HE—FREIH

(@) RIEHR - BRI D

HipUNNE
The Group
A
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=4F
HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
11,582 5,965
4,516 323
2,219 1,904




134 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3R

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated M #8517~

- BEBFTIESN

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 22. BERERFREME[SFIE

(b) The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(c) In 2012, the Group had a payable of HK$540,850,000 as part
of consideration for the acquisition of Sinowise Century Limited
and its subsidiaries and the payable was unsecured, charged
at an interest rate of 6.8% per annum and repayable not later
than 31 December 2014. During the year, the payable was fully
repaid. As at 31 December 2013, the outstanding balance of

(&)

b) ENMBRBRIBREERR 2
B HERTEERY -

CRZZE—=F  AEEHELEEN
FXIB 540,850,000 7T © 1EAUEE
Sinowise Century Limited & £ Fff
BRARZEMHRE - B KIE
REER - RFENE6.8%ETE

BERTER-_ZE—NF+=A

the payable was HK$26,580,000 included in trade and other =+—HEE - RXFE - %E
payables. NRIBEEEHEE RZT—=
F+ZA=+—8 " ZENHE
E’J K18 & 4 # 526,580,000 %
BT AR AR BR R R EL AN R

IE °

23. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

OR LOSS

During the year, the Group financed through leases of gold from
banks by selling the leased gold through the Shanghai Gold
Exchange (“SGE”). On maturity, the Group would return gold with
the same quantity and specification purchased through SGE, and
pay interests on leases of gold to banks. The maturity periods are
within one year. The Group has engaged in gold forward contracts
in accordance with the quantity, specification and repayment terms
of gold to be returned to banks in the future for the purpose of
hedging certain risks arising from gold price fluctuation from the
leases of gold. The banks have granted gold leasing financing to
the Group under the same banking facilities arrangement of the
Group’s bank borrowings (note 24(b)).

The fair values of the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss as at 31 December 2014 are determined based on a valuation
performed by ROMA using observable inputs including gold future
price and risk free rates. During the year, fair value loss on financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss was HK$13,020,000 (note
6(a)).

23.

EREREAFEIK
ZEmBE

RER - AEEHRKBRITHEATES

pErBB LSRRG L8R
ERGFNDEHMEEEHEE
o HEBARALEEERFHME
AEREEMARNESEERT
TxNEelEENE - HEHA—
FR - AEBERABEEESE
ENESEREESRERR - RZRBARK
TEENESHE ARMEZK
Mhﬂﬁ%L% 7 o RITERIE
AEFEBRITEFRNERRITEER

ﬁﬁﬁ%l&ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%@é@mf
24(b)) °

R-ZE—NF+=-_A=+—HB&EB
B ATEIRzeHEBERF
BENRERESFRTERME AR
Bﬂa%a@% 5B 1% & R F

R)VETHEEMET - RFERN - B
@ﬁmﬁﬁ$ﬁﬂ$2$ﬂﬁﬁm
N F{EEE A 13,020,000 7T (M sF
6(a)) °



borrowings as follows:

Secured bank and other
borrowings

Secured bank overdrafts

Unsecured bank and
other borrowings

Loan from a shareholder

Carrying amounts repayable:
Within 1 year or on demand
After 1 year but within 2 years

After 2 years but within 5 years

After 5 years

Non-current portion

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had bank and other

BEARITR
HHER

BHEARITER
SERRITR
HEHER

RE—BRRE
ZER 35(alfi

REEFEREE -
—FRRERK

—FAHEMEFELAR
MEALERFHAR

FENHE R

CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOUR

b

DINGS CO., LTD
R A R A 7

135

24, SRITREMER

RZZE—NF+—_A=+—H =&
EEBBUTRITNEMER

The Group

2014
“E-mF
HK$'000
THT

3,148,793
8,008

757,828

1,627,370
1,098,814
782,605

405,840
3,914,629
(1,627,370)

2,287,259

2013

HK$'000
TR

2,225,985

1,241,373

140,400

1,953,500
620,522
1,033,736

3,607,758
(1,953,500)

1,604,258

The Company
LN

2014
—2-RF
HK$'000
TER

377,716

420,247

377,716
14,407
405,840

797,963

2013

HK$'000
SR

140,400

140,400
(140,400)




136 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 55k

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥R < B &t

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated A 5K » B B A FTFESM)

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
(@) During the year, the Group early redeemed 50,000,000

redeemable preferred shares (the “RP Shares”) together with
the surrender of the 2012 Warrants as agreed by CMMA for a
consideration of US$69 million, of which US$17.3 million was
prepaid to CMMA in 2013 (note 19(e)). The Group recognised
a loss on early redemption of the RP Shares and the 2012
Warrants in total of HK$154,751,000 (note 6(a)), including a gain
on redemption of the 2012 Warrants of HK$93,576,000 (note
26). The RP Shares Securities and Guarantees Package was
released. The definition of CMMA, the 2012 Warrants and the
RP Shares Securities and Guarantees Package are set out in
the following paragraphs in this section.

The RP Shares were issued to Components and Materials M&A
Private Equity Fund (“CMMA”) at an issue price of US$1 per
share with a total principal amount of US$50,000,000 on 12
June 2012 by Decent Connection Overseas Limited (“Decent”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to the
agreements of the RP Shares, on 12 June 2012, the Company
issued warrants with a principal amount of HK$116,400,000
(the “2012 Warrants”) to CMMA. The issue price of the 2012
Warrants was nil. The holder of the RP Shares was entitled to
a fixed preferred dividend of 10% per annum of the principal
amount, payable semi-annually in arrears. The RP Shares would
be redeemed on the fifth anniversary of the issue date of the RP
Shares. Decent was entitled to redeem after six months of the
issue date of the RP Shares. The 2012 Warrants entitled the
holders to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$2.1 per share with an expiration
date for five years commencing from the issue date of the 2012
Warrants. The 2012 Warrants were transferable.

2. BITREMER =
@RFEN A £ B2 ® O

50,000,000 A% 7] §& B8 S A% ([ 7]
FBOELR ) ERLCMMARE
E&ﬁm—“—:ﬁm&%: ae
BAREOBEXTL W_T—=
FRE EPZWSEF%%mE%E
F FCMMA (Hf 5E19(g)) » 7~ &
EiERELR A ERELR R
_:_—ﬁEuLI\HXTg ﬁEH %TED/\
154,751,000 7t (FizE6(a) (£
FER T —FRBREEFE 2K
#593,576,0007% 7t (i 5£26)) °
] E BB R IR IR R IERA A Y
EERRK c CMMA - —ZE— 4
TR 7E N ] FE B8 ST IR 1R &
EREAZTEESH AR T

+
3 o
=

ABELELERBARNAEZE
¥ B /A 7)Decent Connection
Overseas Limited ([ Decent])
RZE—Z—FXA+ZHM
Components and Materials M&A
Private Equity Fund ([CMMA |) ??z
BITEERI1EZELET A¢
=+50,000,000 % 7T ° *ET)‘E_IEE
BEBHZ R ——F A
+ZH  ARAF M CMMAZETTA
% 58 /4 116,400,0007%8 7T 2 B %
BEB(ZZE—Z_FRREE]) -
:3_—EEL\HXTEE§Z§§TTF%
TonBERELARZFEEABR
FFEWEAE 10% 2 BT 128 5L
B B¥FRE—XK- aJEEE
Jo A% & A AT BB BB o AR 31T B B
ZERERFE BER - Decent
ERENTERELRZEITHEN
Al A&fER - —F— —FRRE
muT%?Tﬁ}\J’/\tHXz 1 /%EZH/U
BERBAAR ZHEBR 3
HAR—ZT ——FRREFRET
HEffETmMAFZH - —F—=
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24, SRITREMER @)

(@) (Continued) (@) (%)

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

The RP Shares were secured by a bank deposit of Decent not
less than US$2.5 million (equivalent to approximately HK$19.5
million) and share charge of three subsidiaries of the Group (note
27) and a guarantee given by the Company (the “RP Shares
Securities and Guarantees Package”).

(b) At 31 December 2014, the Group’s secured bank overdrafts,

secured bank and other borrowings and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss (note 23) were pledged by the
Group’s assets and share charge of certain subsidiaries of the
Group (note 27), share charge of a substantial shareholder of
the Company which is wholly owned by an executive director of
the Company, and guarantees given by certain subsidiaries and
the Company, two executive directors of the Company and a
related party (notes 35(a)(i)&(ii)).

As at 31 December 2013, save as disclosed in (a) above,
the Group’s secured bank overdrafts and bank and other
borrowings were pledged by the Group’s assets and share
charge of certain subsidiaries of the Group, guarantees given by
certain subsidiaries and the Company and an executive director
and substantial shareholder of the Company.

7] B [2 18 55 A% LA Decent 2 $R177F
RTER25BEETL(HHERL
195 BEBT) KAEE=FHHE
NAEZBRADE R (FzE27) LA R AR
NERH 2 EREER (AT ER
BRI RIERES]) -

bR —FT-—OFE+_A=+—H"

AEEBZEEBRTEY  BER
BRTEREMER M BEBREBERIE
NEES Rz 2 A E(E23)
EEBAEByEERAEES
T BT 8 A &)z B VB 1R (B[ 5
27) * AREl—REERER (KR
Al BRITEE2EAHBZEE
RE)RHER - RBEETHEA
A RAREARARBRBHIT
EER— R TEDER (M
35(a)(i) K (i) °

R-TB—=F+-A=+—8"
B EX ()T REES - NEEZ
EEARITIBE A MIRIT R EAM
EREEBAEEZEENAE
=5 0B~ B 2 B (R
NBETHERBRARRRIAR
ARRATEER T ERRIEL
S



138 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 F 3k

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated A 5K » B B A FTFESM)

24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

(c) During the year, the Company issued bonds with total principal
amount of HK$487 million with net proceeds of HK$410 million
after deducting issuing expenses. The net proceeds were fully
applied for the Group’s general working capital during the year.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, the Company
further issued bonds with total principal amount of HK$230
million with net proceeds of HK$192 million after deducting
issuing expenses (note 37(b)). The bonds are unsecured, bear
interests at 6% to 6.5% per annum and will mature within 3 to 8
years from the date of issue of the bonds.

(d) Save as disclosed in above (c), as at 31 December 2014 and
2013, the Group’s unsecured bank and other borrowings were
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries and the Company.

(e) The range of effective interest rates on the Group’s fixed rate and
variable rate bank and other borrowings are 5% to 10% (2013:
6% to 21%) and 2% to 17% (2013: 2% to 17%) respectively.

2. RITREMER @
) RERN RARIEITAGETES

ABTEBABTZES SNk EH
TR BB HREFEAM0R
BB I3 EFEERTE
NEEREREBEN—REEE
T RREHELERE - AQF
E—PRITASBRER20EE
B ES KHNBRFITHE
BEATGERIEFERINAEEBAT
(FFEE37(0)) - ZFEFH BEIR
o RFEFERE6% E6.5% B
B EEHFEITHHEIZESFNR
FIHR -

Br E X EE N B
E-NEERFTE—=F+=H
=+—0  AEEZEERRT
MEMERBE THBAR KA
NAELR o

(e) AN SR &l TE | R Ko ¥ B M R AR 1T

REMER 2 ERFNEEHEH A
RSN E10% (=T —=F : 6%
B221%) M2% E17% (& —=
F 2% FE17%) °
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 25. AR ES
The Group and The Company
FEEREAT
Derivative
component of
redemption
Liability Equity option
component component  EBEEREZ Total
BEHA BHB6N fTED A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TAT
(note 26)
(PizE26)
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=F—-f—H - - - -
Convertible bonds issued BETABRRES 978,312 2,207 9,142 989,661
Interest expense charged FAGEERERL
to consolidated income FERY
statement 74,792 - - 74,792
Interest paid ERFIE (37,265) - - (37,265)
Fair value loss AVEEE - - 15,821 15,821
At 31 December 2013 and RZE-=F+ZA=+—H
1 January 2014 k=E—-mE—-H—H 1,015,839 2,207 24,963 1,043,009
Conversion into shares BB BRG (1,945) 4 (95) (2,044)
Interest expense charged SAGEBRERL
to consolidated MR (FE6(a)
income statement (note 6(a)) 83,457 - - 83,457
Interest paid ERFIE (74,499) - - (74,493)
Fair value loss AVEEE - - 49,441 49,441

At 31 December 2014 RZE-NE+-A=+—HB 1,022,858 2,203 74,309 1,099,370
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

On 4 February 2013, the Company issued the convertible bonds
with the principal amount of HK$1,028,000,000 with net proceeds
of HK$989,661,000 after deducting issuing expenses. On 5
February 2013, the convertible bonds were listed on the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited. The convertible bonds bear
interest at 7.25% per annum and will mature on 4 February 2018.
The convertible bonds entitle the holders to convert the convertible
bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at a conversion price of
HK$1.8125 at any time on or after 17 March 2013 up to the close
of business on the date falling ten days prior to the maturity date.
The holder of the convertible bonds will have the right to require
the Company to redeem the convertible bonds on 4 February
2016 at its principal amount together with accrued unpaid interest.
The Company will have the right to redeem all of the convertible
bonds at their principal amount together with accrued unpaid
interest to such date at any time after 4 February 2016, provided
that the volume weighted average price of an ordinary share of the
Company, for each of twenty consecutive trading days, the last of
which occurs not more than five trading days prior to the date upon
which the relevant redemption notice is given, was at least 130%
of the conversion price of the convertible bonds then in effect
immediately prior to the date upon which notice of such redemption

is given.

During the year, convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,000,000 were converted into 1,103,448 new
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.125 each (note 29(b)(ii)).
No new shares of the Company were issued upon exercise of the

convertible bonds during the year ended 31 December 2013.

25. AR ES @)

RZE—=F_AWMH  KAQF)%*H
17 /X % 8 /1,028,000,00078 T 2
R ES RS RBEFER
989,661,000 % 7T ( 4¢ 1 Bk 8 17
) e RZE—=F_AAH" AL
BREFRINEESFRIAERA
Al LT AT MRESFRFENET.25
B EY#HR T - NF-_ANA
FER - TR ESFR FIHEE AREF
AR -_E—=F=ZA+tHBx2E
EZXFHANE TR EXEBE
REF A IEBE RS A] R E H DA K 8
E18126 B TR M AR AR E R
g - AJRRESFEABBRERAE
NAIR -_ZE—RNFE-_AMNBKRER
© B8 E R JEFT AR ) 2 B AT R iR
BF - ARAIR_E—R"F-AK
AzB(MAEB-_TEEEX S A
(EHE—RTiBiBAE BERBAE
HRESAITAERSH) AAE—K&
TBERCEKRENEFHEEL A
EE A WEE LR L B HATE R
R ES A BRI E 2 130%) B
RERBZAIBRBRESFCACTEER
HEZALEARNZNEED 2
o mRES -

REARN N& L FEAE 12000000
BT AR ESHE 51,103,448
f% & B EE0.125 T 2 AN R Al ¥
B A (M RE29(0)) - REE -
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BmEATEATRBRESMBEITAQA
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25. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 25, AARES @

Based on a valuation performed by ROMA, using discounted RIBZEGFRE 2HEDEAMBER
cash flow model at an equivalent market interest rate for a similar EMBEARERREZREGSZ
bond without a conversion option, the effective interest rate of the EEMSMNEETE RN BRRKRES
liability component was 8.6% per annum at the date of issue of the BITHE AEHHDcERFERNE
convertible bonds. At the end of the reporting period, the following A8.6[E - NIEMR - THIRETY
assumptions are used to calculate the fair values of the derivative AR EBRIRESE L EBRE
component of redemption option of the convertible bonds based PTEBD2AFEBRESERAR
on a valuation performed by ROMA using the Monte Carlo BRERERZHREGEET) -

simulation method:

At At
31 December 31 December

2014 2013
R=-B-mE R-FT-=F
t=A=+-B +=A=+—AH

Closing share price (HKS) et & (Br) 0.63 1.19
Conversion price (HK$) HRBEGET) 1.8125 1.8125
Expected remaining life of AR ESFTERRIGREE (F)

the convertible bonds (years) 3.10 4.10
Expected volatility (%) TEHR B) (%) 31 43
Risk free rate (%) [ A (%) 1.01 1.07
Expected dividend yield (%) TEEARR B K (%) 0 0
Discount rate (%) BRI (%) 10.50 9.13
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

20 PTESRT A

The Group and The Company

REERAADT
Derivative
component of
redemption
option of
convertible
2011 2012 bonds
Warrants Warrants R ES
—E—-& —E-CEF B ERE Total
ARER AR TSR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
(notes 26(a) (notes 24(a)
& (b)) & 26(b) (note 25)
(i3 26(0) (B3t 24(8) &
) 26(0)) (FitsE 25)
At1 January 2013 W-2-=%-A-R 62,467 94,009 - 156,476
Convertible bonds at issue date RETABZ MRRES - - 9,142 9,142
Fair value (gain)/loss (note 6(a)) NTE (W) /B8 (Hiea) (26,799) (433) 15,821 (11,411)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+-A=1-H 35,668 93,576 24,963 154,207
Representing: ol -
Current portion i) 35,668 - - 35,668
Non-current portion E ) - 93,576 24,963 118,539
At 1 January 2014 RZE-mF-A—-H 35,668 93,576 24,963 154,207
Conversion into shares AR ERR - - (%) (95)
Fair value loss (note 6(a)) ATERRE (H3E6(a) 243 - 49,441 49,684
Derecognised upon redemption REREEIFER
(note 24(a) (Fi7E24(a)) - (93,576) - (93,576)
Derecognised upon expiration IR R
(note 26(a)) (BizE26(a) (35,911) - - (35,911)
At 31 December 2014 RIB-ME+-A=1—-H - - 74,309 74,309
Representing: ok -
Non-current portion EEE) - - 74,309 74,309
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 26. STHEERMTI A @)

(@) The Company issued warrants with a total principal amount @ ARARREBER_Z—FEETE
of HK$93,480,000 pursuant to a warrant instrument executed LRBREBNBRETACEER
in 2011 (the “2011 Warrants”) and placed a bank deposit of 93%omm%n2_ﬁﬂéﬁﬁ_
US$4,603,000 (equivalent to HK$35,911,000) as security T ——FRREE] -z
for a voluntary surrender premium to the holders of the 2011 —=FLARITFNRS, 603 000%
Warrants in 2013, provided that any of the 2011 Warrants 7T (FHE 7 35,911,000/87T) 1EA
would not be exercised at maturity date. The 2011 Warrants E—FRBREEREAERE
entitled the holders to subscribe for new ordinary shares of the ERB2ER WAREAMNCZ
Company at a subscription price of HK$2.1 per share during T——FRBREBERINEAK
the period from 22 August 2011 to 22 August 2014. The 2011 TiIE e —E——FREREZM
Warrants were transferable. During the year, all of the 2011 THRBAREN AIR-ZZE——%F
Warrants have not been exercised and have expired and the NAZF+ZHBEBEZZ—HFN
Company’s bank deposit of US$4,603,000 (equivalent to AZ+ZHILHHE - me8&REkH
HK$35,911,000) as security for a voluntary surrender premium CABTRBERBARRIE
was paid to the holders of the 2011 Warrants. Al —ET——FRREFRT

FEZE -NFR - IE_T——
FRBREFZHAETFEREE R
8 - RARREERTTF 584,603,000
E7T (HBEMN35911,000/87T) 1E
AEREEB2EFE N T
T ——FRBIEEZBA -

(b) No new shares of the Company were issued upon exercise of ) REE_ZE—NFR_T—=F
the 2011 Warrants and the 2012 Warrants during the years TZA=T—HLFE #E&E
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. ﬁfi:?——iwﬂx%%& =z

“FREEEMBEITARENE
D o
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21. EEEH

RZE—mMFE+=—A=+—H ' &
SELTERAECEECARER
R1T R EH A E (M 5FE 24(2) & (b)) PA
LEBREREATEIECZSREA

27. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s assets with the following
carrying amounts were pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings (notes 24(a) & (b)) and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (note 23):

& (ff3E 23)
The Group The Company
by, | YN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E2-mF —2-=F “E-NF 2%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TET FHL FiEn T
Intangible assets - BYEE-
mining rights e 13(a) 3,091,318 2,704,772 - -
Fixed assets ET&E 14(b) 1,624,720 728,073 - -
Construction in progress rRIR 15(a) 48,756 43,648 - -
Trade receivables FEYERRR 19 21,495 - - -
Pledged deposits [REEREEE N 20 794,480 458,340 2,516 35,911
5,580,769 3,934,833 2,516 35,911

As at 31 December 2014, all issued shares of six (2013: five)
subsidiaries of the Company were subject to share charge as
security pledged for bank and other borrowings (note 24(b)) and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (note 23).

W-ZE—-—NFE+-_A=+—H" K
NEANE(ZE—=F: AfH) KB
RNEIZ BB RITRNE AERTT
N E M E 2R (K 5E24(0) A R iE BB
@R ATEIIEzemE &M=
23) Z AN AR -
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. IEFEREIE
(a) Deferred tax liabilities recognised ( ERRELEBIEAE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the FRARGEVBRARERZIE
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements EFIEE BRSO REEBIT

during the year are as follows:

The Group
AEH
Intangible
assets
BREE
HK$’000
AT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE—=F—F—H 675,729
Exchange adjustments PE 5 R 20,546
Credited to consolidated REREEERETA
income statement 7(a) (89,124)
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F+=-A=+—H 657,151
At 1 January 2014 RNZE—UFE—H—H 657,151
Exchange adjustments PE 5 R (10,968)
Credited to consolidated REREEERETA
income statement 7(a) (22,473)

At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—NF+=-_A=+—H 623,710
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28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 December 2014, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries amounted
to HK$1,799,533,000 (2013: HK$1,566,243,000) and deferred
tax liabilities of HK$179,953,000 (2013: HK$156,624,000) have
not been recognised in these financial statements. In the opinion
of the Company’s directors, the Group controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute profits in the
foreseeable future.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2014, the Group
and the Company have not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of cumulative tax losses of HK$18,779,000 (2013:
HK$20,056,000) and HK$18,779,000 (2013: HK$18,779,000)
respectively as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses of the Group
and the Company do not expire under current tax legislation,
except for amount of the Group’s tax losses of HK$1,277,000
as at 31 December 2013 which expired in the coming two to
five years.

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of

each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of
the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the beginning and the end of the reporting period are
set out below:

28. IEFZEFRIE (@)
(b) RERELEHIBEE =

R-ZZE—MNMF+_-_A=+—
H BEASEEFLEHKEAR
RAZRKDERBMN2ERERR
1,799,533,000% (=T — =
4 1 1,566,243,00078 7T ) M iE
ERITB A E 179,953,000 7T (=
T — = £F : 156,624,00078 7T ) I
KRR EM MR MER - XA A
EERE AEBEHZENE
NAEIZRBEER - WRARATE
AARZENBLARBAETE
DR A

BREXEREN RZT—NF
+ZA=+—8  AEEEAR
A 4B B R B Rt B IS
B 2ELERIEE E 18,779,000 7
7T( = ZF — = % : 20,056,000
JL) }& 18,779,000 8 L (ZF—=
F :18,779,0008 ) RA &
HEH B AR R BT 0] 4
BREAATAREEZEBE AR
RIERBURF] o NEBE RAAQ A
2 B EBARE B AR B AfINE
“ZHE EAEER =T —=
F+-_A=+—BNHBERE
1,277,000 BT AR EKMERFA
EIEABIRR AN ©

29. BRAKF#E
(a) REFEIMLAEER S HEKE DR EF

VEREREHRZHBRANGEEE
BEBK ARFFEREEAK
MONBE BV ELER 2 E B
IELCANE
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(@) (Continued) (@) (&)
The Company RAF]
Convertible
Warrants bond
Share Share reserve  equity reserve Capital ~ Accumulated
capital premium IREE TERES reserve losses Total
A Rt B Bl ERfi 2itEE aE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ThT T Thn AT AT T
(note (b)) (note(d)() (note (c)) (notes (d)(v) & 25) (note (clii)
(PfzE (o)) (A&t () }25)
At January 2014 R-E-RE-A-A 543,841 4,299,250 1,260 2,207 123,514 (821,936) 4,148,126
Changesinequiy for 016: TE-MEZERRE:
Total comprehensive EE2RBROE
loss for the year - - - - - (148,081) (148,081)
Issue of new shares EEin 31,250 168,750 - - - - 200,000
Shares issued upon conversion R ES
of convertible bonds AR RY 138 1906 - 4 - - 2,040
Eauity-settled share-based WRERS
payments R EwE - - - - 16,808 - 16,808
Lapse of share options BRERH - - - - (6,299) 6,299 -
Expiry of warrants AREEE - - (1,250 - - 1250 -
Transaction costs atiroutableto {731 (7
issue of new shares EERSHA - 6,072) - - - - (6,072)
At31 December 2014 R-E-RE
+ZB=1-8 575,229 4,463,834 - 2,208 134,028 (962,468) 4,212,821
At1 January 2013 R-E-=£-f-H 543,841 4,299,250 1,250 6,877 86,297 (650,080) 4,086,435
Changes in equtyfor 2013: “E-CERERE.
Total comprehensive FERAFELE
loss for the year - - - - - (177,192) (177,192)
Issue of convertible bonds HIURRES - - - 2207 - - 2,001
Redemption of convertible bonds IR (&5 - - - (6,877) - 5,33 (1,541)
Equity-settied share-based DYy <i=bd
payments ROEET L - - - - 38217 - 38,217
At31 December 2013 RZE-ZF
+ZA=1-8 543,841 4,099,250 1,250 2,207 123,514 (821,936) 4,148,126
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 9. RAR @@
(b) Share capital (b) A& A<
Authorised and issued share capital SEER EBITIRAK
2014
“E-ME
Number
of shares of shares
RA%E OELE
'000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
i FiEn Tik TAR
Authorised: EERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.125 each BREE0.1258 T L ER
At 1 January and R-A-BR
31 December +-R=1-H 10,000,000 1,250,000 10,000,000 1,250,000
Ordinary shares, issued and full paid: LER BERARAR:
At 1 January W-A-H 4,350,727 543,841 4,350,727 543,841
Issue of new shares (note) BoEit (k) 250,000 31,250 - -
Issue of new shares upon PRETARERE
conversion of convertible bonds BITHIR (k)
(note (i) 1,104 138 - -
At 31 December M=A=1+-H 4,601,831 575,229 4,350,727 543,841
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(b) Share capital (Continued)

Authorised and issued share capital (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  During the year, the Company issued and allotted 250,000,000
new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.125 each at
an issue price of HK$0.8 by placement with net proceeds of
HK$193,928,000 after deducting issuing expenses.

(i)  During the year, the convertible bonds with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,000,000 were fully converted into 1,103,448
new ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.125 each at the
conversion price of HK$1.8125 each (note 25).

All new ordinary shares issued and allotted during the year rank pari
passu in all respects with the then existing ordinary shares of the
Company in issue.

(c) Warrants reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net proceeds received from
the issue of warrants of the Company. The reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium accounts upon
the exercise of the warrants.

PEESBERERER DA

29. AR & @)
(b) BR AN (&)
EERBEBITIRA (#)

BIEE

m

RERN ARABBEEIR
1T E0.8/%8 T B 17 & B &
250,000,000 f% & % Al {E0.125
B LB - FTSUEFEE
193,928,000/ 7T ( £ 0 Bk 2%
1IFRZIE) -

—

(i) MERN - AN&E 4% 52,000,000
B2 AR E S A K RESR
1.8125 B EREH AR AT
1,103,448 IR EARE(E 0.125 87T
ZEEER (HE25)

WER - BRTRERZ AN HE
BRI A ERARTEHERTR
BERREERSL -

() FR AR HE R it 1

REEEREHERERTARARK
RERE FTUCER 2 FT 1S SR IBVF R © 3%
{89 45 170 78 P e o 7T 1 By 33
ERAR R 5 B o
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(c) Warrants reserve (Continued)

In 2010, the Company issued two tranches of non-listed
warrants, which include 100,000,000 warrants (“Warrant A”) and
50,000,000 warrants (“Warrant B”) at the issue price of HK$0.01
and HK$0.005 each respectively for an aggregate consideration
of HK$1,250,000. The holder of each Warrant A and Warrant
B would be entitled to subscribe for one new ordinary share of
the Company at an exercise price of HK$2.6 and HK$3.2 each
respectively for the subscription period from 5 August 2010 to
11 June 2014. During the year, all of Warrant A and Warrant B
have not been exercised and have expired.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend
is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) d) BEEER AR @)

(i) Capital reserve (i) EXGHE

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual or
estimated number of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 2(r)(ii). Details of the share option schemes of the
Company are disclosed in note 31.

(iii) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises the exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of the
Group’s operations outside Hong Kong.

(iv) Statutory reserves

Statutory surplus reserves

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to transfer
10% of their net profit, as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must be
made before distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make good
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into
share capital by the issue of new shares to shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings or by increasing
the par value of the shares currently held by them, provided
that the balance after such issue is not less than 25% of
their registered capital.
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Statutory reserves (Continued)

(v)

Safety production fund

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the Group’s
subsidiaries are required to transfer safety production fund
at fixed rates based on a specific amount of volume of gold
ores excavated to a specific reserve account. The fund is
used for improvements of safety of the mines and is not
available for distribution to the shareholders. Upon incurring
qualifying safety expenditure, an equivalent amount would
be transferred from safety production fund to retained
profits.

Convertible bond equity reserve

The convertible bond equity reserve comprises the value
of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Group recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note 2(0)

(-

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to owners of the Company was
HK$3,501,366,000 (2013: HK$3,477,314,000), which included
the balances of share premium and accumulated losses,
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.
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29. BARGFEE @
H EAXAEE

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)
(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity plus net debts. The Group’s net
debts include bank and other borrowings, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss and convertible bonds, less cash
and cash equivalents and pledged deposits. The Group’s total
equity comprises total issued share capital and reserves of the
Group. The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting periods is as
follows:

AEEEREAZEHEBRNR
[EAEEEMEBRBEFERLS
AEBEEL - femiEa R RKE
FE 8 2 2 an S AR 7 TE (B IA Ko &
BRERAZRE  HERER
BERHRE AEMF N ERIEER

N2
o

B

AEENREEAGBLE (ARF
EIRRR AR S INFEIR) BEEE
Ko REEZFBERBRRITR
HpER  ERBREAFET
Rz mABRARRES) R
ERS LR EEFBYRCERE
R AEBZRERBEARE
BRITBRABE RS - R&RE
HIRzEERBLERMT

Total debts RIFERE
Less: Pledged deposits B B ERER

Cash and cash equivalents ReERBREEEY
Net debts FEIR

Gearing ratio BEAGHER

2014

—E—{mF

HK$’000

THET
5,700,776 4,623,597
(794,480) (458,340)
(31,479) (522,285)
4,874,817 3,642,972
10,757,358 9,565,819
45% 38%

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher returns to
the owners of the Company that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the year.

AREETEREHREN NEEEXR
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29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 29. BRAK wfE m)
(f) Capital management (Continued) () EREE (&)
Except for share charge of certain subsidiaries of which BRETHE ARG ER (GFE
details are set out in note 27, neither the Company nor any FHAKTE27) 4N A AR REA
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital ARBARRNEBEE-ZE—NFE K
requirements during the years ended 31 December 2014 and —EF—=F+ZA=+—HLF
2013. EBL BB TINBIEN 2 B A4
E o
30. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 30. ETRIREF

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the relevant local
government authorities in the PRC whereby the Group is required
to make contributions to the Schemes at a rate ranging from 10%
t0 20% (2013: 10% to 20%) of the eligible employees’ salaries. The
local government authorities are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the
MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior to June 2014).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with those schemes beyond the annual contributions
described above.

The total costs charged to consolidated income statement of
HK$9,040,000 (2013: HK$8,193,000) represent contributions
payable to these scheme by the Group during the year.
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The Company has two share option schemes: the 2004 Share
Option Scheme and the 2014 Share Option Scheme.

The 2004 Share Option Scheme was adopted by a resolution
passed by the Company’s shareholders on 18 September 2004
whereby the directors of the Company were authorised, at their
discretion, to invite directors and employees of the Group, to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company up to a
maximum of 160,000,000 shares. By a resolution passed by the
Company'’s shareholders on 26 May 2011, the Company refreshed
the limit in respect of the granting of share options under the 2004
Share Option Scheme and all other share options scheme up to
10% of the total number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue. The 2004 Share Option Scheme would be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years ended on 17 September 2014. By a
resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders on 30 May 2014,
the 2004 Share Option Scheme was terminated and thereafter no
further options would be offered or granted under the 2004 Share
Option Scheme. However, outstanding options granted under the
2004 Share Option Scheme remain valid and exercisable. The
exercise price of options under the 2004 Share Option Scheme is
at least the highest of:

() the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on which an
offer of an option is made by the Company to the grantee (which
date must be a business day);

(i) a price being the average of the closing prices of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

31.
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31.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The 2014 Share Option Scheme was adopted by a resolution
passed by the Company’s shareholders on 30 May 2014. The 2014
Share Option Scheme provides that the board of the directors of
the Company (the “Board”) may specify the eligible participants
to whom the options shall be granted. The eligible participants
include directors, employees, suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents and advisers of the Company and its subsidiaries and any
person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has contributed or
may contribute to the Group in recognition of their contribution to
the Group. The Board shall determine the exercise price of option
in accordance with the terms of the 2014 Share Option Scheme,
which cannot in any event fall below the price stipulated in the
Listing Rules. The maximum number of the ordinary shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the 2014 Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% (i.e.
435,127,903 shares) of the ordinary shares of the Company in issue
as at the date when the 2014 Share Option Scheme is approved
and adopted. The 2014 Share Option Scheme was effective on
4 June 2014 and will remain valid and effective for a period of 10
years from that date. No share option under the 2014 Share Option
Scheme of the Company was granted during the year.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the 2004 Share Option
Scheme and 2014 Share Option Scheme, the maximum number
of ordinary shares of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the 2004 Share Option Scheme and 2014 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not exceed 30% of the total number of ordinary shares of the
Company in issue from time to time.

31.
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continuea)  31.

2004 Share Option Scheme

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the
year are as follows, whereby all options are settled by physical

delivery of shares:

Number of shares
issuable under
options granted
REERE
i e

RTRE
ZHA
'000
T

Options granted on 28 October 2011
REB——F+A=Z+NBERE

2B
Tranche 1
E—H#t
— Directors 33,600 24 months from date of grant 6 years
-EF B B # s =+ m{E A 6
— Employees 46,830 24 months from date of grant 6 years
-&EE B BB s =+ m{E A 64
— Consultants 19,5600 24 months from date of grant 6 years
- B B % B HEET =+ m{E A 64
99,930
Tranche 2
o
— Directors 44,800 36 months from date of grant 6 years
-EF B B ERET =+ 7X@ A 6F
— Employees 62,440 36 months from date of grant 6 years
-E& B &% B R E =758 A 64
— Consultants 26,000 36 months from date of grant 6 years
— R B H B E =171 A 64
138,240
Tranche 3
FE=4t
— Directors 33,600 48 months from date of grant 6 years
-EF B & BB A+ )\ 8 A 64
— Employees 46,830 48 months from date of grant 6 years
-&EE B % B #ET -\ 8 A 6
— Consultants 19,600 48 months from date of grant 6 years
- Ff B B AR+ )\ @ A 64
99,930
Total number
of shares issuable 333,100

A T EITR D 2 48

N2 BEMRWHEE

Vesting conditions

BEIRE

Contractual life
of options
BREZ
EREH
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued) N UREZECRHER

5 @
2004 Share Option Scheme (Continued) —ETNFEERETE (@)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (h) BB S B RintETFIITE BN
options are as follows: T

Number of Number of

shares shares

issuable issuable

under under

Weighted options  Weighted options

average granted  average granted
exercise BREEHEE  exercise REEEH
price  Exercise  BRIET price  Exercise  BERRIER
mEFY  price FROBH METH price FEATMA
fTEE fTEE 288 B B b !

HK$ HK$ ’000 HK$ HK$ '000
BT ; TR BT BT T

Outstanding at 1 January —B—RERTE
Tranche 1 F—4t 1.51 78,030 1.51 96,330
Tranche 2 Eimbiid 1.51 104,040 1.51 128,440
Tranche 3 E= 1.51 78,030 1.51 96,330
Total 4=t 1.51 260,100 1.51 321,100

Lapsed during the year RERXHK
Tranche 1 st 1.51 (10,350) 1.51 (18,300)
Tranche 2 Ehabii 1.51 (13,800) 1.51 (24,400)
Tranche 3 F=H 1.51 (10,350) 1.51 (18,300)

Total @t 1.51 (34,500) 1.51 (61,000)
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued) N URELZECRHER

R % ()
2004 Share Option Scheme (Continued) —EETNFEEREE @
(h) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share (b) B S B RhniE 91T E M
options are as follows: (Continued) T (&)

2014
—E-mF
Number of Number of
shares shares
issuable issuable
under under
Weighted options  Weighted options

average granted  average granted
exercise BEERE  exercise RECEH
price  Exercise BRET price  Exercise  BEARHER]
T price FRTRG  METH price TR
1@ 1@ 2B Byl Byl pd =

HK$ HK$ ’000 HK$ HK$ ‘000
BT j BT Fht
Outstanding at +=A=+-H
31 December W RITE
Tranche 1 E—4t 1.51 67,680 1.51 78,030
Tranche 2 FEHt 1.51 90,240 1.51 104,040
Tranche 3 E=4t 1.51 67,680 1.51 78,030
Total st 1.51 225,600 1.51 260,100
Exercisable at +ZRA=+-H
31 December AT
Tranche 1 F—t 1.51 67,680 1.51 78,030
Tranche 2 g 1.51 90,240 - -
Tranche 3 E=Ht - - - -
Total =t 1.51 157,920 1.51 78,030




160 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated A 5K » B B A FTFESM)

31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2004 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows: (Continued)

(i) No options were exercised to subscribe for ordinary shares
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2013.

(i) The share options outstanding at 31 December 2014
had an exercise price of HK$1.51 (2013: HK$1.51) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.82 years
(20183: 3.82 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of options
granted is measured based on Black-Scholes Option Pricing
model. The contractual life of options is used as an input into
this model. Expectations of early exercise are incorporated into
Black-Scholes Option Pricing model.

31.
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31. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31.

2004 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (Continued)

BRI FERERAT

Fair value of share options and assumptions are as follows:

Tranche 1

Fair value at REtERMZAYE
measurement date (HK$) (B7T)

Share price (HK$) MAE GEIT)

Exercise price (HK$) 1T E (BT)

Expected volatility (%) TEERRE) (%)

Option life (expressed FE AR i R
as weight average life) (years) (RMEFHFE) (F)

Expected dividends yield (%) TEEARR B (%)

R ) =R
(RINEESZH) (%)

Risk-free interest rate
(based on Exchange
Fund Notes) (%)

Tranche 2 Tranche 3

FE—Ht g F=i
0.61 0.63 0.68
1.51 1.51 1.51
1.51 1.51 1.51
58 56 57

6 6 6

0 0 0
0.68 0.82 0.95

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility based
on publicly available information. Expected dividends are
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no
market conditions associated with the share options granted.

(d) The Group and the Company recognised the fair value of the

share options granted under the 2004 Share Option Scheme as
equity-settled share-based payment expenses and the capital
reserve of the Group and the Company of HK$16,808,000 (2013:
HK$38,217,000) and HK$16,808,000 (2013: HK$38,217,000),
respectively, during the year.

TEHR ) 0 LA SE R By I B EAR
BEARAISER Z FEHAR KB
HEBHMIELARE - BHKE IR
BELBRERKE - TEBAZE
RRzEB A e R FEZ AR
BREATE -

B RBRB GG MR L -
LB 1 3 B A A FT B AT 1S AR A 10
BRHB#HzAFE- - IREER
R E BT IG IR

O)FR AEBERAATEE T

TNFBARERTEIE T AT L
RiEZ A FERRAEAEERRAK
NAIABREEE 2 RO ERT
PERREREE £BI5 A
16,808,000/ ;L ( =T — =
38,217,000/ 7t ) % 16,808,000
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32. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

During the year, the Company had given corporate guarantees
to certain financial institutions in connection with bank and other
borrowings facilities granted to certain subsidiaries. At 31 December
2014, such facilities were drawn down by the subsidiaries to the
extent of HK$2,475 million (2013: HK$2,010 million). The maximum
liability of the Company under the guarantee issued represents the
amount drawn down by the subsidiaries of HK$2,475 million (2013:
HK$2,010 million). No recognition was made because the fair
values of these guarantees were insignificant and the directors of
the Company considered it is unlikely that a claim would be made

against the Company under these guarantees.

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group’s major financial instruments include pledged deposits,
cash and cash equivalents, trade and loans and other receivables,
trade and other payables, bank and other borrowings, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments and convertible bonds. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include credit, liquidity,
interest rate and currency risks. The Group is also exposed to price
risk arising from any unexpected changes in price of gold products.
These risks are limited by the Group’s financial management

policies described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
loans and other receivables and bank balances. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is

monitored on an ongoing basis.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables under the Gold Mining Operation,
credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. Credit terms up to two months
may be granted to customers, depending on the credit
worthiness of individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, there is certain concentration of credit risk as 34% (2013:
55%) of the total trade debtors under the Gold Mining Operation
was due from the Group’s five largest customers. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

In respect of loan receivables under the Other Operation,
the Group enters into transactions only with recognised and
creditworthy independent third parties. In accordance with the
policy of the Group, the Group examines and verifies the credit
risk of all customers that the Group has credit transactions
with. Besides, the Group monitors and controls the lease and
factoring receivables regularly to mitigate the risk of significant
exposure from bad debts. Credit risk is often greater when
customers are concentrated in one single industry or have
comparable economic characteristics. As the customers of
the Group are widely dispersed and are engaged in different
industries, there is no significant credit risk concentration within
the Group. The Group holds collateral of the customers’ assets
over their balances.

In respect of other receivables, the credit quality of the debtors
is assessed by taking into account of their financial position,
relationship with the Group, credit history and other factors.
Management regularly reviews the recoverability about these
receivables and follows up the amounts overdue, if any. The
directors are of the opinion that the probability of default by
counterparties is low.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (Continued)

The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts
due from subsidiaries and bank balances. The Company reviews
the recoverable amounts of amounts due from subsidiaries
at the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
high credit-rating agencies.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the Company
as set out in note 32, the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group or the Company
to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect
of these financial guarantees of the Company at the end of the
reporting period is disclosed in note 32.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and loans and other
receivables are set out in note 19.

(b) Liquidity risk

At 31 December 2014, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately HK$1,472,886,000. The Group is exposed
to liquidity risk of being unable to finance its future working
capital and financial requirements when they fall due. To
manage liquidity risk, the Group regularly monitors its current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from banks and financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to
finance its future working capital and financial requirements as
described in note 2(b) to the financial statements.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end
of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.

Specifically, for bank and other borrowings which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be exercised at the
lender’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be required
to pay, that is, if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for bank and other borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.
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The Group
A58
2014 2018
“5-pE 5-=F
Morethan  More than Morethan  More than
Total Within 1 year 2years Total Within 1year 2 years
contractual 1 year but but contractual 1year but but
undiscounted oron lessthan  lessthan undiscounted oron less then less than
Carrying  cash flow demand 2years 5years  More than Camying ~ cash flow demand 2 years Syears  More than
amount  FTAKFE  -ERE SH-E SWCE 5 years amount —Ehg
FAE RenELE EEX  BHNZE  RIREE  SHIE L EJiit3
HK$'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000 HK$'000
ThR THR THR TR TR ThR Thn T
Non-dervtive firancil Gabiites {74 SBEE
Trade and other payables R REEAE 391,595 391,595 391,595 - - - 256,788 256,788 256,788 - - -
Bankand other borowings T REMEH 3914620 4613570  1,853302 1,260,398 952,421 547353 | 3607758 4154788 2159713 760954 1,234,121 -
Convertible bonds TRRES 1022858 1,286,348 74,385 74385 1,137,578 - | 1015839 1363385 4530 TAB0 121430 -
5320082 6201513 2319372 1334783 2,000,005 547353 | 4880385 5774961 2491031 835,484 2,448,446 -
Derivative financial labltes fieeHas
Derivative finandial ESRIE
instruments 74309 - - - - - 164,207 152,311 3,91 - 116,400 -
Financiel fabiltes o far valve ~ EEERZATEREZ
through proft orloss 2EHAE 763289 783167 783167 - - - - - - _ _ _
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 33. ®RiEMREER M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B2 AFE@)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FRENE & E e (&)

The Company
Y%

2014
Zg-nE
Morethan ~ More than Morethan  More than
Total Within 1 year 2years Total Within 1 year 2 years

contractual 1year but but contractual 1 year but but
undiscounted oron  lessthan  lessthan undiscounted oron less than less than
Carrying  cash flow demand 2years Syears  More than Carrying W demand ) Syears  Morethan
amount  TAKER  -ERE SH-F SWSE Syears amount RE
FAE REREEE EEX  BIN-E  BIREE  SREE FEE B
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO0O HKS'000 0 HK§ 000
ThR ThR TAR ThR ThR ThR TR T A1 T

Nondervative fancil ailites ~~ EA7ESRER

Amounts dug to ERHEAANE

subsidiaries 79928 79928 79928 - - - 50,745 52,745 52,745 - - -
Other payebles HEEE 1957 1957 19547 - . B ARV BV - - -
Bank and other borrowings FIREHER 797,063 1,129927 54,085 421114 106,775 547,353 140400 140400 140,400 - - -
Convertible bonds ARRES 1,022,858 1.286.348 74385 74385 1.137.578 - | 1015839 1,363,385 74530 74530 121432 -

1920206 2,515,750 221,945 496,009 1,244,353 547,853 | 1221321 1,568,867 280,012 74530 121432 -

Dervative fnacialGailtes fEeHaE

Derivaive financial fieBIA
surerts 7309 - . - - S| omar wan s - g -
(c) Interest rate risk (c) R == fx
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to REEZHEREFN XK AT
variable-rate bank and other borrowings and bank balances and BFRRITREMER - HRE
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank and other =EATEIEZEmABE LR
borrowings, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss THEHBEEBRATFERERRE
and pledged deposits. EEFERITREMERREE

HIF B
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 33. S RiEMEER €M T

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) Bz ¥EE @
(c) Interest rate risk (Continued) (c) FI 2R [ Bes ()
(i) Interest rate profile () FIEEFH

TRFVNRREMRAEHE
RARBRITREMBER
FBBmRAVPEIEZE
BEEREEMER A X

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s bank and other borrowings,
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
pledged deposits at the end of the reporting period:

The Group
A28
2014 2013 2014 2013

The Company
407

Variable rate bank and
other borrowings

Fixed rate bank and
other borrowings

Total borrowings

Fixed rate borrowings
as a percentage of
total borrowings

Fixed rate financial liabilties at
fair value through profit or loss

Variable rate
hank balances
Fixed rate pledged
deposits

EEIES G
AEH

EEHERTR
EER

Lped

EEHEER
(R AT
BN

[EgibSisels
BOVESIEL
£BAE

e
Bk

BRASEER
%

-g-ns

Effective
interest
rates
ik

%

217

5-10

79

0.1-04

0.1-3.3

HK$'000
TiEn

2,078,792

1,835,837

3,914,629

47%

763,289

31,152

794,480

“3-=F
Effective
interest

HK$000
TiEL

217 1,426,600

621 2,181,158

3,607,758

60%

0104 519759
01-33 458,340

N
“g-pe
Effective
interest
rates
ik
HK$'000
%  TER
8 311,116
8-10 420,247
797,963
53%
0.1 25,127
0.1 2,516

“E-f
Effective
NEES
rates

% HK$000
%  TER

9 140,400
140,400

100%

0.1 6,691
01 3591
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(i) Sensitivity analysis

All of the bank and other borrowings, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss and pledged deposits of the
Group which are fixed rate instruments are insensitive to any
change in interest rates. A change in interest rate at the end
of the reporting period would not affect profit or loss.

At 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates
for variable rate bank and other borrowings and bank
balances, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s loss after tax and decrease/
increase the Group’s retained profits by approximately
HK$20,476,000 (2013: decrease/increase the Group’s
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$9,068,000) and increase/decrease the Company’s
loss after tax and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$3,526,000 (2013: HK$67,000). Other components of
consolidated equity would not change in response to the
general increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to the exposure to interest rate risk for variable rate
interest bearing financial instruments in existence at that
date. The 100 basis point increase/decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the end of the next
annual reporting period. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2013.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Gold product price risk

The Group is exposed to price risks arising from the market
price fluctuations on gold products. To protect the Group from
the impact of price fluctuations in gold products, the Group
entered into gold forward contracts during the year. Details are
set out in note 23 in these financial statements

Changes in the fair value of derivative contracts that
economically hedge the price fluctuations in gold products and
for which no hedge accounting is applied are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

(e) Currency risk
(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from the following significant assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

The management may consider to use forward foreign
exchange contracts to manage its foreign currency risk
arising from above anticipated transactions denominated in
foreign currencies. During the year, the Group did not enter
into any forward foreign exchange contracts to manage its
foreign currency risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(e) Currency risk (Continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued)

SET
B2z A E @
(e) B =P ()
() ZME R PR ATE (45)

The Group The Company
rEH KAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-F —T=F —E-MmF —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET TER FEL
Assets/(liabilities) BETIIEL
denominated in USD EE/(8F)
Cash and cash RekBes
equivalents =2 46 6,279 M 6,273
Pledged deposits BEAFR 2,516 55,411 2,516 35,911
Bank and other borrowings 817 R E B (377,716) (437,383 (377,716) (140,400)
Derivative financial fTESBTA
instruments - (129,244) - (129,244)
Total assets BEE 2,562 61,690 2,557 42,184
Total liabilities BaE (377,716) (566,627) (377,716) (269,644)

(i) SR HT

EEERR IERRETH
BT ERBEZ (TS
BITHERTTZ M RIE R EK
EARE RHUt BERHR

(i) Sensitivity analysis

The management considers that the pegged rate between
the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would
not be materially affected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States dollar against the Hong Kong
dollar. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2013.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial instruments measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13 Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data
are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 33. gﬁi@?ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂl

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

2 AFE @)

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) (f) 2 FEFTE @)
() Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value () BEAFEIERNEHEE

(Continued)
The Group
PN |
2014 2013
“EZ-QmF —T-—=F
Level 2 Level 2
F28R FoH
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER AT
Recurring fair value REMATLEE
measurements
Liabilities: &
Financial liabilities at fair value  #iBIEZIRATE
through profit or loss Rz e BB 763,289 -
Derivative financial instruments  $T44 & T & 74,309 154,207

REE#)

The Company
N

2014 2013
—E-NE “T=F

Level 2 Level 2
F24 FoM%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT

74,309 154,207

There were no transfers between instruments in all levels
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

An external independent valuation company, with
appropriate recognised professional qualifications, is
engaged to value the derivative financial instruments at each
financial reporting period. Appropriate valuation methods
and assumptions with reference to market conditions
existing at each financial reporting period to determine the
fair value of the derivative financial instruments are adopted.
The basis for determining the fair value is disclosed in notes
23, 25 and 26.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 33. @i EREER SR T
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B ;

(f) Fair value measurement (Continued) () AFEFTE @)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at (i) T FELIMNER < & Ft

other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s
financial instruments carried at cost or amortised cost
are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2014 and 2013 except for the convertible bonds.
As at 31 December 2014, the fair value of the convertible
bonds amounted to approximately HK$548,223,000 (2013:
HK$773,570,000) which is categorised into Level 1 fair
value measurements (i.e. unadjusted quoted prices).

(iii) Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is determined
by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length transaction
for similar services when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged by
lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made.
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34. COMMITMENTS

(@) As at 31 December 2014, the Group had contracted but not
provided for capital commitments in respect of the acquisitions
of gold mining and exploration rights of HK$15,817,000 (2013:
HK$16,217,000) and fixed assets of HK$6,263,000 (2013:
HK$4,858,000).

(b) At 31 December 2014, the Group’s total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payable
as follows:

Within 1 year —&FR
After 1 year but within 5 years —F A FERFUAA
After 5 years AFEMNUE

34, TRIE

@R—ZE—mFEF+=_A=+—8"
ANEE B BRI IR
ERBERTEEHRADINRE
KB E AR E 15,817,000 T

—F— =4 :16,217,0007 7T )
56,263,000 L( =T — =
4,858,000/87T) °

bR —FT-—NOFE+_A=+—H"
AEBRBEIA@ER 2 EERE
ERREN 2 REBENRER

BN
2014
—E—ME
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
1,137 3,770
2,095 2,517
792 1,299
4,024 7,586

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties for
an initial period of one to ten years. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

(c) The Company did not have any significant commitments as at
31 December 2014 and 2013.

REBRZEMEZEBA - 1)
TRE-—Z+F - ZZHELT
BREFAES -
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) During the year, the Group had the following related party
transactions:

M

(i)

During the year, Mr. Chang Yim Yang (“Mr. Chang”), an
executive director of the Company, has provided the share
charge of a company, which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company and wholly owned by Mr. Chang, as security
together with his personal guarantee for bank and other
borrowings facilities granted to the Group totally RMB880
million (equivalent to HK$1,100 million) (2013: RMB250
million (equivalent to HK$318 million)) (note 24(b)).

During the year, Mr. Zhang Shuguang, an executive director
of the Company, and his spouse have provided personal
guarantee for bank and other borrowings facilities granted
to the Group of RMB480 million (equivalent to HK$600
million) and RMB330 million (equivalent to HK$413 million)
respectively (2013: nil) (note 24(b)).

FEE
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BEALTRZ @m

(a) (Continued) (a) ()

i) REZE-_ZE—=F+_A
ST-HLEFE AAFA
—ZTERRZHB QA

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2013, a subsidiary
of a substantial shareholder of the Company granted a
loan of US$18 million (equivalent to HK$140.4 million) to

the Company. Mr. Li Xianghong was one of the executive
directors and shareholders of this substantial shareholder
of the Company. He was a non-executive director of the
Company during the period from 1 April 2014 to 9 July
2014. The loan was charged at an effective interest rate of
12% per annum, unsecured and repayable on 26 March
2014. Pursuant to a supplement agreement executed on
27 March 2014, both parties agreed that the loan would be
repayable on demand. The loan was fully repaid during the
year (note 24).

BE—218E8FT(HHE
R1404BEBBTL) 2ERK
FTARRG - FEBEERZ
FERRZEP—EZHITE
ERRE - ER=ZT—MF
WMA—BZ2-_ZF—N&+ A
N BEEARRD B K IENTT
EX - BRRERFRNE
12%5 8 |mEH - BER
—E-NF=ZA=+/HE

Bo-RER-_T—HNFE=H
“tTEREEZMABE
ETREEFHEREKRT
AEE - ZFERCHER
HEIEE (ME24) -

b TEZEEAEME

TREEABME (BREMESH
BEXNTARBDEEZREAR
XNTFETHESMEEE ZREA)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees is as follows:

W

2014

—E-mEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Short-term employee benefits S EE RN 19,467 22,518
Post-employment benefits BEERER A 110 98

Equity-settled share-based VAR A5 5 2 IR 1D

payment expenses AR HER 11,684 24,689




CHINA PRECIOUS METAL RESOURCES HOLDINGS CO., LTD 177

36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The method, estimates and judgements the directors use in
applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and operating results. Some of
the accounting policies require the Group apply estimates and
judgements on matters that are inherently uncertain. In addition to
note 31 which contains information about the assumptions and the
risk factors relating to fair value of share options granted, certain
critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting
policies are described below.

(@) Mining rights and mining structures

Mining rights and mining structures are amortised or depreciated
over the estimated useful lives of the mines, in accordance
with the production plans of the mines concerned, by using
the unit of production method based on the actual production
volume over the estimated total proved and probable reserves
of the ore mines. Proved reserves refer to the economically
mineable part of measured resources. Probable reserves include
economically mineable part of indicated resources. The process
of estimating quantities of reserves is inherently uncertain and
complex. It requires significant judgements and decisions based
on available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic
data. These estimates may change substantially as additional
data from ongoing development activities and production
performance becomes available and as economic conditions
impacting mineral prices and costs change. Reserve estimates
are based on current production forecasts, prices and economic
conditions. The directors exercise their judgement in estimating
the total proved and probable reserves of the ore mines.

THEESBERERERAA

36. EEHEET R E
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(b) Renewal of mining rights

The Group’s mining rights will expire during the period from
the date of approval of these financial statements up to June
2022 and, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Group will be able to renew the mining rights with the relevant
authorities in the PRC continuously at insignificant cost.

(c) Depreciation and amortisation

Fixed assets, other than mining structures, are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account their estimated residual values. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
Interests in leasehold land held for own use under finance and
operating leases are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the estimated useful lives of the leased assets and the
lease term. Both the period and methods of amortisation are
reviewed annually. The depreciation and amortisation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

(d) Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value at the end of the reporting period. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of the estimated selling price less
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The directors
estimate the net realisable value for inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. In
addition, the directors perform an inventory review at each year-
end date and assess the need for write down of inventories.

SEHE TR A E @

(b)

BALRIERE

REBZHRBEREKHZEVB®R
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued) 36. FETATTRHAE @
(€) Impairments (e) RE

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for the
Group’s mining rights, mining structures, fixed assets, deposits
paid for gold mining and exploration rights and fixed assets,
recoverable amounts of the assets need to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs of
disposal and the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
fair value less costs of disposal because quoted market prices
for these assets may not be readily available. In determining
the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to items such as level of sales volume,
selling price and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount that
is reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as sales volume, selling price
and amount of operating costs. Had different parameters and
discount rates been used to determine the fair value of the
intangible assets, the Group’s results of operations and financial
position could be materially different.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are assessed
and provided based on the directors’ regular review of ageing
analysis and evaluation of collectibility. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment losses would
affect the net profit of the Group in future years.
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued) 36. EEHEEH R HE @

(f) Interests in subsidiaries (f) A B A B 2=
Interests in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment PN E: 23 % e a
losses. Judgement is required when determining whether an MR EBESR BEEEHFHE
impairment existed. In making this judgement, historical data RABERE - JBIEH HE - fEHZIE
and factors such as industry, sector performance and financial FIETREZERELEBEMEE -
information regarding the subsidiaries are taken into account. Blan T3 - HEPRIR R B REME

NAZHEER} -

(g) Fair value of derivative financial instruments and financial QPTEEsm I AREBERR

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss AFEIRzEHMEEZR
&

The fair value of derivative financial instruments and financial WIHAEFRMISEENITESR
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss that are not traded in TARBBEREATFEIKRZ
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. EHMBECATENIKEREER
Where valuation techniques are used to determine fair values, EETE - ARAMEREEER
they are periodically reviewed. To the extent practical, models F1E - B A EKIET BIRE ©
use only observable data, however areas such as credit risk, HEFERAJEIRATHER
volatilities and correlations require management to make HIRARTER - EEERR
estimates. Changes in assumptions about these factors could MRS AR EREDER
affect the fair values of derivative financial instruments and EREELMG - FRLFAER
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. ZBRREBEE AR ET

TR TAREBERGRATE
SRz B EZAFE -

(h) Income tax (h) FT18%%
Determining income tax provision involves judgement on the BEMSHBHIREETRS
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The directors REMGRIBHHE - EFEHE
carefully evaluate tax implications of transactions and tax S ERZINBBTE - Wit
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such REEMNHIBERE A5EEER
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account all BRISERNAEER - THE
changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised FERZEXFGNMBRIE - K
for temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax SEEHRYRINHERERRE
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable ERIBEE - BRNZFIRLENIE
that future taxable profit will be available against which the BEERERAEESTANA
unused tax credits can be utilised, the directors’ judgement is i R B) AR RS K R R R SR B AR
required to assess the probability of future taxable profits. The ot A & 1R - EE R
directors’ assessment is constantly reviewed and additional 7 7 15 7R 2R B &R B s A 89 AT Be
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that Mo BEELERABHATME B
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be TEFT AR R FER T/ K B AR IR T
recovered. MIEEESFANWE - BN

RIEET IR EE
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36. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(i) Functional currency of the Company

THEESBERERERAA

36. EEHEET R H E @

() AXAT 2 EEE®E

181

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and making
management decisions in Hong Kong, that is, raising finance
in Hong Kong dollars and has a significant degree of autonomy
from its subsidiaries in the PRC in the way its business is
managed. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, its
functional currency is Hong Kong dollars.

(i) Environmental contingencies

During the year and up to the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Group has not involved in any environmental
remediation at this initial stage of gold mining activities and
has complied with the existing environmental legislation
requirements. The PRC government, however, may move
further towards more rigorous enforcement of applicable laws
and the adoption of more stringent environmental standards.
Accordingly, the amount of such future costs is indeterminable
by the Group. Under existing environmental legislation,
management believes that there are no probable liabilities that
will have a material adverse effect on the financial position or
operating results of the Group for the current reporting period.
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37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 3. EHREE
The Group had the following significant events subsequent to the REERBRERREREEZEY
end of the reporting period and up to the date of approval of these HHFEAER B T EREIR

financial statements:

(@ On 29 January 2015, the Company and a wholly-owned @RZFE—AF—H=Z+NH &K

subsidiary of the Company (the “Purchaser”) entered into an
agreement with all shareholders (the “Sellers”) of Shenzhen
Munsun Asset Management Company Limited (the “PRC Target
Company”), a company incorporated in the PRC. Pursuant to
the agreement, the Sellers have conditionally agreed to sell and
the Purchaser has conditionally agreed to purchase the entire
equity interest in the PRC Target Company at a consideration
of RMB24 million (equivalent to approximately HK$29.7 million).
On the same date, the Company entered into an agreement
with all shareholders (the “Offshore Sellers”) of Munsun Assets
Management Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands (the “Offshore Target Company”), pursuant to which
both parties agreed to negotiate in good faith with a view to
entering into definitive agreements in relation to the possible
acquisition of the entire issued share capital of the Offshore
Target Company by the Company from the Offshore Sellers. The
terms and conditions of the acquisition of the Offshore Target
Company will be subject to further agreement between the
Company and the Offshore Sellers. Further details are set out in
the Company’s announcement on 29 January 2015.

(b) As further detailed in note 24(c), the Company issued bonds

with a total principal amount of HK$230 million with net
proceeds of HK$192 million after deducting issuing expenses.

(c) The Group has been granted new bank loans of HK$50 million

and renewed bank loans of HK$63 million.
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PEESBERERER DA

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new and revised standards
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended

31 December 2014.

The Group has not early applied any of the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have been

issued but are not yet effective.

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

HKFRS 14

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle’®

Financial Instruments’

Investment entities: Applying the
consolidation exception’

Sale or contribution of Assets between
an investor and its Associate joint
Venture®

Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in
joint Operations?

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

—+ 18}

H¥ 044
hatedadl
REN IS
WS-
N2
I B4 | |
Rt - 3

QO | 1] P
ot 1|1
\]

]ﬂl@&'"" ]

BEEZEUBRRTNZERAY T8
BEIMARCEMUTRBEE=F
—MFE+-_A=FT—HILFEHRK
HEMZAERT A ~ #a] RGBT A
Nk

AEBEYEEREM THEAER
18 5 R A B2 FT AT RARE R &

Al - BRI AR -

BEIMERELR  BEWERELR

(1B3T) —E-TER
“T-"FREH
FREES

BEIMERELER  BEWIERE LR

(1B7TA) “E——F%
—E-=ERY
TR

BEIERELER  BEPERE LR

(B3I ) —E-—#R
“E-NFHEH
FENE’

ERUEREEN  SpIA’
9%

BEUEHRELER  REZE: ERARA
£105% - AR 2 fl9ME R
AT BRE
ERIE 125 Rk
BEGTHER
F 2857 (BFTK)

BEMBREED REFHEEBSY
105 BB DR RECEEN
EH|ZE 285 BELEITE®
(BRI )

BEMERELR WEAEEREN
F115H (BFTR) ERvibi

ERUKREED ETELER®

£145%



184 ANNUAL REPORT 2014 3R

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R < i e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated SAZSEEFIITR - B BEFTHEIN)

38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable Methods

and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans:

Employee Contributions'

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 with limited exceptions.

Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
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38. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS

AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and Audit”, of
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into
operation from the Company’s first financial year commencing
after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the Company’s financial year which
began on 1 January 2015) in accordance with section 358 of that
Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the expected impact of the changes in the Companies
Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the period
of initial application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only affect the
presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements.

38.
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hFEHE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA 51 7R )

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Equity attributable to
the owners of
the Company

EERAMRE

BEE
BEE

ARFERA
L fE s

4,484,736
(1,463,385)

3,021,351

6,150,184
(2,592,472)

9,305,986
(3,700,918)

5,605,068

11,716,331
(5,793,484)

5,922,847

12,768,249
(6,885,708)

5,882,541

RESULTS
Revenue

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

BRBLATER], (B518)

Profit/(loss) before
taxation

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

Income tax

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

REFBR, (BR)

Profit/(loss) for the year

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

ES
ez

RERETAA
KIHEZIRA

FHERETER
RILREARA

RERETAR
®IHE=ZIRA

R IER
RILEZIRE

2010
—E-TF

HK$'000

TET

168,154
4,880

21,930

HK$’000

FTAT
(RESEICT)]
(=)

1,119,298

16,498

400,908
16,498

417,406

2012
—E——-F
HK$'000
FHET

1,626,023

445,078

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
FET

1,562,409

181,383

2014
—2-mF
HK$’000
TER

1,286,873

(184,025)
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WONG Lung Tak, Patrick, B8S, PhD, J.P ERE(E - IEHES Bt A FHL
CHAN Kin Sang BRI A

XIAO Rong Ge EEJE

COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

TAM Pui Ling By

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EERTE

ZHANG Liwei RN

TAM Pui Ling Emie

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREEE

WONG Lung Tak, Patrick, 88S, PhD, J.P. (Chairman) ERE(E - WEHEE  F - AP (E/E)
CHAN Kin Sang BRI A

XIAO Rong Ge EEJE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FNEESE

WONG Lung Tak, Patrick, 88S, PhD, J.P. (Chairman) ERE(E - HEHEE [t APt (EE)
CHAN Kin Sang PRI A

LAM Cham iz

NOMINATION COMMITTEE RE2ZEE

LAM Cham (Chairman) M2 (EE)

WONG Lung Tak, Patrick, 88S, PhD, J.P. EEEE - WEHEE 1L AT
CHAN Kin Sang BRI A

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE TEEREES

LAM Cham (Chairman) MK (F/E)

ZHANG Shuguang R

ZHANG Liwei R4

REGISTERED OFFICE SR

Cricket Square Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

P. O. Box 2681 P. O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman Grand Cayman

KY1-1111 KY1-1111

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
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PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 3107-9,

Shun Tak Centre West Tower
200 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITORS

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
White & Case

As to PRC law:
Bastion Law Firm

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong:
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Bank of Communications Hong Kong Branch

In the PRC:

Ping An Bank

Bank of Communications

Industrial & Commercial Bank of China

WEBSITE OF THE COMPANY

http://cpm.etnet.com.hk
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KRB FECRE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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China Precious Metal
Resources Holdings Co., Ltd.
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www.CPMJgroup.hk
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Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
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